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Vision g&

To be a world leader in the provision of
horse racing, sporting and betting
entertainment, and Hong Kong’s premier
charity and community benefactor.

FHRBERESKFNES - BEERERRE
R4S 2ERAZBE AR EPEBRIMA

Mission &

To provide total customer satisfaction
through meeting the expectations of all Club
customers and stakeholders —

the racing and betting public; lottery players;
Club Members; charities and community
organisations; Government; and,

ultimately, the people of Hong Kong

and thereby be one of Hong Kong’s most
respected organisations.
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Performance Highlights

Football Betting
RIRIEY
Mark Six
78,249 Lottery

AT
NEX

1,780

Amounts bet by
local customers
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Horse Racing
S

102,918

Club Net Surplus
(before donations to
Horse Lotteries Club Charities Trust)
Racing Fund Operations HE&FHEREK
REHE HFELENE HBRTFEEETEEH)

16.3%

5277 377 15.8

REVENUE
BY BUSINESS
ESTON

DISTRIBUTION
OF REVENUE
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Betting Duty & Profits Tax
paid to HKSAR Government

Mark Six Football Betting m & BT E BT
Lottery &% BEHEX BARIEEHR R AEH

11.92 3384 64.2,

2014/15 Financial Year
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0,
835/1; of the amounts bet
are returned as dividends,
rebates and lottery prizes
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Betting and
Lottery Revenue
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Club’s charitable contributions
touch the lives of Z=15/E R
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of the population
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About 11% of Club Net Surplus
donated to Charities Trust
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This year has been one of the most remarkable in the Club’s 130 year history. A year in
which we set a new record of HK$3.87 billion in charity donations and when our horses
reached new heights on the world stage, underlining Hong Kong'’s position as a centre
of global racing excellence. It was a year of outstanding business results, delivering an
unprecedented HK$20.05 billion in tax and betting duty to Government. It was also a
year in which the Charities Trust embarked on a major strategic initiative to address key
areas of long-term community need. Above all it was a year in which, through our 130th
Anniversary celebrations, the Club came together with the people of Hong Kong to
celebrate our bonds of shared growth, shared values, and shared hopes as we work to
make Hong Kong a better place for all.

Nowhere are these shared bonds more evident than in Hong Kong’s passion for the
horse. It is this which makes racing Hong Kong’s number one spectator sport and forms
the common bond between our 24,000 Members, and it is why huge crowds turned out
to celebrate our 130th Anniversary Raceday. And of course it is ultimately the horse which
makes possible the Club’s unique role in the community, helping the Club deliver record
tax and duty returns to Government and provide unparalleled support for charity.

It was therefore entirely appropriate in this, our Anniversary year, that Hong Kong
horses should once again ride to victory against some of the world’s top thoroughbreds.
At home Hong Kong won nine of our ten International Group One races, including three
of the LONGINES Hong Kong International Races, while overseas our horses took top
honours in four International Group Ones.

All of this confirms what has long been apparent: that Hong Kong racing has well and
truly arrived on the world stage. This much was clear from the 2014 LONGINES World’s
Best Racehorse Rankings, which saw a record 23 Hong Kong horses listed, surpassing
our previous best of 21. Among them was Able Friend, with a rating of 127 not only our
highest-rated horse ever but the co-third best racehorse in the world for 2014. For a
brief period in 2015 he even rose to joint number one, only to lose his crown to a worthy
successor, the US Triple Crown winner American Pharoah.



CONNECT COLLABORATE AND
CONTRIBUTE TO THE COMMUNITY

Further confirmation of our world-class status came
with the announcement of the World’s Top 100 Group
One/Grade One Races, which included all six of our
International Group One races for 2014. Significantly,
four of these featured for the very first time in the World’s
Top 25, ahead of the United States and Japan, level with
France and behind only Great Britain. When we consider
that it was only in 1999 that we had our first International
Group One race, then | think it is clear how far and how
fast Hong Kong racing has come; and all this achieved by
a population of just 1,200 thoroughbreds.

These successes are very much the result of a strong
and close partnership with our Owners. For while it is the
Club that has articulated a vision of world-class racing,
and created the means for it to flourish through its huge
investments in prize money and infrastructure, it is our
Owners who have kept faith with that vision, purchasing
top class thoroughbreds to race at home and overseas.
And to encourage Owners to keep investing in quality
bloodstock we have again raised prize money, adding an
extra HK$76 million for a total of HK$1,066 million, making
the upcoming 2015/16 season the most rewarding ever.

[t must also be said that none of these achievements
would have been possible without the drive and vision
of our management team, and indeed their success
means that Hong Kong is now highly regarded in world

racing, to the extent that is now taking on an international
leadership role. The Club’s Chief Executive Officer is a Vice-
Chairman of the International Federation of Horseracing
Authorities, world racing’s principle organising body.
He is also Chairman of the Asian Racing Federation,
which represents 21 jurisdictions and 56% of the world’s
wagering turnover. Hong Kong has also been home to the
ARF’s secretariat for the last three years. As Hong Kong
racing continues to progress there is no doubt that its
reputation will climb further, bringing honour to the Club
and pride to Hong Kong.

Hong Kong’s victories on the track have been
paralleled by an equally impressive business performance.
Racing turnover for the financial year reached a new
high of HK$105.40 bilion, while football turnover
increased by a very substantial 26% to HK$78.25 billion.
Significantly, HK$2.49 billion of racing turnover derived
from commingling. This arrangement, by which overseas
racing fans bet into Hong Kong pools, was launched last
year via two operators in the United States and this year
was extended to encompass a total of nine overseas
regions. This enormous overseas interest undoubtedly
vindicates the effort we have put into raising the profile
of Hong Kong racing amidst an increasingly globalised
sporting environment. It is, however, disappointing that
even as we raise our profile internationally local fans

i
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are still limited in their ability to follow overseas racing,
including the efforts of our own horses abroad, due to
restrictions on the simulcast of overseas races. In the
spirit of internationalism, which is, after all, the driving force
of Hong Kong, we believe these restrictions should be
relaxed as soon as possible.

A major theme of our 130th Anniversary celebrations
was to inspire Hong Kong’s citizens to keep contributing
for the good of the community, both now and in the future.
And it is with the long-term needs of the community in
mind that the Charities Trust is embarking on a major
initiative to address three areas of strategic focus over the
next three to five years. Firstly, we want to enhance youth
development, in particular to encourage young people to
develop their talent for innovation and to use it to address
societal issues. Secondly, with the elderly population set
1o rise significantly by 2041, with one in three people being
aged 65 and above, we want to improve elderly care and
build Hong Kong into an age-friendly city. Lastly we want
to promote sport, both as an end in itself and also as a
means to enhance community well-being and to build
positive values in society. We are addressing these needs
under the three headings of Youth for Innovation, Elderly
for Care, and Sports for Hope.

A number of initiatives in all three areas are now in
progress or close to implementation. In April, the Trust
announced its first youth initiative, providing HK$500 million
1o establish a career and life planning programme, known
as CLAP for Youth @ JC. The programme, which is
being actively steered by the Club in collaboration with
cross-sectoral partners, targets school students and
non-engaged youth through a combination of school
programmes, district-based community services and a
tailor-made e-platform. Approximately 200,000 young
people are expected to benefit during its five year duration.
Judging from the strong interest already shown, there
is a pressing need for this type of intervention and we
confidently expect positive results ahead.

In support of its vision of transforming Hong Kong into
an age-friendly city, the Trust has commissioned studies to
understand elderly demographics and needs. In parallel,
the Trust is looking to develop a grass-roots approach to
care for the elderly, engaging stakeholders at the local
level to improve age-friendliness in their districts. It is also
planning a territory-wide publicity campaign to promote
awareness of elderly needs and the practical steps
that can be taken to help the elderly live healthier, more
socially-connected, and more active lives. Meanwhile,
in pursuit of Sports for Hope, the Trust will be launching
a number of “Sportovation” programmes designed to
make sport more accessible and to encourage citizens
to make exercise a part of their daily routine. The Trust
likewise remains keen to support the further development
of football, both in terms of training facilities and in creating
more opportunities for community participation.

What has made these initiatives possible are a set of
core strengths, unique to the Club and its Charities Trust,
which have developed over many years of community
engagement and which enable the Club to take a much
more proactive role in the community. These include the
Club’s ability, drawing on the high degree of trust and
respect that it commands, to act as an educator, raising
awareness of societal issues and the potential means of
addressing them; its role as a convenor, bringing together
multiple and cross-sectoral parties to tackle needs that
sometimes cut across professional disciplines; and the
Club’s ability to utilise its own substantial resources to target
and make a difference to specific areas of need, in some
cases through piloting new and innovative approaches.

These capabilities are evident across the full range
of the Club’s charitable efforts, which this year included,
in addition to the three specific areas of focus, support
for education and training, rehabilitation, medicine and
health, arts and heritage, family services, environmental
protection, and emergency and poverty relief. In total 189
projects received Trust funding this year.

This year also saw a significant expansion of the
Jockey Club Scholarship Scheme. Scholarships will now
be extended to students with special education needs,
to those undertaking vocational training, and to support
postgraduate studies overseas. On the theme of education
it was also pleasing to see READ & WRITE: A Jockey
Club Learning Support Network come to a successful
conclusion this year. Established nine years ago to help
children with literacy difficulties, its operational model,
designed to identify and support children with needs in
this area, has been adopted by the Education Bureau and
is now being used in 200 primary schools.

One final community initiative which reached a
milestone this year is the Community Partners Network,
which aims to strengthen the Club’s connections with
the community at the district level. Progress has been
rapid, with the 13 founding community partners currently
working with the Club on 11 community projects. The first
anniversary was celebrated at this year’s 18 Districts Cup
race meeting, where it was a particular pleasure to meet
some of the beneficiaries as well as the staff volunteers
who have devoted their spare time to support these
worthy endeavours.

These charity and community initiatives are timely
reminders of the substantial community return the
Club has provided Hong Kong throughout its 130
year history. And in order to maintain and increase that
return, the Club is strengthening the quality of its racing,
sporting entertainment and service; not least to meet the
expectations of customers who increasingly benchmark
its racing and service provision against global standards.
This is the basis of the Club’s rigorous customer-centric
policies and of the HK$6.3 billion racecourse revitalisation
under the Racecourse Master Plan, which has seen



existing racecourse venues substantially renovated and
new ones created to meet the targeted needs of different
customer segments. This season saw the revitalisation
enter Phase 3, with ten new or renovated venues
opening at Happy Valley and Sha Tin, with more to
follow next season.

The Club’s slogan throughout this Anniversary year
has been “Riding High Together for a Better Future.” And
| think it is clear, from everything | have described, that
the Club is extremely well positioned for the decades
to come. Our racing has never been stronger and our
customer and community focus never sharper, and, as
the overwhelming response to our 130th Anniversary has
made clear, we enjoy a great deal of public support. And
as we look forward there are three initiatives which | believe
highlight the very bright future that lies ahead for the Club,
its Members, and for the community at large.

Firstamong these is undoubtedly the Conghua Training
Centre, currently under construction in Guangdong. With
its state-of-the-art training and equine care facilities,
Conghua will provide the world-class environment we
need to train our racing thoroughbreds. Crucially, it
will also enable us to expand our horse population and
therefore meet the demand for horse ownership, which
is absolutely fundamental if Hong Kong is to maintain its
leading position in world racing. With site formation almost
complete, construction is due to begin towards the end
of this year, with an anticipated opening date in the third
quarter of 2018.

Members will also be well aware of work in progress
on the extension to Happy Valley Clubhouse, which when
complete will more than double the size of the clubhouse.
Given the very high utilisation of the existing clubhouse
this extension will go a long way towards meeting demand
as well as providing many more food, beverage and
recreation options. And while the main clubhouse will
retain its existing character and ambience, the extension
will also enable us to cater to the needs of younger
Members, both new and potential; these individuals being
absolutely essential to the future of racing and therefore to
the future of the Club.

While both the Conghua Training Centre and the
Happy Valley Clubhouse extension are some years
from completion there is one project which is very close
to opening its doors. This is the newly restored and
revitalised Central Police Station compound, arguably one
of the most important heritage conservation projects ever
undertaken in Hong Kong. The project dates back to 2007,
when the Club undertook to fund its conservation as a gift
to Hong Kong in celebration of the Hong Kong SAR’s 10th
Anniversary. The Club’s aim then, as now, was not only to
preserve an important piece of Hong Kong heritage but to
revitalise the site, creating an arts and leisure space that
would attract local visitors and international tourists. And
after years of painstaking work conserving its 16 heritage

buildings and constructing two new low-rise buildings to
house an auditorium and art galleries, the project is nearing
completion, with an anticipated opening date in the second
half of 2016.

With this in mind, The Jockey Club CPS Limited,
which will manage the site, is now working with heritage
experts and the art community to develop a programme
of activities. The intention is to provide visitors with
opportunities to engage with the site’s compelling history,
to enjoy exhibitions, concerts and performances, or simply
torelax inits open spaces. And as a reminder of its historic
importance the site will be operated under the name of Tai
Kwun, which as many will recall is the old colloquial name
when it was an integrated law enforcement compound.

A heritage jewel in the heart of Central, Tai Kwun
will surely be hailed as a masterpiece. It will also, once
again, illustrate the extraordinary capabilities that the Club
possesses. Not only in terms of resources, but in its ability
to take on and manage projects of great complexity, and
its perseverance in seeing them through to the end. And
all, ultimately, for the greater good of Hong Kong. In our
130th Anniversary year these are surely qualities worth
celebrating.

In closing lwould like to express my sincere appreciation
for my predecessor, Brian Stevenson, for his outstanding
leadership over the last four years. His dedication,
boundless energy and warm good humour were an
inspiration to all of us who had the pleasure of serving with
him on the Board of Stewards. | am also extremely grateful
to my fellow Stewards for their hard work and unwavering
support during my first year as Chairman.

Finally, my deepest thanks to the Board of Management,
which under the leadership of Chief Executive Officer
Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges has executed the Club’s
strategy and managed its operations with consummate
skill and efficiency. As we look forward to the season
ahead | have no doubt that the Club will continue to deliver
outstanding sporting entertainment and work even harder
for the benefit of everyone in our community.

SimonSOlp
Chairman
24 July 2015
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Chief Executive Officer - Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges {TH& % MEXRiM
Audit, Corporate Business Planning and Programme Management, Property, Security and Integrity
Bz - ARFEKREIREEEED « WED  RERBEBEI

Executive Director, Channels and Organisational Development - Gary D M Chow
REIREREBRERERHTHAE ARX

Retalil, Interactive Services, Telebet, Human Resources Operations, Organisational Development
ZEI  EBREERD - SEREEHI - A - FRBESHI

Executive Director, Charities and Community - Leong Cheung

HRERMEEEHTHE ®RE

Charities, Community Relations, Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course, Central Police Station
ZETKD HBEKD  BEESEANARSERIRE FEES

Executive Director, Corporate Affairs - Kim KW Mak A SEH#MTHE FRE
Corporate Affairs (Mainland), Public Affairs =
BRSEHKM - AHBK VEHE B W gy

[liee Moo Ky
Executive Director, Customer and Marketing - Richard C K Cheung Rk Clul

TEREFERHTHAE R2A
Broadcasting Services, Football and Lottery Marketing, Racing Marketing, Customer Management (Member &
Premier Segment), Customer Management (New Segment), Customer Management (Public Segment), Betting
Services and Systems, Strategic Customer Systems and Planning, Customer Information & Wagering System
Projects, Football Trading, Customer Digital Experience Development, Business Development (Overseas)
BEEH  ERRESERN BEEMSN  SEREHEFEHI - IEFEHESM

RERFPEHE - WISHERASE - BEERGRKRIF - RERREE T  BZRRERS
EHE - BEESIERMEREE « EBREE O85)

Executive Director, Finance - Angus HE Lee BB EBHTHAE ZEM
Finance, Treasury, Supply Chain and Administration, Enterprise Risk Management, Financial and Management
Information System

BIREED - EREER © MBS R B  tERKREED MEREERENRS

Executive Director, Information Technology and Sustainability - Christoph Ganswindt
BAMBEREEEREEHTHE GEER

IT Enterprise Solutions, Information Security, IT Infrastructure and Operation Services,

IT Strategic Business Solutions, IT Strategy and Governance, Sustainablity

EMRREER R - EMRZH - EMBHREEREERSEE - BB RIS
FRE - EMBERBRER - HEZRD

Executive Director, Legal and Compliance - PhilanaWYPoon ZZERAHREBMITHE F2H
Legal Services, Corporate Secretariat, Compliance
EEBEE  AARER  GREEI

Executive Director, Membership Services - BillyKCChen EEEHHTHAE RHER

Hospitality Services (Clubhouses, Racecourse Catering, Trackside Catering, Catering Central Support and
Membership Projects and Planning), Membership Services, Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse
MEER (B BSEREERENABRY  SARNESHET S5=KEE
BRRFE) SESKI - LRBBEESHM

Executive Director, Racing - WilliamA Nader ESEHHTHE FIEE

Conghua Training Centre, Equestrian Affairs, Handicapping and Race Planning, Racing Control,

Racing Development, Racing Laboratory, Racing Operations, Racing Registry, Veterinary Clinical Services,
Veterinary Regulation and International Liaison
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B EAT  BSIHTH  BESWER  BER (2R) - BB (BESEHIREIFREL)

Director, Corporate Business Planning and Programme Management - Scarlette K F Leung
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Global Excellence

for a Better Return to
the Community

A Record Breaking 130th Anniversary Year

This last year has undoubtedly been outstanding in every respect. The 130th Anniversary
was a great success as we celebrated the Club’s achievements in racing and its long
history of community service. The Club, once again, achieved a new record in racing,
football and lottery turnover of HK$191.43 billion, which in turn enabled it to return a
record HK$20.05 billion in duty and tax to Government. And the Charities Trust, for the
second straight year exceeded HK$3 billion in donations, with HK$3.87 billion donated
to 189 projects.

These results owe a great deal to the success of our world-class racing, where, thanks
to our Owners, and the incentives we have provided them through continuous increases
in prize money, Hong Kong is now home to some of the world’s top thoroughbreds.
This year Hong Kong horses won nine of our ten International Group One races, while
overseas they were victorious in another four. These included two new trophies. Rich
Tapestry’s win in the Santa Anita Sprint Championship was the first ever for Hong Kong
in the United States, and Aerovelocity’s victory in Japan’s Takamatsunomiya Kinen made
him not only the first Hong Kong horse but the first overseas horse to win the race.

The quality of Hong Kong racing was underlined when 23 Hong Kong horses
were listed in the LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Rankings for 2014, up from our
previous best of 21. These included Able Friend, whose rating of 127 made him the joint
third best racehorse in the world for 2014. It is also worth noting that of 61 horses rated
over 120, seven were from Hong Kong, which is close to 12% of the total; a remarkable
accomplishment given that we have only 1,200 horses in training.

Equally remarkable is the fact that all six of our International Group One races for
2014 ranked among the World’s Top 100 Group One/Grade One Races, with four of
them in the Top 25. And with the Club now having an additional four International Group
One races this season, and a strong pool of elite horses, there is every chance that more
races will feature in the rankings next year.
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This emphasis on world-class racing is not only about
achieving sporting success but also about building and
sustaining our business and so ensuring that the Club
can maintain and grow its tax and charity support. And
in this respect the financial results this year have been
outstanding. Racing turnover for the full season reached
HK$107.93 billion, up 5.8% on last year and the second
time we have exceeded the HK$100 billion mark. Net
margin, at HK$4.51 billion for the full racing season was
3.9% up on last season and the best for 17 seasons.

Even more encouraging has been the success of
our world-class racing product overseas, where we are
now starting to harvest the financial reward of our efforts.
Through the simulcast of our racing to other jurisdictions
and the commingling of overseas wagers into our betting
pools, which this year extended to nine regions and 11
commingling partners, turnover from these sources grew
from a nominal figure last year to HK$2.49 bilion for
the financial year and HK$2.64 billion for the full racing
season. All of this illustrates the significant interest in and
attractiveness of Hong Kong racing overseas, driven by
the quality and competitiveness of our racing product, the
depth of our wagering pools and last but not least by our
reputation for integrity. In view of this, we believe it is timely
to review the current restrictions on inbound simulcasting,
as under the present arrangements Hong Kong fans are
deprived of the opportunity to enjoy some of the best
overseas racing. In a world of globalised sport such
restrictions are surely no longer appropriate and should
be relaxed.

The Club’s football betting operations have also had a
record year, with turnover up by 26% to HK$78.25 billion,
generating HK$5.59 billion in tax payments, with a similar
amount returned to the Club. Given that last year’s high
turnover was boosted, in part, by the World Cup, this
continued upward trend is highly pleasing and indicates
the success of our efforts to attract customers away from
illegal bookmakers.

Meanwhile, having recorded a modest increase last
year, the Mark Six lottery experienced a slight 1.6% decline
this year to HK$7.78 billion, these variations being mainly
due to seasonal fluctuations in the number of jackpots
and snowballs. The Mark Six nonetheless remains an
important source of community funding, generating
HK$1.95 billion in duty and HK$1.17 billion for charity via
the Lotteries Fund.

Alongside our focus on world-class racing is an equally
strong focus on our customers based on a detailed and
analytical approach to understanding current customer
wants and potential customer needs. This year saw further
progress to strengthen all aspects of this customer-centric
approach.

Our HK$6.3 billion Racecourse Master Plan, now in its
seventh year, coupled with the Happy Wednesday brand,
which has successfully positioned racing as a social and
lifestyle-based entertainment experience, is transforming
Sha Tin and Happy Valley racecourses. Existing venues
have been renovated and new ones created to serve the
differentiated needs of customers, with ten venues opening
this season and more to follow next season. This, together

-
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with our highly competitive racing, themed racing events
and major racedays like the Hong Kong International
Races, not to mention the excitement generated by star
horses like Able Friend, Aerovelocity, Designs On Rome,
Rich Tapestry and Dan Excel helped increase racecourse
attendance to 2.07 million this year, our highest attendance
for 12 years.

Technology, a core strength of the Club, is improving
our connectivity with customers, particularly with respect
to the younger generation with their device driven
lifestyles. This season we launched RacingHK on the
popular WeChat social media platform as an accessible
source of racing news, and we extended Racing Touch, a
graphically-rich racing information application, to Android
devices. And the new HKJC TV Football provided football
fans with a mobile platform to watch live football matches
and obtain latest scores and odds.

Technology is also helping us build our product
offerings. Last season we became the first racing
organisation in the world to introduce advanced odds
calculation technology, utilising software originally developed
for high-speed securities trading, which we used to
relaunch the popular Quartet bet. This technology, which
instantly calculates all outcomes of events, allows us
to provide real-time odds and dividend data on exotic
bets, making these bet types much more accessible
to customers. This season we extended it to create a
merged pool for the Quartet and First 4, providing a larger
and more stable pool for customers. As a result, turnover
on the Quartet and First 4 increased significantly.

Meanwhile, for Members, in addition to the many new
and refurbished racecourse venues we are investing very
substantially in Clubhouse renovations, most notably in
the new extension to Happy Valley Clubhouse which
is currently in an advanced stage of planning. When
complete it will undoubtedly cement the Club’s position as
one of Asia’s finest membership clubs.

As | have said, all of the Club’s efforts to build the
quality of its racing and sporting entertainment ultimately
have one objective: to sustain and grow its contribution to
the community. The success of those efforts is reflected
in the record contributions of the Charities Trust, both last
year and this, with donations this year climbing to HK$3.87
billion, more than three times the HK$1.05 billion donated
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in 2007/8. It is only because of these improving business
results that the Trust has been able to embark on a major
initiative this year to address three key areas of community
need (youth development, elderly care and sport), while
simultaneously maintaining its support for existing charity
projects and partners. The first youth initiative, CLAP for
Youth @ JC, a HK$500 million project to help 200,000
young people develop their career and life paths, is already
underway, with more projects upcoming.

Such strong and ongoing commitments to the
community mean that the Club is very focused on
sustaining its business performance, not only in the short-
term but over the decades to come. In a competitive
and ever changing market environment the Club knows
it cannot stand still and must work continually to satisfy
customer needs. And it is with this in mind that the Club is
now making further substantial investments in technology
and infrastructure; investments which will enable the Club
to enhance the health of its assets and so position itself for
further and sustained growth.

Besides the Racecourse Master Plan, the Club has
committed over HK$2 billion to develop a next generation
customer information and wagering system. Leveraging
the Club’s technology strength the new system will enable
the Club to react much faster to market demand and
improve its ability to take on illegal operators. Much of the
development work will be undertaken at the new Sha Tin
Communications and Technology Centre, a state-of-the-
art facility and a highly attractive working environment for
employees which brings together core [T functions, a new
broadcasting and television studio as well as Telebet and
call centre functions.

Absolutely fundamental to the Club’s future is the
Conghua Training Centre in Guangdong. With the waiting
list for horse permits currently around five years, Conghua
gives us the opportunity both to meet the demand for
ownership and to increase our horse population. Indeed,
when we consider what has been achieved with just 1,200
horses stabled at Sha Tin, then it is clear that the additional
capacity and advanced training facilities at Conghua
will provide a significant new platform for Hong Kong
racing as we enter the next stage of growth. Whether
the full benefits can be realised however, will depend
on the number of race meetings available. Certainly the



expectation of Owners will be that they should be given
the maximum opportunity to run their horses and this
will undoubtedly increase pressure to add additional race
meetings in the medium term.

With the Conghua Training Centre due to open in
the third quarter of 2018, we are now moving ahead with
operational arrangements. We have recently strengthened
the project management team. We are also well advanced
with the relevant protocols for the transport of horses and
veterinary medicines across the border and have started
training stables staff. It is a complex project, but we are
determined to do it well and add yet another success story
to the Club.

The Conghua Training Center, together with the
increasing involvement of executives in supporting the
Club’s role as a global leader in racing - notably through its
operation of the Secretariat of the Asian Racing Federation
and its leading role in the International Federation of Horse
Racing Authorities - has led to an increase in the scope and
complexity of the Racing Division. To fulfil its international
duty, to meet the requests for advice from other racing
authorities, including from the China Equestrian Association
and the China Horseracing Industry Association to support
the development of the sport of horse racing in China,
and also to focus on the development of the Conghua
Training Centre, the Division will be formed into the Racing
Business and Operations Division and the Racing Authority
Division. The Racing Authority Division will be responsible
for Racing Administration, Racing Control - including the
Racing Laboratory, the Racing Development Board, the
Asian Racing Federation Secretariat and IFHA activities
led by the Club. The Racing Business Operations Division
will be responsible for the racing operations of the Club,
including the development of the Conghua Training Centre
and the Racecourse Master Plan.

Everything | have described so far demonstrates the
strong commitment the Club has to building the strength
of its racing and sporting entertainment so as to ensure a
sustainable future for its community support. Nonetheless
there remains one very significant threat to all of this: illegal
gambling. Increasingly facilitated by mobile and online
technology, illegal and unauthorised gambling operators
tumnover an estimated HK$100 bilion dollars a year,
resulting in a loss of some HK$12 billion in community

funding. And as we know only too well, illegal betting is
also frequently associated with problem gambling and
criminality.

The Government’s approach has always been to
provide for gambling demand through regulated and
responsibly managed gambling channels such as those
operated by the Club. It was in response to the rampant
growth of illegal football gambling, for example, that the
Government introduced regulated football betting in
2008. There is, however, growing evidence of substantial
betting taking place on various types of sports, especially
basketball, where there is as yet no legal channel available.
The experience of illegal football betting, which grew
exponentially in the 1990s, suggests it is better to start
addressing the problem sooner rather than later, and
certainly well before illegal operators become further
entrenched. In view of this it is perhaps timely to start
investigating the nature of the problem, the scale of illegal
activity and the most appropriate means of dealing with it.

In closing my report | would like to say it has been a
privilege to serve the Club during this special Anniversary
year. My sincere thanks to the Board of Stewards for their
support and guidance, most especially our Chairman
Dr Simon S O Ip. And my deepest appreciation for the
excellent performance of our management team and
employees, who have worked so hard to make this year
such a memorable one for the Club and for the Hong
Kong community.

Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
Chief Executive Officer
24 July 2015
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Founded in 1884, The Hong Kong Jockey Club
15 a world-class horse racing operator and
Hong Kong’s largest community benefactor,
operaling as a not-for-profit organisation.
Committed to global excellence and giving
back to society, the Club is always “Riding High
Together for a Better Future” with the people
of Hong Kong.
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130th Anniversary

FHERGENL A= THF
Celebrating the 130th Anniversary of
The Hong Kong Jockey Club

This has been a remarkable year for the Club and a memorable one for Hong Kong,
as we celebrated 130 years of racing and community service. Because throughout all
these years the Club has been an integral part of our city, sharing its passion for racing
and contributing greatly to its economic progress and social well-being.

Since the Club is so much a part of Hong Kong, we have shared our Anniversary joy with
everyone. Through the HKJC Community Festival and the spectacular equestrian show,
CAVALIA; through our community elderly lunches, exhibitions and online presence; and
through many other activities besides, we have reached out across the community.
Children and seniors, families and students, the less-abled and less-advantaged have

all joined our celebrations. Together we have shared our passion for the horse, reaffirmed
the positive values that unite Hong Kong, and inspired the community with a renewed
sense of the possible.

As we look forward to the Club’s next 130 years, our commitment to Hong Kong remains
as strong as ever. And in the spirit of global excellence and giving back to society, which
are at the heart of everything we do, we are, and always will be, “Riding High Together
for a Better Future” with the people of Hong Kong.
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13 0 th Anniversary Raceday

A lot of horsepower!

Honouring the sport of racing which has always been at the heart of the Club, the
130th Anniversary Raceday on 10 January saw 74,000 fans soak up the festive
atmosphere on a day when even the sun was in sparkling form.

It was a celebration for all, with special programmes and discounts for both Club
Members and the public. Lifting everyone’s spirits off-course was the debut of the
Club’s Anniversary celebration song, “Progressing Together”, while on course there
could hardly have been a more fitting winner of the HKJC 130th Anniversary Cup
than up-and-coming four-year-old Key Witness, carrying the familiar black-and-green
colours of the legendary Silent Witness.

In celebrating our passion for horses, we were reminded that it is the horse that
allows us to continue progressing with the community and contributing to its
betterment. This was the sentiment of Chief Executive of the Hong Kong SAR

C Y Leung, who presented the 130th Anniversary Cup. Speaking at a celebratory
luncheon attended by senior Government and Mainland officials, as well as many
of the Club’s community partners, he described how the Club had grown alongside
Hong Kong, becoming a world-class organisation and, thanks to its tax and duty
payments, delivering “a lot of horsepower” to the community.
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Chief Executive of the Hong Kong SAR C Y Leung and Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip launch the Club’s 130th
PR AR - B BB R H AR Anniversary celebrations.
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“Under the Club’s capable leadership,
I am confident that it will continue to
play a critical role in our community.”

C Y Leung, Chief Executive of the Hong Kong SAR
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130th Anniversary Exhibition & Website

Sharing our connection to the community

To communicate its shared history with Hong Kong, as well as its community impact and
relevance, the Club launched a 130th Anniversary Exhibition and dedicated website.

At the 130th Anniversary Exhibition, visitors learned how closely connected the Club is
to their own communities through interactive exhibits and prize-winning games.

They also became immersed in the Club’s world-class racing excellence by posing for
photos with the Ren Ma horse sculpture and the “Achieving World-class Excellence” 3D
Trick Art featuring legendary racehorse Silent Witness.

Prize-winning games also helped share the Club’s community contributions on the
130th Anniversary website. The games proved extremely popular, with over 1.4 million
submissions from over 1.5 million unique visits to the site.
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Posing for a 3D picture with the legendary Silent Witness. 825BE [H5H KL M=#GBD)EEG -

The Ren Ma sculpture was a highlight of the 130th Anniversary exhibition.
SERBFREEMNRM -5 B2 -
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Races of the Riders

28

Fimbracing new challenges

[t was in the spirit of “excite and excel” that four top Hong Kong jockeys took part in
The HKJC 130th Anniversary Races of the Riders, a unique crossover competition
during the Longines Hong Kong Masters, Asia’s largest five-star international show
jumping event held at AsiaWorld-Expo in February.

Drawing on their competitive instinct and keen desire to embrace new challenges, the
jockeys partnered with four world-class show jumpers. It was a battle of speed and
precision that took the concept of working together to achieve new heights of excellence
to a whole different level — literally — as the jockeys relied on coaching advice from their
partners to soar and score over the jumps.

More than 1,000 students and the less-privileged were invited to witness this world-class
sporting competition and cheer on the Hong Kong riders. “It was exhilarating to watch
these top-class riders execute those sharp, stylish turns between closely-placed fences,’
Form 6 student Michael Chan enthused. “This is highly enjoyable entertainment rarely
seen in Hong Kong.”

4

But despite the efforts of “Magic Man” Joao Moreira, it was the team effort of Vincent Ho
and the world’s number six show jumper, Kevin Staut, which ultimately claimed the prize.
“Hong Kong jockeys really are top class. 'm amazed that they’re just as skilful at show
jumping as they are at racing around Sha Tin,” Moreira fan Joe Leung exclaimed.

130TH ANNIVERSARY

Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip greets some of the young fans cheering
for Hong Kong.
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New Year Night Parade
Sharing the joy

The Club has been supporting the International Chinese New Year Night
Parade for 20 years, and this year’s float in celebration of the 130th Anniversary
was perhaps more glittering and spectacular than ever before.

With a sparkling galloping horse as its centrepiece, the float was not only a
colourful beacon of hope and joy, but also served as the platform for a

festive CNY online game that challenged one and all to guess the total number
of traditional dancing lion heads featured on the float.

Raising spirits as it paraded through Tsim Sha Tsui East, the float was
joined by the Club’s strongest-ever supporting team, including primary and
ethnic minority students, who joined hands to form a giant 130.
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Working together 1,000 schoolchildren set a new world
record for the world’s largest fingerprint painting.
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The Club’s 130th Anniversary celebrations
reached a high point over the Easter weekend,
with over 33,000 people riding high together
for a better future at the HKJC Community
Festival. It was carnival time for everyone,

as families and friends, young and old,

came together for three days of inspiration,
edutainment and fun at the Club’s world-class
Sha Tin Racecourse and Penfold Park.

Both young and old learned about the Club’
Hong Kong, as well as its community impa

BuEL-—RERFEEB BRI EE

Across nine different zones, festival-goers were
encouraged to strive for excellence in their lives
by taking part in a variety of sporting, learning
and family activities. There were riding displays
by the Club’s medal-winning equestrian team,

a youth football challenge run in collaboration
with Manchester United, and the opportunity

to witness over 1,000 primary and secondary
school students experience first-hand the power
of working together as they set a new record for
the world’s largest fingerprint painting.

It was a day that exemplified the Club’s
pioneering spirit of “Dare to try and innovate”,
with one young student exclaiming: “It turns out
that 1,000 people really can paint a picture. ..

I'm just so amazed!” Not only an enjoyable way
to spend a holiday weekend, the Community
Festival also proved to be an opportunity to learn
lessons that will resonate within families and

the community, as together we strive to create

a better future and a healthier life for all.
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Parents and children spent quality time together, building the
bonds that create more harmonious relationships.
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Parents and children worked together to A 10,000-square-foot installation art work composed of over 10,000 papier
relieve stress, explore and expand their maché eco horse sculptures was awarded a Guinness World Record as “the
creative bounds, and more fully realise their largest display of sculptures made from recycled materials”.
ﬁ B artistic potential. ﬁ B . . -
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. Live Perfonnances HE?E*J}SHOW

Local bands Robynn & Kendy and Mr. inspired the audience with their heartfelt performances of the Club’s 130th Anniversary celebration song
“Progressing Together”, while performers from CAVALIA demonstrated how hard work and determination can pay off.

ZONE 7E A2 Robynn & Kendy & Mr. BZS&130BEREXEM [FE ] SHRIBRS - ERASTISHEE CAVALIA WIS REANEHRET
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13 ] Kong Jockey

P, The Hong Kong Jockey .1 D
.| AV 3
#=~, Horse Encounters B%EEE

Show jumping and cross country demonstrations by the HKJC Equestrian Team showcased the unique
bond between horse and rider. Pony rides gave children a taste of what being an equestrian rider is like.
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~ Pursuit of a Football Dream &2

Young footballers had the opportunity to meet and play with Manchester

United legend Denis Irwin during a professional football skills assessment.
% E Showcasing their potential in pursuit of their dreams earned the most
ZONE talented a chance to train in England.
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. Together We Make History QIE DRlEEER

|
Over 1,000 primary and secondary school students
e ! experienced the power of working together as they
] . =1 20| Bl 3 &L % & set a new record for the world’s largest fingerprint
o~ | Fitness for All FRIT:E#E ZONE A ™ painting.
Comprehensive fitness assessments helped participants take their @ T — NP + HE e
first step towards a healthy lifestyle and a better physique. 2l E:F E iljjfi - RIDBNRYEZIRBAMIT I2
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“For-everyone to have peace, prosperity and happiness.”

A wish for Hong Kong written by an elderly participant at a community elderly lunch
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Community Gelebration
with the Elderly

Saluting our seniors

In recognition of the tremendous contribution of the elderly to the
development of Hong Kong, the Club organised a series of community elderly
lunches in partnership with the 18 District Councils.

Starting from March, over 4,000 seniors enjoyed this festive treat, with the
Club’s Chairman, Stewards and management joining with the Club’s
CARE@hkjc Volunteer Team to lend their support and show their appreciation.

The city’s elderly have personally witnessed Hong Kong’s dramatic social

Club Deputy Chairman Anthony Chow picks up some culinary tips from changes since the 1950s, and have seen the Club progress alongside them.
elderly participants. The lunches gave them the chance to relive the development of their home
R EAKERER SN EEE (£ EB R - districts and offer their wishes for Hong Kong'’s future success.
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Progressing Together
Pursuing dreams with passion

Embodying the spirit of Riding High Together was the Club’s 130th
Anniversary Celebration Song “Progressing Together”. Performed
in both rock and acoustic versions by two popular local bands,

Mr. and Robynn & Kendy, the song inspired everyone on its debut
at the 130th Anniversary Raceday and again at the Community
Festival, where it was performed by the winners of the Club’s
singing competition.

The Club is passionate about discovering the talents of the people
of Hong Kong and encouraging them to pursue their dreams

no matter what obstacles they face. The lyrics of the song aptly
encapsulate this idea: “Riding high we are partners in life; together
we will go high and low in pursuit of our dreams, sharing applause
and braving mockery.” Long after the 130th Anniversary is over,
“Progressing Together” will continue to spread the message of
“Riding High Together for a Better Future”.
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“Bravo! I can really see the
strong bond between horses

and riders.” »
Student attending CAVALIA
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between horse and rider

An absolute highlight of the 130th Anniversary celebrations was the spectacular
equestrian show, CAVALIA. Created by the co-founder of world-famous Cirque du
Soleil, the show had already played to sell-out audiences in 65 cities around the
world. And it was thanks to the Club’s support as presenting sponsor, and also with
the aid of the Club’s logistical and veterinary teams, that CAVALIA made its Hong
Kong debut at the end of March.

It was a massive hit, with capacity audiences thrilling to CAVALIA’'s dazzling display
of equestrian and performing arts, multimedia and special effects under its big white
top on Central Harbourfront. An additional 17 performances had to be laid on to
meet the demand.

To ensure as many people as possible could enjoy this once-in-a-lifetime opportunity,
the Club arranged for discounts on some categories of tickets and provided 14,000

tickets for students and the less-privileged to attend special matinee shows. “Bravo!
| can really see the strong bond between horses and riders,” commented one of the
students. “Their acts are so difficult and the movements are in harmony.”

There were also special behind-the-scenes tours for students and the less-privileged,
with the chance to get up close and personal with CAVALIA horses and to learn first-
hand from performers.



Students attend a matinee show of CAVALIA. B4 E RS ECAVALIARERIBRE -
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“My physical limitations make
it hard for me to ride hor ses,
but from this tour I really
1011110(IX\1L1t21&&01u101ful
animal the horse 1s.”

Wheelchair user, Daphne Cheng
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Chan Tak Fai

Iiire Dragon Dance ( ‘ommancder
and Keeper of the Flame
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Chan Tak-fai has been taking part in the Tai Hang
Fire Dragon Parade since he was a child.
Concerned that this century-old tradition might
die out, he was delighted to learn that the

Club would take up sponsorship, ensuring its
preservation for future generations.
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Colleen Lee

Concert Pianist

Colleen’s musical talent was evident from

the age of seven, and it was nurtured at the
Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts,
established some 30 years ago with the help of
a Club donation. In 2005, her studies paid

off when she won an award in the International
Fryderyk Chopin Piano Competition, the

first person from Hong Kong to achieve this
prestigious honour.
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Yu Chui Yee

Seven-time Paralympic

Gold Medalist

Perseverance and the unconditional support
of teammates set Yu Chui-yee on the path to
Paralympic gold. Like many other athletes she
also benefited from the elite training provided
by the Hong Kong Sports Institute, built with
Club funding in the 1970s.

F%ﬁﬁtﬁﬁibi%g’fﬁ
BHERTIE VG R A E G 5

%%\‘*E’\kxaéﬁiﬁiﬁ o —NEOF -

SeEpHEEEEEBR

?m IR - BRRRIGRAEEHS -

F RIEHREE

130th Anniversary

ChanWing Man

Home Care Renal Patient

For some kidney patients, the need to attend
hospital for dialysis treatment can be a major
disruption in their lives. But thanks to a

Club donation, the Hospital Authority was
able to purchase 400 Nocturnal Home
Haemodialysis machines, enabling people like
Chan Wing-man to undergo dialysis at home
and so maintain their work and family life.
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Szeto Kin Mr&MrsLo | Kevin Shum

Member of the Hong Kong CADENZA Hub Users Jockey Club “Make a Difference
Chinese Orchestra School” participant
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Thanks to a grant from the Jockey Club Mr and Mrs Lo perfectly embody Hong Kong’s Kevin Shum had a dream: he wanted to
Scholarship Scheme, Szeto Kin was able to “can-do” spirit, not least when it comes to promote organic farming. But it was not until
pursue his dream to study and develop a career healthy ageing. And like many other people in he attended a workshop held by the Jockey
in Chinese music. He now runs a volunteer their age group they have benefited from the Club Make a Difference (MaD) School that
group to help people in need. Jockey Club CADENZA Hub, which provides it finally became a reality. The lessons he
a one-stop centre to promote primary learned there inspired him to set up a social
healthcare for middle-aged and elderly enterprise with the objective of building a
people. greener community.
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Hui Yuk Po

Leader of the Hong Chi Glass
Bottle Recycling Team

Mak Wai Ling

Hospital Authority ICU

Operations Manager

130th Anniversary

Mrs Tang & Son

FAMILY: A Jockey Club Initiative For

a Harmonious Society participants

The responsibility of leading his recycling

team has instilled confidence and pride into

Hui Yuk-po. Not least for being part of the

first citywide initiative, supported with Club
funding, to combine training for the intellectually
challenged with a green living initiative.
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Mak Wai-ling’s work caring for her patients has

just got a whole lot easier thanks to the installation

of ceiling hoists and electrically-operated beds
in public hospitals citywide; part of the Club’s
largest ever donation to the Hospital Authority.
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With the support of the Club’s FAMILY project
Mrs Tang and her disabled son were able to
strengthen their family ties and build a strong
relationship.
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INTERNATIONAL RACES
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~ e T : HK is a leader.”

Lord Grimthorpe, Racing Manager to Prince Khalid Abdullah
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PeHlE T FHEESLIE Lord Grimthorpe

This ts a furst-class factlity.”
Trainer Sir Michael Stoute
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! - -~ “Amazing. The best. I like
everything. That's why [ come.”

y

Trainer Ed Dunlop
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LONGINES Hong Kong International Races
the pinnacle of a 130 year
journey to world-class racing

Opening Ceremony of the 2014 LONGINES HKIR.
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When the founding fathers of The Hong Kong Jockey Club held their inaugural meeting
in 1884 to put the city’s horse racing on to a more formal footing, they had in mind an
amateur pastime covering just a few meetings a year on a simple track at Happy Valley.
Scarcely could they have imagined that 130 years later, Hong Kong would be considered
one of the leading global powers in the sport, home to many of the world’s most
respected racehorses, jockeys and trainers.

Much of that dramatic change has come in the four decades since the early 1970s, when
Hong Kong racing turned professional, the Government allowed the HKJC to provide
off-course betting for the first time, and plans were put in hand to build a second, world-
class racecourse on reclaimed land at Sha Tin.

And the pace of change has moved even faster since Hong Kong staged its first race
open to international entries in 1988. Today the city stages ten races a season at the
highest International Group One level, of which six are rated among the World’s Top 100
Group/Grade One events and four of those in the Top 25 - an incredible achievement for
a jurisdiction with a racehorse population of only 1,200.

Among them, the “blue riband” event remains the Hong Kong
International Races (HKIR) staged at Sha Tin each
December, now under the prestigious sponsorship of
Longines and featuring four International Group One
races on a single day. Given the superlative
quality of entries they attract each year from
around the world and alluring total prize money
of HK$83 million, the HKIR are now widely
recognised as the “Turf World Championships”
of horse racing.

Zac Purton wins the LONGINES
Hong Kong Sprint on Aerovelocity.
BEER [ RER]BERER
BBERIRGE-
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Hong Kong celebrates by taking three of
the four International Group Ones

Each year the HKIR seem to get better and better, and the 2014 renewal was no
exception. Some 74,000 local and overseas racing fans packed Sha Tin Racecourse,
the highest attendance since 1997, while another 4,000 watched the live broadcasts
relayed to Happy Valley - a perfect way for the Club to preface its 130th Anniversary
celebrations on a world-class note. Many thousands more fans in Hong Kong and
overseas were able to enjoy live streaming of the HKIR through the Club’s electronic
channels. Total turnover on the day’s ten races reached HK$1.47 billion, a 7.6% increase
on the 2013 figure and again, the highest since 1997.

Perhaps most encouragingly of all, Hong Kong horses are nowadays more than able
to hold their own in such exalted global company. Whereas in earlier days of the HKIR
it was common to see three or even all four of the international races go to overseas
raiders, the shoe is now on the other hoof — Hong Kong-trained horses regularly take
two or three of the titles, reflecting the world-class racing standards that local fans can
now enjoy.
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LONGINES

Hong Kong Vase

\\7":%7'1% Winner Bt S IC:
Flintshire (FR)
[ EMAEER] CEE)

S Jockey A
Maxime Guyon @Z{=%

7 Winner B BT
1 Aerovelocity (HK
Hong Kong Sprint i d
\\ E \/\ ’%7;@ AT
ERLE IR s oo 3
Trainer %R &6M:

Paul O’Sullivan &{&® %2

Hong Kong Mile
BB @ Gy

Winner Bt 55 0C:
Able Friend (HK)
[SHR](FB)

Jockey 5iEm:
Joao Moreira EEF#I

Winner B tH f5 Ut
2! Designs On Rome (HK)
[EBFE | (F#)

Jockey 5z hil:
Joao Moreira EE#I

Trainer %k 55 EM:
John Moore ##EEDs
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Joao Moreira takes the .LONGINES Hong Kong Cup on Designs On Rome.
ERARE [REE I RTRERTEE -

At Sha Tin on 14 December, the fans created a befittingly exciting
atmosphere, cheering wildly as local favourites Peniaphobia and
Aerovelocity fought out a thrilling battle to the wire in the LONGINES
Hong Kong Sprint, the latter prevailing by a neck under Zac Purton to
give Hong Kong its first success of the day.

The cheers got even louder in the LONGINES Hong Kong Mile as

home favourite Able Friend more than justified his odds-on starting price
by simply brushing aside a top-class international field, producing

a sensational final run under Joao Moreira to blitz the rest of the field by
4% lengths. It was a performance that was to earn the John Moore-
trained Able Friend the accolade of joint third best racehorse in the sport
in the 2014 World’s Best Racehorse Rankings.

And as if that wasn'’t already enough, Moreira promptly gave Hong Kong
its third international win of the day - and Moore his second - in the next
race, the HK$25 million LONGINES Hong Kong Cup. This time he piloted
Designs On Rome to a short-head victory over Military Attack to give the
home team yet another quinella.

Earlier, the overseas riders had scored first blood when French favourite
Flintshire took the LONGINES Hong Kong Vase, though Hong Kong’s
Willie Cazals pushed the Arc de Triomphe runner-up the whole way.

For the third time in four years, however, it was three Group One wins out
of four for Hong Kong'’s equine heroes.

RACING

Canto-pop star Miriam Yeung headlines the opening variety show.

ERRFHTEAREGRESEEBHFS

There was plenty of excitement off the track, too, with singer Miriam
Yeung, Ban’s Gig Drums and the renowned Fuyong Acrobatic Troupe
entertaining fans in the opening variety show, and movie star Eddie Peng
attracting much attention in his role as a Longines Brand Ambassador.
Then, before the excited fans finally headed for the exits, a spectacular
pyrotechnic display brought International Day to a memorable close.

“Today has been the perfect occasion to showcase the quality and
vibrancy of Hong Kong racing, and to promote Hong Kong racing as
a world brand,” an elated Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
told the media. “We are happy with what we have achieved and now,
as we always do, we must look at ways to set the bar even higher.”
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A major lead-up event is the LONGINES International Jockeys’ Championship held at
Happy Valley on the Wednesday before the HKIR, and in this case featuring 12 of the
world’s finest riders rather than top equine stars. The 2014 list featured a number of
previous winners including Australia’s defending champion Kerrin McEvoy, British ace
Ryan Moore and France’s representative Christophe Soumillon, as well as new faces
Irad Ortiz Jr from the US and S’Manga Khumalo from South Africa. But the handsome
prize of a silver whip and HK$500,000 went to Japan’s Yuichi Fukunaga after he won
the middle two legs of the four-race contest.

With so many prominent racing officials and media in town for the HKIR, it’s also the
perfect time for staging prestigious social events. In 2013, Hong Kong was proud to host
the inaugural LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Awards, and this time the HKIR Gala
Dinner was the venue for the first-ever presentation of the LONGINES World’s Best Jockey
Award. It went to Britain’s Ryan Moore, who won no fewer than five of the IFHA's Top 50
Group/Grade One races in four different countries around the world, while Hong Kong’s
Zac Purton finished a creditable 5th.
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An elated Yuichi Fukunaga holds aloft the LONGINES IJC trophy. EEMAMIEI AT AN —RE  MEBNEEIEE
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Three weeks of thrilling
international action
for racing fans

While the day of the Hong Kong International Races represents the
pinnacle of the city’s racing calendar each year, it is only the culmination of
a series of related activities that make the HKIR one of the racing world’s
most celebrated events.

The serious action starts three weeks earlier when the HKJC stages
three lead-up races that themselves have International Group Two status
and are open to overseas horses - the Jockey Club Cup, Mile and Sprint,
the last two of which are sponsored by BOCHK Wealth Management.
The 2014 running of the Jockey Club Sprint on 23 November saw
Tony Cruz-trained Peniaphobia, the youngest horse in the field, make
himself an early HKIR favourite by storming to victory in the hands

of Douglas Whyte, while in the Mile, John Moore’s Able Friend took
another step towards international stardom with a resounding win
under Joao Moreira.

The LONGINES Jockey Club Cup produced more of a surprise,
perhaps, as Blazing Speed started out only fourth favourite despite
his name and previous winning record, but seeing off a top-class field
under Neil Callan to give trainer Tony Cruz a second success.
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A season of new racing milestones

Sixteen years after Hong Kong first graduated to the top echelon of world racing
by gaining International Group One status for the Hong Kong Cup in 1999,
season 2014/15 saw the city’s favourite spectator sport attain several notable
new milestones.

For the first time ever, Hong Kong could lay claim to the world’s top-ranked
horse in Able Friend; its total number of International Group One races
increased from six to ten; and four of the existing top-level races were ranked
among the World’s Top 25 for 2014, with the other two in the Top 100 -

a best-ever achievement.

Only the UK has more elite races in the Top 25 with eight, while France is

Hong Kong’s equal with four and Japan and the US have three apiece.

The four Hong Kong races to win that accolade were the Champions Mile (17th),
Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup (19th), LONGINES Hong Kong Mile (22nd equal)

and LONGINES Hong Kong Cup (25th equal).

“This is a phenomenal achievement when you consider that we only had six
International Group One races eligible for consideration in that period,” says
Executive Director of Racing William A Nader. “We have made a strategic
investment in our major races, supported by great quality from our relatively
small population of 1,200 horses. Our marquee events also enjoy the benefit
of being run at a fabulous venue in Sha Tin Racecourse, and have gained
worldwide recognition for excellence.”

Adding further icing to the cake, the 2014 World’s Best Racehorse Rankings
released in January 2015 saw a record 23 Hong Kong-trained horses make the
list, headed by Able Friend who was then ranked joint third in the world.
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Racing

Top-ranking horses, four races in the World's Top 25,
and 10 International Gls cement Hong Kong's reputation
as a powerhouse in world racing
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By April, two more Group One wins by the brilliant five-year-old had
further uplifted Able Friend’s standing and — for the first time ever —
Hong Kong could lay claim to having the top-ranked horse in the world,
tied with North American star Shared Belief.

“This is a great achievement and is a recognition of the world-class
status of Hong Kong racing and our premier brand,” commented

Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges after the April rankings were
announced. “The quality and number of Hong Kong horses at the elite
world level continues to rise and that is down to the hard work of

a lot of people. Able Friend is an outstanding horse and an exciting
asset to Hong Kong racing.”

The very first Hong Kong-trained horse to make the rankings came as
recently as 1998 when Johan Cruyff registered 115, notes Nader.

By 2003 the number of Hong Kong horses in the list had risen rapidly
1o eight and it has been almost continuously on the rise since then.

“For Hong Kong to have the world No.1 in any sport is amazing; to have
it in horse racing is quite incredible.”
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~birth of another Iegend

During the past year, newly-crowned Hong Kong Horse of the Year Able Friend has captured the
imagination of local racing fans in a way not seen since the glory days of the great Silent Witness between
2003 and 2005 — and at the same time drawn the world’s attention to the high quality of Hong Kong racing.
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After a gentle 4th-placed warm up in The Premier Bowl in October, the John Moore-trained gelding went on
to win his next six races in a row, four of them at the top International Group One level — and not just win them,
but saunter home in a casual way that only the greatest horses can, with Joao Moreira barely needing to raise
his whip. Able Friend has now won 11 of his 16 starts in Hong Kong since June 2013.
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When he was racing on Champions Mile day in early May, attendance for the day jumped 18% — but as Club
CEO Winfried Engelbrecht Bresges pointed out “today is not about numbers, it is about the excitement of
having one of the best horses we have had in Hong Kong since Silent Witness”. On a normal day after Race
5, he noted, usually 500 to 600 more people would come into the racecourse, “but today we had 4,000
people arrive to see Able Friend, so we can see the resonance with the public”.

Hardly surprising then, that the end-of-season awards saw Able Friend take the public vote for Most Popular
Horse, as well as the Horse of the Year and Champion Miler titles.

“He’s just outstanding,” observes jockey Moreira. “He just does everything properly. He's a dream horse.
| feel like my dream came true; | found one of the best horses in the world and I'm very pleased at the
opportunity | was given by the trainer and the Owner.”

And Able Friend’s growing status as a new Hong Kong legend is perhaps best summed up by his Owner.
“He is Hong Kong’s horse now, not mine,” says Dr Cornel Li.
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Able Friend with his regular jockey, Joao Moreira.
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Stewards’ Cup heralds Triple Crown battle
o 2R RO =58 T 5

The four new races to be given International Group One ranking
from 2014/15 onwards were the Stewards’ Cup in January,

the Citibank Hong Kong Gold Cup in early March, the Queen’s Silver
Jubilee Cup in mid-March and the Standard Chartered Champions
and Chater Cup in late May. This means they are all now open

for the first time to overseas horses, and have had their prize money
significantly elevated as a result.

With prize money now standing at HK$10 million, the 1600m
Stewards’ Cup — first leg of the Triple Crown — drew a stellar line-up
including three former winners of the race. But none of them

was able to see off the newest big star on the block, Able Friend,
piloted by Joao Moreira to an imperious 1%2-length win over
Beauty Flame.
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_ Racing A season of new racing milestones

Citibank presents:

7

Citibank Hong Kong Gold Cup
EERITE R SR

Hong Kong

Gold Cup

Five weeks later, however, with the 2000m distance keeping Able Friend safely back RAEMENIEERTEESR (ZTK) [P R]IEH
in his stable, reigning Horse of the Year Designs On Rome was able to remind fans of his EESE AR EFEET [HBE] FHEPE—X
still-towering presence with an impressive 1%4-length win over Helene Super Star in the BRREBAREIES  EESHETU—XW5—HA
HK$10 million Citibank Hong Kong Gold Cup, second leg of the Triple Crown — and with CHEENEEERE | W TEAEASSE—TEBIN
that man Moreira again in the saddle. —BABRBES -
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Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup
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Mid-March saw a double billing of top-notch action with the BMW Hong
Kong Derby and Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup run on the same day, and
the latter becoming the first of the new International Group One races to
attract overseas participation, in the shape of veteran Irish raider Gordon
Lord Byron. But once again it was Able Friend’s day as he stormed home
late to see off Beauty Flame by 2Va lengths, despite Moreira being unable
to find clear running until well inside the 200m mark.

D15 QUEEN’S SILVER JUBILEE CUP

The 1400m Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup also serves as the final leg of the
Hong Kong Speed Series, which this time saw the spoils evenly shared
with Tony-Cruz-trained Peniaphobia taking the Kent & Curwen Centenary
Sprint Cup over Sha Tin’s 1000m straight under Douglas Whyte, and
Richard Gibson-trained Gold-Fun winning the 1200m Chairman’s Sprint
Prize under visiting jockey Christophe Soumillon.

ZATREME-BABERALR LR  DRREBFEBITUAER
LERELDE -ERREH [ FRIPE | WL ERELIE
RAEMIBN—RED BEEEINENZNNEE - AW ER
EREBEXR [ FFRIETY - [(PTRIAEENRRE  ERLH—E
WRAAREE —BKE - BE=RDARBRIGEE ) INE EATEY [ X8
ZE| UZXWS—BuZ RER -

BRE-THARNZERELSEREERERINER - &
RINEBMEOMNAEREINIR  BEXRRS [E@EH] XD H
El Kent&CurwenEﬂEiE’\ELT(*Fﬂ—) i B = EFTIAR -
AERMAEGREN [ NEM AIREREERFERERE (—
TEAK) e

M
o

58 | RACING




Racina A season of new racina milestones

KENT&CURWEN
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Centenary
Sprint Cup
HMELSHER

Chairman's
Sprint Prize
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AUDEMARS PIGUET
QEIl CUP
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AUDEMARS F’I%UEF QEIl CUP
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The Hon Chief Justice Geoffrey Ma

Tao-li (right), the Chief Justice of the I
Court of Final Appeal, presents the f' \ ‘
winner’s trophy to Fentons Racing

Syndicate, Owner of AP QEIll Cup

winner Blazing Speed.
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I Racing A season of new racing milestones

Audemars Piguet QFIT Cup
EWLRER

So to the two “Spring Internationals”, the 2000m Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup and the 1600m
Champions Mile, which are already well established in the world calendar as International
Group One races, having enjoyed that status since 2001 and 2007 respectively. And things
certainly didn’t go by the formbook in the first of these, with 14-1 outsider Blazing Speed
seeing off the likes of Australian star Criterion and English veteran Red Cadeaux to storm

to a two-length win over another visiting raider, Japan’s Staphanos. Surprisingly, perhaps,

it was a first-ever success in this race for two-time Champion Trainer Tony Cruz, as well as
a first International Group One win in Hong Kong for jockey Neil Callan.
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Champions Mile
e M

The Champions Mile turned out rather

more predictably with — you've guessed it —

the irrepressible Able Friend taking the honours,
though it hadn’t always looked that way.

Hong Kong Derby winner Luger was sent off

by the fans as a strongly-fancied second
favourite but finished up being eased off by
jockey Zac Purton and was later found to

have an irregular heart rhythm.
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Racing A season of new racing milestones

‘ B BEEE
Standard Chartered Champions & S
Chater Cup W E SRR Champions & Chater Cup

Traditionally the 2400m Standard Chartered Champions & Chater Cup, final leg of the
Triple Crown, has brought Hong Kong'’s black-type racing to a memorable close each
season, and this time proved no different — but with the added excitement of an upgrade
from domestic to International Group One status. Incredibly, it saw five of the eight starters
cross the line within half a length of each other in the most thrilling finish imaginable,

with Helene Super Star just getting the edge under Douglas Whyte to give trainer Tony Cruz
his third consecutive success in this race, and all with different horses.

A fitting end indeed to a season of unprecedented excitement at world-class level for

Hong Kong racing fans — with ten events including the Hong Kong International Races

run at International Group One level, nine of them going to locally-trained runners, and the
emergence of a true new “superstar” horse in Able Friend. Impossible to top? Well maybe,
but time and time again Hong Kong horse racing has shown that it keeps setting the bar
still higher year after year, so don’'t count on it!
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Santa Anita Sprint Championship F Takamatsunomiya Kinen

Al Quoz Sprint
Dubai Sheema Classic
Dubai Golden Shaheen
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More new frontiers conqueredoverseas

It was not only on home turf that Hong Kong horses distinguished themselves in
season 2014/15, with local Owners and trainers giving their top runners a chance
to shine as far afield as the US, UK, Japan and Australia, and claiming no fewer
than four overseas successes at the highest International Group One level.

Since Fairy King Prawn became the first Hong Kong horse to win overseas in
landing the 2000 Yasuda Kinen in Tokyo, the roll has been steadily increasing each
year and now stands at 24 international wins by 19 different horses.

What made the 2014/15 season especially memorable, though, is that it brought
victories in two hitherto unconquered races — Rich Tapestry’s success on dirt in
the G1 Santa Anita Sprint Championship in California and Aerovelocity’s win in the
G1 Takamatsunomiya Kinen in Japan.

Michael Chang-trained Rich Tapestry was only the second Hong Kong horse ever
to compete in the US, following the hoofprints of the legendary River Verdon

in the early 1990s, and was the first to taste success there, creating more than a
few shockwaves in US racing circles. The Santa Anita win under Olivier Doleuze
was enough to put Rich Tapestry among the favourites for his main target,

the Breeders’ Cup Sprint on 1 November, but sadly he was not able to repeat his
winning form this time.

Hong Kong also had strong representation in the Dubai World Cup racing festival
in late March with seven of its horses contesting three different dirt and turf races.
This year, local fans had to be content with two second places by Peniaphobia and
Super Jockey and a third place from Rich Tapestry — still a feat to be proud of in
such world-class company, though.

Olivier Doleuze rides Rich Tapestry to a historic
win in the Santa Anita Sprint Championship.
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Racina A season of new racing milestone

Aerovelocity storms home under Zac Purton to take the
Takamatsunomiya Kinen (left); Peniaphobia (yellow cap) runs a close
second in the Al Quoz Sprint (below); Designs On Rome (No.7, left)
finishes fourth in the Dubai Sheema Classic (centre); and Super
Jockey (No.12) is narrowly beaten in the Dubai Golden Shaheen.
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The most remarkable achievement of all, however, was Hong Kong’s
dominance in taking both International Group One races on Singapore
Airlines International Cup Raceday for the third year on the trot. First,
Paul O’Sullivan-trained Aerovelocity gave a brilliant front-running
performance under Zac Purton to win the KrisFlyer International

Sprint — dashing the hat-trick hopes of eight-year-old Lucky Nine, who
nonetheless finished a creditable third after twice suffering interference.

Then 50 minutes later, Hong Kong’s Dan Excel made history by
becoming the first horse from anywhere to achieve back-to-back wins
in the Singapore Airlines International Cup, likewise leading all the way
under Tommy Berry to see off another top Hong Kong rival, 2013 winner
Military Attack.

Following his earlier success in Japan, Aerovelocity is now in strong
contention for the US$1 million bonus offered for any horse winning legs
of the Global Sprint Challenge in three different jurisdictions during the
same calendar year.
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Regular themed events ensure horse
racing remains a perennial favourite

[t has been said by numerous overseas observers that horse racing in Hong Kong is

an experience unmatched anywhere else in the world: the vibrant atmosphere, the
passion of local racing fans, the world-class facilities and most of all, the sheer volume of
business that goes through the betting channels — anything up to HK$1.7 billion on the
biggest racedays.

Horse racing in Hong Kong began as a pastime for the British elite but over the years
local people have truly made it their own, turning it into an icon of the city’s freewheeling
lifestyle. In a city that works hard and plays hard, it is more than just a sport and
certainly more than just a gambling activity; it is a not-to-be-missed twice-weekly social
relaxation.

Another unusual phenomenon is that while Hong Kong bettors, like everywhere else

in the world, are always eager to snare the success that could change their lives,

they tend to take losing wagers with remarkably good grace — knowing that win or lose,
the proceeds from betting will ultimately find their way back to the community through
The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s not-for-profit business model. They realise that the Club
shares their own goals and dreams and is committed to “Riding High Together for a
Better Future” with the people of Hong Kong.

The major racedays of the season can attract anything up to 100,000 on-course fans,
but even the regular day and night meetings typically draw at least 15,000, despite the
convenience nowadays of being able to follow live broadcasts on their home TVs or
mobile phones. In this respect, Hong Kong is defying a world trend of falling racecourse
attendance, amid growing competition from other forms of entertainment.

Catwalk show on Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse Day.
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The winning Owner, trainer and jockey of Luger enjoy a victory parade on turf after the 2015 BMW Hong Kong Derby.
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Accompanied by Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip (right) and CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges, Chief Secretary Carrie Lam strikes the gong
to signify the opening of the new season.
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Few racedays are as eagerly awaited as the season opening meeting at Sha Tin in early September, when the Club
pulls out all the stops to welcome back racegoers with free door gifts, on-course entertainment programmes and
alluring jackpots. The 2014/15 opener saw attendance reach a record 74,000 for this meeting, including cross-bettors at
Happy Valley, a 12% increase on the previous year.

After Chief Secretary for Administration Carrie Lam struck the traditional gong to declare the new
season open, racing fans were able to enjoy a spectacular lion dance show featuring 130
ceremonial lions, in celebration of the Club’s 130th Anniversary, and a thriling 10-race

card headed as always by the HKSAR Chief Executive’s Cup,

won this time by Joao Moreira on Tony Millard-

trained Golden Harvest.




Racing Every raceday is a special one for Hong Kong fans

Racegoers received a free 130th Anniversary
Racing Calendar on arrival at Sha Tin Racecourse.
The Anniversary was also marked with a
spectacular parade of 130 ceremonial lions.
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Fashion Show participants.
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Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse image girl Gao Yuanyuan.
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November is usually a warm and dry month in Hong Kong, providing the perfect chance
for the sport’s many local female followers to dress up in their finery for Sa Sa Ladies’
Purse Day. This is always the most stylish raceday of the season as well as being one
of the most historic, with the traditions of the Ladies’ Purse feature race dating back to
1846. It was won this time by Packing Liaregyb, trained by Andreas Schutz and ridden
by Mirco Demuro, who went on to notch up a treble for the day.

December brings another type of experience when
many of the world’s finest racehorses, trainers and
jockeys descend on the city for Hong Kong
International Races Week (see pages 44-51),
attracting racing fans from across the globe

and huge international media coverage.

72 | RACING



v ¥

: ‘L‘ﬂ 3 LL’! f

i ] i | Make-up workshops prove a popular attraction (above),

as does a headwear boutique (right).
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_ Lucky Start
: Jan 1 Raceday
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Then with the dawning of a new calendar year, the Club makes
good use of the New Year's Day public holiday to stage a "Lucky
Start" themed raceday offering various special attractions
including an added Triple Trio jackpot. This year almost 68,000
racing fans turned out for the occasion, boosting turnover to

a then season high of aimost HK$1.51 billion. They were able

to enjoy the free door gift of a SOMETHING LUCKY key chain
designed by celebrity Jan Lamb and the chance to meet
popular TV actors Priscilla Wong and Louis Cheung, who

joined the Club's Lucky Cheering Team to play mini-games with

racegoers offering fabulous prizes.

On the track, the day's highlight was the Hong Kong Group
Three Chinese Club Challenge Cup, won by Rewarding Hero

with Neil Callan in the saddle.
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Racing Every raceday is a special one for Hong Kong fans

Popular TV actors Priscilla Wong and Louis
Cheung play mini-games with racegoers.
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(Left) Financial Secretary John Tsang (left) dots the eyes of the ceremonial lion with Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip; and
(right) presents the Chinese New Year Cup to Kenneth Lau Ip-keung, Owner of Real Specialist.
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_ Racing Every raceday is a special one for Hong Kong fans

Chinese New Year Raceday .
2B PR ESH i : C

To experience Hong Kong people’s passion for horse racing at its best, though, there is nothing
that comes close to the Chinese New Year Raceday staged on the third day of Lunar New

Year, when racing fans come from far and wide to put their New Year fortune to the test. It has
drawn such massive crowds in recent years that the Club actually limited publicity this time and
put more focus on the 1 January Raceday instead, to ensure a comfortable environment for all.
Nonetheless more than 91,000 people turned out to welcome the Year of the Goat and turnover
topped an amazing HK$1.7 billion.

Popular local singers Andy Hui, Ram Chiang and Rita Carpio kept the throngs well entertained,
more than HK$680,000 worth of gold-plated ornaments were given away in the lucky draw, and
jockey Joao Moreira took the day’s feature race, the Chinese New Year Cup, on John Size’s star
Real Specialist.
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Trying the windmills of fortune.
ERAErERE-

Racing fans take their chance with lucky bags
of Club merchandise (top); singer Andy Hui
entertains the crowds (centre); the jockeys give
out auspicious symbols.

SHREBFENEERR (B), RFFELH
ERBEE (h) BEREME EHERE-

RACING | 77




BMW i cne

FOUYEQIZ0IAS
10) 112 [)(5)
IR TR SN

N

78 | RACING




The early months of the year also see many of
Hong Kong's top domestic races, most notably
the Four-Year-Old Series which culminates in the
BMW Hong Kong Derby. While every season
nowadays produces an impressive crop of new
rising stars, there is rarely one horse that stands
out above the others at this stage, and more
often than not these three Hong Kong Group
One races produce some unexpected winners.

So it proved this year with Tony Cruz-trained
Beauty Only taking a surprise victory in the first
leg in January, the 1600m Hong Kong Classic
Mile, storming home late under Neil Callan

to see off the hot favourites, twin greys Divine
Calling and Giant Treasure, by more than two
lengths. And there was a further shock in store
a month later in the 1800m Hong Kong Classic
Cup, which saw outsider Thunder Fantasy,
trained by John Size and ridden by Karis Teetan,
prevail by no more than a nose from favourite
Redkirk Warrior.

Both winners also lined up in the 2000m final
leg on 15 March, eyeing the once-in-a lifetime
accolade of BMW Hong Kong Derby winner,
but they could only finish sixth and eighth
respectively as the honours went instead to

a horse that had kept its powder dry for the
opening two legs, John Size-trained Luger.
Ridden by Zac Purton for the first time, Luger
cruised to a three-quarter length victory over
the fast-closing Got Fly and Romantic Touch.

The Derby showpiece attracted a crowd

of over 64,000 fans, the highest since 1998,

for a memorable day of racing which also
featured the Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup, newly
elevated to International Group One status;

an appearance by martial arts movie star Donnie
Yen, this year’s BMW Derby Ambassador;

the grand finals of a Derby phone-in quiz game;
and a new collection of Derby merchandise.

Zac Purton celebrates his Derby success on Luger.

Winning connections go on a victory parade.
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Fiighteen years on,
the racing continues

As the season draws to a close, a major draw is the Hong Kong Reunification
Raceday on the 1 July public holiday, with Sha Tin Racecourse one of the most
popular places for local residents and visitors to mark the SAR’s establishment

in 1997. This year was no exception, as more than 23,000 racegoers turned out
on the 18th Anniversary of the handover to enjoy a themed programme of special
oncourse attractions, with face-painting booths proving a favourite.

On the track, the sweltering heat proved no deterrent to rising all-weather
track specialist Gun Pit, trained by Caspar Fownes, who broke his own course
record with Zac Purton aboard to take the Hong Kong Reunification Cup.
David Hall-trained Solar Hei Hei, ridden by Brett Prebble, won the day’s other
feature race, the Guangdong—Hong Kong Cup. Run for the first time in 2014,
this trophy recognises the growing co-operation between Hong Kong and
Guangdong, notably in the area of sports development, as exemplified by the
donation of retired racehorses to the Guangdong Equestrian Team for training
and competition, the Club’s co-hosting of the 2010 Guangzhou Asian Games
equestrian events, and its sponsorship of the final leg of the 2014 LONGINES
China Tour in Guangzhou.
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_ Racing Every raceday is a special one for Hong Kong fans
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fans swarm to celebrate
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Incredible s s
record-setting season”

It’s always a day of mixed emotions for Hong Kong’s dedicated racing fans when the season
finally draws to a close in mid-July — fond memories to recall of the year’s thriling on-track
moments, yet sadness as they contemplate an eight-week abstinence from their favourite sport.
Happy or sad, though, the end-of-season meeting offers another great excuse to party!

It was certainly an atmosphere of celebration at this year’s finale meeting on 12 July, with 42,000
fans turning out at Sha Tin and Happy Valley — an 8.9% increase on the previous year — and
turnover for the day reaching an eye-popping HK$1.76 billion. And while this time there were

no right-to-the wire battles for the major titles, there was no shortage of landmarks to celebrate
either in what Chief Executive Officer Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges termed an “incredible
record-setting season”.

Turnover for the season set a new record, total attendance at 2.07 million was the highest for 12
years, and Champion Jockey Joao Moreira simply left the previous nine-year-old record in the
dust by riding an amazing 145 winners, rounding up his feat in style with a last-day quadruple.

In the season when the HKJC marked its 130th Anniversary, Hong Kong-trained horses excelled
at home and abroad, winning nine out of ten Group 1 races on home turf and breaking new
ground at international level.

Mr Engelbrecht-Bresges stressed that these milestones had not been achieved easily, but
resulted from a lot of hard work behind the scenes. “Since the 2005/06 season, turnover has
increased 79.7%, which is testament to the successful strategies the Club has undertaken in
that time to revitalise Hong Kong horse racing,”
he observed. “This in turn provided a record
tax contribution from racing of HK$12.3 billion,
which means that horse racing has again been
able to make a significant positive contribution
to the Hong Kong community.”

Nevertheless, Mr Engelbrecht-Bresges added,
“it is not for us to rest on our laurels. Our
goal is to further improve, even though the
economic circumstances for next season,
we think, are a little bit more challenging.
But we always have an optimistic outlook for
the future.”

Watched by his son and mother, John Moore gives the thumbs-up as he receives the Champion
Trainer's trophy from Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip; (below) jockeys in the starting stalls throw
souvenirs to the crowd.
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_ Racing Every raceaay is a special one for Hong Kong fans

BELATHNBEZERA - ABRMAEFTRESLERSE - AJEW 2RERIFEAITERESLH  BABABE_AZLEAR 8+
2 FABERMESNESAMAEREFEE - AHEEK 1 FRHE EEEERMEENERZARGOE  EARAERS AN+
ER—KRH CMAKEENEFTEDKSHBNREN\EZH - AW TSHEE  TRERBNFNLE  RESTHERRE LEXaiR -
EWINE - BEENABFRYERRIBFEENFREE!

SEEEFE - A=-TEFLS  NEJRNENER ML BINEEGR
SENEHMBEBEEREAT - RE-FEENHERSTET - £ BHbEe RAERTNTE-GEPHTLEREE - £ERSETIRGE
BENE_THBRIPBARBSHESEE  ABBREFLAEY BRH -
ZNEN - BROIBROTLEARTEEL - #R—RTEA
SHEZENEHBERTHETORERETE  BEEXNIZER
BUNEZ  MEEESSTRARERAUELEESELAR
[BRISSARLENSEE] -

Champion Jockey Joao Moreira enjoys the fans' adulation. BEBMEFNIES EREBTRE -
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Joao Moreira holds aloft the Champion Jockey's trophy accompanied by his son and

watched by Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip (centre) and Deputy Chairman Anthony Chow.
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Besides cheering on their favourites in a packed farewell programme
of 11 races, fans were able to enjoy the traditional Jockeys’ Parade
and witness the crowning of the season’s best-performing jockeys
and trainers.

The Champion Jockey title went, of course, to Joao Moreira for his
astonishing 145 victories, while John Moore notched up 70 wins
to edge out John Size for the Champion Trainer title and, more
significantly, earn his connections a record HK$139.9 million in
stakes money. Vincent Ho took the Best Freelance Jockey title,
awarded for the first time.

Two nights earlier, the rest of the coveted Champion Awards had
been presented at a glittering ceremony at the Grand Hyatt hotel.
Top prize of Horse of the Year went to Able Friend for his six victories
in the season including four at the highest International Group One
level — a performance which took him to equal top of the world
rankings in April, a feat unprecedented for a Hong Kong-trained
horse. The John Moore-trained Able Friend was also named
Champion Miler and not surprisingly, won the public vote for most
Popular Horse.

Paul O’Sullivan-trained Aerovelocity was crowned Champion Sprinter
in recognition of his feat in winning Group One events in three
different countries and regions — Hong Kong, Japan and Singapore.
Last year’s Horse of the Year Designs On Rome was named
Champion Middle-Distance Horse, while the Champion Stayer title
went to Tony Cruz-trained Helene Super Star.

Lifetime Achievement Awards were bestowed on two great
champion horses who retired during the season — California Memory,
the only two-time winner of the G1 Hong Kong Cup, and Ambitious
Dragon, a two-time Horse of the Year.




- Racing Every raceaay Is a special one for Hong Kong fans
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BRETEE  WEARERRTECF - Winning Owners in the 2014/15 Champion Awards line-up for a group photo; (below) Dr Cornel Li,
Owner of triple prizewinner Able Friend.
FRESEA [RER] BRHESS - HARIM —O-M/-EFEBEABREGREEALE (T)ZHEE (5K | NEETREBE

B=ETEBEREMER B —RBENEERIR - &
ERRENRS -  LFEFFEEFT [HME]
AEERHETERS  ERESHRGNHS
REETH [EEEE]| &F-

2014/15 Champion Awards -o-r/ -z=sze 5=

R IR e E T | Horseofthe Year BB E Able Friend %%

AR (—RE)WER  MEEARMERTESE - Champion Sprinter &{E52% 5 Aerovelocity %1%
Champion Miler & fE— 25 Able Friend 55 7%
Champion Middle-Distance Horse &{E/ BB Designs On Rome EFA1E
Champion Stayer &fER%ES Helene Super Star S&E £
Champion Griffin &5 5 Thewizardofoz 2 Hi+
Most Improved Horse & A5 5 Ut Contentment X4
Champion Trainer & & 4k 5 £ John Moore ¥J#EEz:
Champion Jockey & E E5ED Joao Moreira EEH1
Best Freelance Jockey &% B B & 55k Vincent Ho f;£52
Most Popular Horse of the Year* &3 &30 B T* Able Friend %
Most Popular Jockey of the Year* & &0 56T Joao Moreira EE 11
Most Admired Overseas Horse* Solow (France) &LEZR (EH)
BREEBERMREGIHNET
Lifetime Achievement Awards Ambitious Dragon /0 E3E
KBRS California Memory 1N &2

* public vote A RIEEE
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Hong Kong-trained horses that achieved an international
rating of 115 or above in 2014/15 -o-r/ -s=esamss—a—+z29s rrarsn

Rating s¥% Horse 5Tt Trainer ZREEM
127 ABLE FRIEND %% John Moore #J#§EETE
123 DESIGNS ON ROME Ef%  John Moore #J#EE s
123 MILITARY ATTACK E%£ &  Caspar Fownes 5 &4
122 GOLD-FUN KiE&} Richard Gibson & 1{A 3T
121 BLAZING SPEED # % Anthony Cruz 53R E
119 DAN EXCEL fE B &R John Moore #$EERR
118 AEROVELOCITY K%# Paul O’Sullivan g {RZ&
117 AMBITIOUS DRAGON 1/ EEE Anthony Millard &1212
117 BEAUTY FLAME B2 2 Anthony Cruz 53R E
117 LUCKY NINE XX Caspar Fownes 75 &4
117 PENIAPHOBIA =1&815 & Anthony Cruz &R
116 DUNDONNELL =] # Richard Gibson S{8 %
116 GLORIOUS DAYS %% 8 ¥ John Size £#5
116 PACKING LLAREGYB 8%+ Andreas Schutz f#E&
116 RICH TAPESTRY %4t Michael Chang #5{& {2
116 WILLIE CAZALS BERImE Anthony Cruz 53R
115 AMBER SKY =1L & Ricky Yiu Bk &
115 BUNDLE OF JOY E&: David Hall E&
115 CHARLES THE GREAT — & John Moore #J#§EEtn
115 ENDOWING =& John Size x5
115 HELENE SUPER STAR Z3E £ Anthony Cruz R /fE
115 LUGER &% & John Size 4%
115 REWARDING HERO 8581  John Moore #J#EEa
115 SUPER JOCKEY 1&%1& Anthony Millard &2

Owner $*

Dr & Mrs Cornel Li Fook Kwan Z{R2 B4 & K A
Cheng Keung Fai Z53&1E

Canny Leung Chi Shan Z 1t}

Pan Sutong & & 8

Fentons Racing Syndicate #F &% & &5

David Philip Boehm 2 X &

Daniel Yeung Ngai 5%

Johnson Lam Pui Hung & Anderson Lam Hin Yue
MIE I B FRR

Kwok Siu Ming 28488

Dr Chang Fuk To & Maria Chang Lee Ming Shum
RIEEEBEEREHND

Huang Kai Wen =85

Elizabeth Lee Ho Ling Z=6% 32

Tom Brown’s Syndicate B 5% 443
Lee Man Yan Z=X &

Silas Yang Siu Shun, Wong Tak Wai, Ho Chi Keung & Cheung Yuk Tak
HRE - EREE - IRRERER

Eugene Chuang Yue Chien H & B2

Hung Kam Po £ £ &

Mr & Mrs Colin Lo Chor Cheong EEE 4 & K A

Julian Hui Chun Hang & Michele Monique Reis 5F& F E2Z= % fix
Ada Wong Yin Man £ E#

Wilson Woo Ka Wah, Dawson Woo Ka Chung & Jackson Woo Ka Biu
BASKEE « HAREREEHAZREE

Terry Fok Kwong Hang Z&E1T
Lee Fung Tai Z& %
Tony Lau Yiu Tong & Thomas Lau Sum Fai 2232 E8 2|\ iE

Note: All ratings to be ratified by the LONGINES World's Best Racehorse Rankings Conference in December 2015.
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Racing Statistics | # s=#%% 8%

Average Races per Runner
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Total Prize Money per Season (HK$M)
BFEReEHE(EBER)

w15 7]

13/14 890
12/13 858
11/12 826
10/11 785
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Average Runners per Race
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Percentage of Winning Favourites (Handicap Races)
REPIRS = GRIRES)

14/15 31.7
13/14 31.2
12/13 271
11/12 26.5
10/11 31.4
0 7 14 21 28 35

Number of Horses Winning Prize Money
(% to Individual Runners)

BEREFCHA HHEFTAHFILL)

14/15 979 (76.4%)

13/14 982 (77.2%)

12/13

11/12 991 (76.2%)
10/11 960 (75.2%)

1,000

968 (75.4%)

0 200 400 600 800

Winning Margin (Handicap Races)
e ER EEES)

141 | —)
L2 S 67.5
e 36.0 -
1712 - 63.9
eyl — 66.0
0 20 40 60 80

@D Winning margin (%) neck or less
BEER (At TR —FHEY

@D Winning margin (%) length or less
BaER(5oth) TEB— B

Prize Money - International Races (HK$M)
ERESRE (B8ET)

kel o T
13/14“_5
12/13 W-ﬂ
1112 [T 20 14
o/t s 16 14
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@D “LONGINES Hong Kong Cup SREXREBE
@D “LONGINES Hong Kong Mile SREXRE B — 1272
@D | ONGINES Hong Kong Vase SREXRE B
*LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint SREXEBERIRE
@ Audemars Piguet QFll Cup B L 2R
Champions Mile BE —12#&

* Sponsor from 2012/13
H=0—=/ —=FEFZMMTHEL

@ Stewards’ Cup EBHR

@D Citibank Hong Kong Gold Cup TEIERITEBEER

@D Standard Chartered Champions & Chater Cup T BB ZET &
@D Queen's Silver Jubilee Cup Z 2RELSE
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Membership

Members of The Hong Kong Jockey Club have long been
accustomed to enjoying some of the finest private clubhouse
services in Asia. And in the year which saw the Club celebrate its
130th Anniversary, it is only fitting that work should begin on a
major addition to its flagship clubhouse in Happy Valley.

Taken together with ongoing renovations and service
improvements, including a very substantial investment in
racecourse facilities, Members are set to enjoy a whole

new era of first-class hospitality.
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“We had a truly great time

and all of our guests did too!
I shall have no hesitation
in recommending the Club
for a variety of social and
business occasions.”

Mr Sidney To
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Happy Valley Clubhouse
spearheads drive for

ever-enhanced services

After several years of extensive planning, design work
and consultation with stakeholders, work is now going
full steam ahead on a superlative new extension to the
Happy Valley Clubhouse.

Located on the site of the former stables block in

Shan Kwong Road, the new extension will feature a
four-storey clubhouse offering a range of food,

beverage and sports venues. This will stand on top of

a five-storey podium, which will provide car parking
spaces and back-of-house facilities. In between will be
a 50-metre pool deck. The extension buildings will have
their own separate entrance and drop-off area and

be linked by covered bridges to the existing clubhouse.

Demolition work on the stables block has already

been completed and foundation works have recently
begun. As part of the redevelopment project, improvements
will also be made to the adjacent Shan Kwong Road

public park, which is managed by the Club.

Besides providing more space and facilities for existing
Members, the new extension will enable the Club to offer
a much wider range of sports and recreation facilities
catering to all ages and tastes. These will include family
areas and more choices of dining and entertainment
venues, based on surveys of Members’ current and future
expectations.

And further good news for Club Members is that they
won't need to wait for the extension to enjoy upgraded
facilities at Happy Valley and the two other Hong Kong
clubhouses at Sha Tin and Beas River, as a continued
programme of renovations and refurbishments is also
planned. Since 2010 alone, some HK$257 million has
been invested in clubhouse enhancements.

During the past 12 months, improvements to Members’
clubhouse facilities have included full renovation of the
chalet rooms and lawns at Beas River Country Club, as
well as the Derby Restaurant and LEVADE at Happy Valley
Clubhouse.



“I can’t even begin to tell you how much

|

we appreciate your help in making our day

so special. The food was fantastic and

your staff did a great job. Everyone told us

it was one of the best wedding receptions
that they had ever been to.”

Mr & Mrs Kan
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Membership

“As always the food, service and
hospitality was wonderful.

The friendliness, hospitality, service
and consistency of the food are

the reasons we continue to enjoy
the Horseshoe Grill.”

Mr Randy Witt
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Randy Witt 564
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Substantial refurbishments have also been carried out during the past two years at the
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse, which was opened in 2008 to cater to the
needs of Members visiting the capital for business or leisure. It has attracted over 900
prestigious Mainland-based Members since then. Based on feedback from Members
during the first five years of operation, the Club has now completed an extensive
renovation which includes the provision of more private rooms, a relocation of the
LEVADE gift shop and a very stylish expansion and renovation of The Library.

In fact both the latter projects won recognition in the 2014/15 International Property
Awards, the LEVADE being named “Best International Retail Interior” and The Library
“Best International Leisure Interior”. In addition, Beijing Clubhouse was named “Most
Influential Club of 2014” by International Club Magazine, and its Capital restaurant was
honoured by Sohu.com as one of the “Best 50 Restaurants” .

The Beijing Clubhouse also offers accommodation and continues to be a popular
stopping point for Hong Kong-based Members visiting Beijing, with more than 11,000
having stayed there since 2008.

“I am always well looked after
when [ stay at Beijing Clubhouse.
Senior management of Beijing
Clubhouse are truly outstanding.”

Mr Moses Cheng
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At Beijing CIubhOL-Jse the new-look LEVADE shop (left) and Library
I REEEIFEMNLEVADE () FBEE (h)  URFER (h)  SEEEBTERE

92 / MEMBERSHIP

L =

(centre) were both honoured this year, as was The Capital restaurant (right).
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Refreshing the
raceday experience

Besides the ongoing programme of clubhouse
enhancements, an even more extensive programme

of improvements to Members’ facilities at the two
racecourses continues apace. Major refurbishments
completed at Sha Tin Racecourse in time for the

130th Anniversary racing season include an extensive
refreshment of the popular Paddock restaurant;

a renovation of the Young Members Box; an extension
to The Racing Club; and a dedicated box for the serious
racegoer.

The Paddock restaurant refurbishment exemplifies
the Club’s strategy of positioning racing not just as

a sporting and betting activity but as a vibrant social
experience, with facilities and services continuously
upgraded to meet growing customer expectations. It
offers Members enhanced ambience and comfort, a
new outdoor dining area overlooking the racing action,
and three semi-private boxes.

The enhancements to the Young Members Box and

The Racing Club reflect another key objective, namely

to attract a new generation of young racing enthusiasts
to the sport in order to ensure its long-term sustainability.

The Young Members Box is equipped with interactive New and refurbished venues at Sha Tin Racecourse include the Paddock restaurant (top),
tablet tables which are helping to transform racing into the Young Members Box (above) and The Monopoly (left).

anew digital experience, while dedicated Racing AQVISOrs sy, e 0 540 2 565 4w g 330 15 BLE BB BB (J) - Young Members B (1) RIBREF () -
are on hand to offer advice.

The Monopoly, meanwhile, is a brand new facility
intended to meet the demand of another important target
sector. It provides a premium service for those Members BRTEOFERSEIEN  RESSHNSERERNZEERETREXN RIEER

who take their betting seriously and seek a dedicated ET RE2 A =-THEFSZERTANNPHESEZPH IEEE  AXEIN
wagering and dining environment. GHE2EEHETIIE - Young MembersfFEHRIETIE - SRR SIERE - URBERTHK

SRR ©

BEMmES TR - R MRS TI R U OEEER SR NNE  RETERN
EHEE - BSESTERYESEONRNR  MARREEREYED - @HERD
SHEIERBNRH =HAEE RS ELMRABARE - SR % - BEFE - HEE
=5 -

Young Members lEERFHHRENNETE BEEHENEZ—XZB8T 2R —K
B MREGEHFEREERE ° Young MembersfiER A BB FIREIHR - Bk
HEBEKEFEFER  THAEAAESTEN  BERAGEIRHER -
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Club chefs and a selection of their award winning dishes from the

“3rd Gourmet Master Chefs International Challenge” (right page).
5 2014 BB EEREAE NEEHMREEREN(R):

B 1KY NP 7

Journey fo
excellence

The creation of tailor-made, world-class facilities is only one part of the recipe that has
made Club Membership so sought after; equally important is the Club’s dedication

to providing the highest-possible standards of customer service. Last December,
Membership Services Division launched a new phase of its “‘Journey To Excellence”
training programme, first conceived and implemented as far back as 2001. The latest
programme takes the theme of “Achieving Consistency” and emphasises the need for
Club staff to maintain a proactive mindset and offer consistently high standards of service
throughout their daily operations. Over 1,200 of the Division’s full-time staff will go through
this training in the coming months.

Many Club staff have won awards over the years for their service standards or culinary
skills. In the “Worldskills Hong Kong Competition” in June 2014, Junior Cook Leung
Chung-hin from the Centurion at Sha Tin Clubhouse won the Cooking category and
later went on to the world finals in Brazil. A month later, eight chefs from the Racecourse
Catering team and Moon Koon Restaurant at Happy Valley took top honours at the

“8rd Gourmet Master Chefs International Challenge”, winning the coveted overall
Champion Award along with two Gold Medals with Distinction, one Silver Medal and two
presentation awards.
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“Worldskills Hong Kong Competition 2014” (right) and
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Reach for the top!
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Membership
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Just as important for diners is high attention to food
hygiene and safety. Recently, the Club was named
worldwide “Client of the Year” for 2014 by Total Quality
Certification Services International (TQCSI) for its
outstanding achievements in food safety systems at its
Racecourses and Clubhouses. This fully accredited, S,
third party certification body evaluates 6,000 clients from H —
around the globe in deciding its awards.

s li.ucl,e,t?- 01 l]n.‘]”" 7

RIKBSN  RMLZE2REEREKES - & 588
HEARNSEREMRYER RS  BTQCSIFFA=O
—MEREERKERP - TQCSINEX R AIHE =77 758
RISE - ARIRBHANTREPHIE LR -

While the importance of maintaining its historic traditions
of fine food and service is always at the forefront,

the Club is never afraid to move into the digital age as
part of its quest to keep upgrading customer service
standards. A sophisticated Customer Management
Service, now in place for more than 10 years, enables
staff to keep track of each Member’s preferences and
ensure these are met each time without needing to ask.
Other systems keep detailed logs of food purchases so
that freshness of ingredients can be constantly ensured,
and the source of any food item instantly rechecked.

HACCP Certified
ALU1010D-HC

£00Z:9p00 dDIVH IS00L

Even the Members’ long-established monthly magazine
Badges has recently gone digital in the interests of the
environment. Since February, Members can choose

to download each issue to their iPads. They can also
quickly source articles from older issues.
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BHELETEFR - B A% - @ BARiPad TEHEHN
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Helping hands

A number of Membership staff go beyond simply offering
top service during working hours, and also contribute

to the community in their spare time. Last October a group of

chefs from the Catering Department took part in the

“11th International Chefs Day” to help prepare a sumptuous
feast for mentally-challenged guests from the Hong Chi
Association and the Fu Hong Society. In support of this
worthy cause, Happy Valley Clubhouse also donated salad
and soup for the buffet.

Meanwhile Beijing Clubhouse operates a volunteer
programme through which Members and staff visit rural
schools and foster care centres, among other regular
activities. Last December, this programme received the
“2014 China Corporate Social Responsibility Excellence”
award from China Philanthropy Times, an award supervised
by the Ministry of Civil Affairs which is aimed at contributing
to the development of China’s philanthropic affairs and
socialist spirit by establishing a platform for communication
and social co-operation.
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Club Members
pitch in to

130th Anniversary

celebrations

Along with Hong Kong's legion of racing fans and beneficiaries
of the Club’s community donations, Jockey Club Members
turned out in force to celebrate the Club’s 130th Anniversary.

For the 130th Anniversary raceday on Saturday 10 January,
Members were amongst 74,000 race fans who cheered
home Key Witness as he won the HKJC 130th Anniversary
Cup. In many venues Members also enjoyed a special
buffet and set menus for just HK$130 a head. A further
130th Anniversary offer that extended right to the end of
June was a 13% discount on all food and beverage dine-in
items at the Hong Kong and Beijing Clubhouse restaurants.

For many Members a highlight was the spectacular equestrian
show, CAVALIA, which the Club brought to Hong Kong
especially for the Anniversary celebrations. An exclusive gala
performance was arranged for Members, who were also able
to book discount tickets for other nights.

Another event that had a 130th Anniversary flavour to

it was the Club’s annual Members’ Day raceday at Sha Tin
Racecourse in late June. And as Members’ Day coincided this
year with Fathers Day, fathers who dined with their

family were offered a complimentary bottle of champagne.

It was also heartening in such a memorable year to see
Members participating in a special Dining for Charity
programme. Funds raised were donated to the New Life
Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association.

on Monday to We.
at all Clubhy
de high
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Jockey Club

“I am delighted to see the Club taking
the initiative to establish CLLAP for Youth@JC.
By adopting an innovative cross-sectoral
approach the programme will surely
be a powerful tool to help youngsters map
out their career and life pathways.”

Dr Philemon Choi, Founder of Breakthrough and Member of the Advisory Committee of CLAP for Youth @ JC
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Youthfor
Innovation
GCLAP for Youth @ JC
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In April the Charities Trust announced its first youth initiative, providing HK$500 million
to establish Career and Life Adventure Planning for Youth, otherwise known as CLAP for
Youth @ JC.

CLAP for Youth @ JC aims to achieve a paradigm shift in the way young people perceive
and map out their future career and life pathways. Targeting school students, and also
non-engaged young people who, for various reasons are not in education, employment,
or training, it provides a holistic career and life planning programme, which aims to

show young people that, regardless of their educational background and personal
circumstances, there is a valid future career and life path open to them, and there is a role
for them in society.

To achieve these results the Club will actively steer the project, working in cross-sectoral
partnership with The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong Baptist University,

The Hong Kong Association of Careers Masters and Guidance Masters, The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service, NGOs, parent and youth groups, Government bureaux and
departments and the business sector. Through this partnership the Club aims to introduce
a best practice model as well as to build the professional capacity of the welfare and
education sectors, such that the programme can be sustained long-term.

CLAP for Youth @ JC will be implemented over a five year period starting from May 2015.
Indeed, such has been the demand from schools that, in addition to the 50 network schools
initially planned, 160 additional affiliated schools will be supported over the first two years.
Leading up to this, in July, a two day conference provided a forum for teachers and social
workers to learn from overseas experts. Meanwhile, to reach out to non-engaged youth, five
district service teams operated by five NGO partners will be launched in September. A one-
stop e-platform will also provide advice to young people on developing individualised career
profiles and further study, career and interview skills, as well as helping them explore their
career related attributes. And to give young people practical experience, business partners
will be invited to offer internship and mentorship opportunities.

The extraordinary level of interest in CLAP for Youth @ JC shows there is an urgent need
for this type of proactive intervention to help our young people make the transition to
adulthood. Working together with our partners, we look forward to some positive results
over the next few years.

Chatrities
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Canoeing athlete Angel Ho (right) and windsurfing athlete Cheng
Kwok-fai (left) share their experiences of career and life planning.
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Let’s celebrate! Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip (above) congratulates Jockey Club Scholars, while Executive
Director, Charities and Community Leong Cheung (below) gives the thumbs up to the latest students to benefit
from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Music and Dance Fund Scholarships.

REMERZLBT I FEIFESHTEI(L E-—RRESBREBER MBSERHLEEHHTERERS(T)
NEF - EEEEESSLRERERESRESEE-

expand in scope and scale

Since its establishment in 1998, the Jockey Club Scholarship Scheme has provided
financial support to some of our best and brightest undergraduate students studying at
Hong Kong tertiary institutions. Today, over 400 students, past and present, from both
Hong Kong and Mainland China, are proud to call themselves Jockey Club Scholars.

Now, in line with its commitment to supporting the broad range of youth development
needs, the Trust is planning a significant expansion in scope. Scholarships will be provided
to students with special educational needs, helping to relieve the often challenging
circumstances in which they live and study. Scholarships will also be extended to students
undertaking vocational training; giving important recognition and support to young people
who will ultimately form the backbone of Hong Kong’s skill and manpower base. Lastly,

a new overseas postgraduate scholarship will support graduates wishing to pursue
postgraduate studies at the world’s top universities overseas.

Taken together with The Hong Kong Jockey Club Music and Dance Fund Scholarships,
which support performing arts students, this expansion means the Trust now supports a
broad range of undergraduate, postgraduate and vocational students, studying in Hong
Kong and overseas. In total some 70 students a year will now be supported in their studies.

A unique feature of the Jockey Club Scholarship Scheme is the opportunity it provides
Scholars to involve themselves in the community through membership of the JC
Scholarship Alumni and through participation in Trust-funded charity projects. In doing so
the Club hopes that Scholars will come to share its ethos of giving back to society, and
will be inspired to take up community leadership roles later in their careers. To strengthen
the Alumni’s networking, the Trust is now planning to invest significant resources to

help Scholars reach out more extensively across the community. Training programmes,
voluntary activities and networking events will be organised, while overseas leadership
programmes arranged in partnership with top international universities will develop
Scholars’ vision as global leaders.
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Jockey Club Scholars at the celebratory dinner.
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Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip (5th right) and CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
(5th left) join heads of Hong Kong tertiary institutions, Club Stewards and

It's been a MaD world for Hong Kong youngsters over the last five years.
Or at least it has since the establishment of the Make a Difference (MaD) Forum
in 2010 and the Jockey Club MaD School in 2012, both with Trust support.

Established to promote creativity and to inspire young people to be
change-makers in the community, MaD has reached over 9,000 young
people, generating proposals to bring community organic farming to low
income families and projects to promote creativity through the arts.

A highlight is the three-day annual MaD Forum, which this year was attended

by Financial Secretary John Tsang and the Club’s CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-
Bresges. Joining 1,300 aspiring change-makers from 150 cities across Asia, they
discussed the theme of A Village Reimagined: how to apply the “villager” mindset
of sharing and respect to wider social and development issues.
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Cognitive and motor skills activities help dementia patients at the Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing (right),
while elderly and Alzheimer patients stimulate their visual senses through specially designed workshops activities
under the “Journey for Active Minds: Jockey Club Museum Programme for the Elderly” (above).

EEEBRMERCERERZIRARESENRIIR (F): [EBEE — BEFSRMTFE] 2IHE5
RETHN TS RIMRERMRIGERENRE (b)-

“Changing social attitudes via its pilot schemes,
the Club is always at the frontier of

enhancing elderly well-being and helping us
build Hong Kong into an age-friendly city.”

Professor Alfred Chan Cheung-ming, Chairman of the Elderly Commission
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Elderly for Care
RERPHE

Hong Kong’s elderly population stands at about 1.07 million, meaning that one in seven
people is aged 65 or above. This ratio is set to rise to one in three by 2041. As a result,
it is widely recognised that Hong Kong needs to create an inclusive and accessible
environment that is responsive to the needs of the elderly and which facilitates active
ageing. In short, Hong Kong needs to become an age-friendly city.

The Club’s Charities Trust has been a long-standing supporter of projects to address the
needs of the elderly. For example, this year is the 15th anniversary of the Jockey Club
Centre for Positive Ageing, a pioneering initiative established together with The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and the Hospital Authority to meet the diverse needs of elderly
with dementia. In 2006, the Charities Trust also launched the HK$380 million CADENZA
project together with academic institutions, Government departments and social welfare
groups to explore and pioneer new approaches to elderly care.

Building on this experience, the Charities Trust has further developed its Elderly for Care
strategy. In particular, it is focusing on promoting active, healthy and more socially-
inclusive ageing, and in support of this building awareness amongst younger age
groups of what they can do to help. The intention is to enable the elderly to maintain a
higher degree of physical and mental well-being as they go through the ageing process
while at the same time promoting intergenerational harmony by engaging younger
people in their support.
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Elderly volunteers prepare to take their turn at the opening of one of the service

units of the South Kwai Chung Service Centre, renovated with Charities Trust
funding in support of the “Jockey Club Happy Golden Year Project”, designed
to help build the Kwai Tsing District into an age-friendly community.
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To facilitate its work, and in order to have a better
understanding of the needs of the elderly, the Charities
Trust is helping to develop an index to measure the well-
being of the elderly population. This AgeWatch Index,
which is being compiled by The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Jockey Club Institute of Ageing, will utilise
the domains of the Global AgeWatch Index issued by
HelpAge International to monitor trends over a five year
period from 2015 to 2019. This will enable Hong Kong
to be compared with, and ranked amongst, countries
and territories world-wide, and provide a basis for
identifying areas where elderly services may need to be
devised or revised.

Looking ahead, and taking reference from the World
Health Organisation’s (WHO) Global Network of Age-
friendly Cities and Communities, the Trust is aiming to
develop a District-based approach to promote active
ageing; engaging stakeholders at the local level to
conduct surveys, and based on the results developing
initiatives to improve age-friendliness in their districts. The
Trust is also planning a territory-wide publicity campaign
to promote awareness amongst younger age groups

of how they can help elderly friends and relatives live
healthier, more socially-connected and more active lives.
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Pioneering
dementia care in Hong Kong

When it opened in 2000, the Jockey Club Centre for ABBTEATARIA EREEREE —UXERIEY
Positive Ageing represented a major step forward in the 2. BESELBRAN_O0COFMAE  AME(EREER

provision of care for the elderly with dementia, a condition FRRBH —KEE -
which affects some 1 in 10 of people aged 65 and above.
ERERBEBRIXAREERE  RERESEREMER

Managed by The Chinese University of Hong Kong the % BERMAEREFEFINIR TABEMNBEERHEX
Centre provides much needed help for people with EIRTS - EIRERANES - RFALEAERERE
dementia, including cognitive and daily living training. It FRFIAR - TREFTIGRILAE B 5 TRE RS 3T -

also provides carer support services to help relieve stress

amongst family members, as well as practical training for ERABREREAOEREELR  KER(LDEBEAZUNG

welfare professionals and research on dementia care. RECHIE N - BElt - BEEBRS [RERE] BHEE
ATEHE -

With Hong Kong'’s elderly population set to grow,

the number of those suffering from dementia will rise

proportionately; a situation which makes the creation of

an age-friendly city all the more of an imperative.
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Sports for Hope

“I would like to thank the Jockey Club for
their outstanding support for the Hong Kong
Sports Institute over the past 30 years. The
Club’s support has been of huge benefit for the
development of the Institute.”

Carlson Tong, Chairman, Hong Kong Sports Institue
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Sports for Hope is about using sport as a positive force for good in society. On an individual
level it aims to help people improve and maintain their standard of health and fitness,

and to do so across the full span of their lives. Collectively, it seeks to build social bonds
through encouraging people to participate in community sporting activities and team
sports. Sports for Hope also targets those who show a special talent for sport, nurturing
them as they develop their sporting careers. And it seeks to bring pride to Hong Kong
through raising the city’s profile as a centre for major international sporting events.

Sportovation rmzwme) smmsmn

SEXHBEEHEAURYHEREERTE  BBEP/IL
XA  EEAEEMS  SesERBTREZE
i *ﬁ&@Ai:EK%EE’%éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁHﬁ
WHOREEHRERED  MEBHE - SRS
NELE/EMAt %MW%E%§$¥*ﬁﬁﬁ%%
BERRENBEREERENDL

puts the fun back into exercise

Sports of all kinds are widely played across Hong Kong and yet there are many individuals
who participate rarely, if at all, and therefore miss out on opportunities to socialise with

their peers and to build their health, well-being and mental strength. It is to address such
individuals at all levels - children, young people, adults and the elderly - that the Trust has
developed the concept of Sportovation; that is to use innovation in sports to motivate those
who would otherwise be reluctant to take part. By injecting fun, excitement and added
motivation into physical activities, with cross-over themes, the intention is to lower the entry
barriers and arouse interest, and in the long term build lifelong habits of physical exercise.

The first Sportovation programmes will start rolling out towards the end of 2015. Organised
in collaboration with the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups, these three-year
programmes target young people aged 8-25, with an emphasis on peer fun and support,
positive values, cross-over sports and community services activities, plus opportunities to
link activity levels with good causes.

The Community Team Sports Academy and League is designed for young people with

a moderate interest in sports but who may not have the opportunity or motivation to

learn a sport or to participate frequently. The Academy and its accompanying League
competition will hence provide opportunities to learn basketball, ice hockey, team running,
rope skipping and canoeing while also providing leadership training. Meanwhile, those who
are less keen to play sports regularly but who wish to play a greater role in the community
can join the Community Youth Volunteers, which will provide opportunities to take part in
volunteer work with sports elements. A further innovative feature will be the Sports Mileage
programme, whereby participants can use a special sports app to track their sports activity
and convert it into “miles” that can be contributed to community causes.

Going forward the Trust is looking to extend the Sportovation concept to kindergarten and
primary school children. By creatively integrating physical activities into classroom lessons
the aim is to help children develop physical literacy at an early stage while also improving
their health and fitness.
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Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges (4th left) joins with HKFA Chairman
Brian Leung (5th left), Chief Executive Officer Mark Sutcliffe (3rd left) and young
footballers for the launch of the next phase of the Summer Scheme of the JC
Youth Football Development Programme.

SETRARERM(EN) BEERESTERAB(ER) TRAREENH (L)
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Football for life

and leadership

Football, especially youth football, has been an area of particular attention
for the Club over the last few years. This reflects both the Club’s focus on
football as a means to develop the character and leadership skills of young
people and the Government’s direction to support football development in
Hong Kong.

To further promote football in the community the Trust is therefore providing
over HK$119 million to support the Hong Kong Football Association’s five-
year football development programmes. These programmes encompass
a wide range of systematic round-the-year training opportunities,
competitions, and tournaments, targeted at children and young people
aged four and above. One of these programmes is the Summer Scheme
of the Jockey Club Youth Football Development Programme, which the
Trust has been supporting since 2010. Last summer it was the largest
youth football programme in Hong Kong, with over 12,000 youngsters
taking part, including many girls. Additionally, through the five-year
partnership, the Trust will provide resources to support the development
of women'’s football and futsal. There will also be support to build the
capacity of local coaches and referees, as well as relevant sports science
initiatives. The programmes are expected to benefit over 25,000 young
footballers a year.

The lack of football facilities, especially the lack of quality facilities
dedicated to the sport, has been identified as one of the factors limiting
the effective development of football in Hong Kong. To help remedy this
the Trust has funded the development of the Jockey Club Kitchee Centre,
which is now operational and is being used to support Kitchee FC’s youth
football programmes as well as to provide training facilities for community
organisations. Good progress is also being made on Hong Kong’s first
purpose-built football training centre at Tseung Kwan O. Its six pitches will
be used for training by elite teams and will also be available for public use.
Potentially, the centre can also be used for other sports.
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Young footballers share their experiences (top) and in action (above).
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World skips to
Hong Kong

14 13 \ In a first for Asia, Hong Kong was the host for the
TH: ?i:" lli)ls ,%% tt % IIC}IS §'J é {% biennial World Rope Skipping Championships in August 2014,
Hong Kong showed its prowess by winning the World Cup
and 90-plus medals, and in the process breaking three world
records. The championships were funded by a HK$2.51
million Trust donation, which also covered year-round school
tours to promote this heart-healthy activity.
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Hong Kong gets "vital"
boost to its sporting spirit
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\V==g Giving a sporting lift to Hong Kong, the Club was once again pleased to be the Principal
_E 1 Contributor to the 2015 edition of the Hong Kong Games. Some 6,600 athletes
— representing all 18 Districts took part in eight competitions held between April and May.
HAL As a warm up for the Games, the Club also supported The Jockey Club Vitality Run,
E a new event promoting a Sports for All culture. Over 3,800 people of all ages and abilities

took part in this fun run along the Shing Mun river.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
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MAINTAINING
OUR COMMITMENT

In addition to projects falling under its three areas of strategic focus, the Club’s
Charities Trust has maintained its support for a broad range of educational,
rehabilitation, welfare, health, arts and culture, and environmental projects this
year. Indeed, the Trust set a new record of HK$3.87 billion in charity donations
this year, exceeding the HK$3.61 billion donated last year, which itself set

a new record. As in previous years, in addition to project funding this also
includes support for 60 organisations through the Community Project Grant: a
three-year funding grant designed to give social service groups and agencies
the financial stability they need to plan and sustain their services.



Club Steward Michael Lee (2nd right) and Professor Peter Mathieson, President and
Vice-Chancellor of The University of Hong Kong (1st right) perform an eye-dotting
ceremony to mark the opening of The Jockey Club Student Village IlI (below) at HKU.

BEESAFEEI)BREBABRERFERLYR(G-) AIEFEFE=Z24ENI(T)

ETHERER

The award-winning College Hall at The Jockey Club
Student Village IIl.

[BEFEE=24N ] NERBE-
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Jockey Club New Hall at Lingnan University.
EEAZ [ BTEERE] -

Over the years Trust donations have helped fund some 20,000 hostel places in local tertiary
institutions, providing students with much needed privacy to concentrate on their studies
as well as the opportunity to benefit from the cultural and social interactions that come with
campus life.

With the opening in September of the Jockey Club New Hall at Lingnan University, Lingnan
became the first UGC-funded tertiary institution in Hong Kong to provide full residency to its
undergraduate students. Funded by an HK$85 million donation, this new hostel provides
close to 400 bed spaces, complementing the existing Jockey Club Hall which has 500 bed
spaces. Together they comprise the Jockey Club Student Village, and with other hostels
they bring the total residential capacity at Lingnan to 2,600.

February saw the opening of The Jockey Club Student Village Il at The University of Hong
Kong. Funded with a Trust donation of HK$110 milion the Village consists of four new
student halls providing a total of 1,800 hostel places. This is in addition to the Jockey Club
Student Villages | and Il which provide 1,800 hostel places. The additional capacity these
residential facilities provide will help the university prepare for the implementation of the new
four-year undergraduate curriculum.

Meanwhile, in June, the Trust approved HK$313 million towards the construction of
postgraduate student hostels at The Chinese University of Hong Kong and The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. The two hostels will provide more than 1,100
much-needed places for postgraduate students.
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Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip meets students at the Jockey Club New Hall at
Lingnan University (top); and joins former Lingnan University Council Chairman
Bernard Chan (above 2nd right) and other university officials for the opening
ceremony.
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Club Executive Director, Charities and Community Leong Cheung (centre)

celebrates the success of the READ & WRITE programme with Education Bureau

Deputy Secretary Wong Yau Wai-ching (2nd left) and other project partners.
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This year saw the conclusion of READ & WRITE: A Jockey Club
Learning Support Network, a nine-year, HK$153.7 million programme, to
help children with learning difficulties (mainly dyslexia) overcome reading
and writing difficulties. The project developed a Tiered Intervention Model
for Chinese Language Learning to screen and monitor the progress

of children with reading difficulties. Encouragingly, over 20% of such
children reached the benchmark of Chinese literacy within one year

of being identified and receiving assistance through the intervention
model. The Education Bureau has since adopted the model, running it
in some 200 primary schools as well as through school-based support
services, covering 50% of primary schools in the territory. Training has
also been provided to some 7,500 primary and kindergarten teachers

to enhance their knowledge and skills in teaching children with or at

risk of developing dyslexia. The model has since been taken up in
Taiwan, where The First Social Welfare Foundation is distributing learning
packages to teachers, parents and NGOs.
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to boost study skills of disadvantaged children e e e
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If education is the key to improving life chances, then the children of low-income families
are prime targets for assistance. And it is to address their learning needs that the Trust is
providing HK$7.27 million to the Principal Chan Free Tutorial World Limited (PCFTW) to
establish a district learning centre in Tai Kok Tsui and to support its operating costs and
training programmes for three years. As the initiator of Hong Kong’s first and largest free
one-on-one tutorial service network, PCFTW utilises an innovative approach to mobilising
community resources which has already made a significant difference to the lives of
many disadvantaged children. The Trust’s support will enable it to establish a new centre
providing one-on-one talent development classes as well as pre-school training and
playgroups for young children and their parents. There will also be a digital training area,
which is expected to attract some 25,000 visits over three years.
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Broadening children’s horizons and enhancing their interest in learning is equally
important. PCFTW will organise two week-long training camps on an outlying island to
provide disadvantaged students with experiential learning activities. Its innovative Design
for Change initiative will also seek to inspire and empower students to identify and solve
issues in their school or community.

- A record-breaking 3,000 athletes with intellectual
l - R u n disabilities and their partner pair-up runners turned out to
compete in the i-Run — Hong Kong Jockey Club Special
Marathon, which this year was held on the site of the Kai

—_— HOng KOng Tak Terminal.

, Organised by the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, and
JOCke C / U b S 60 / a / supported by the Charities Trust for the last three years,
the event is designed to promote the social inclusion of
M h people with intellectual disabilities.
ar at 0n 2 0 7 5 “It is encouraging that the i-Run gets bigger every year,”

= said Mr Anthony Chow, Deputy Chairman of the Club.
ﬁ W It ﬁd‘» “And with the Club strategically focusing on supporting

N 5 2 ND AN sports projects that can create lifelong positive values and
ﬁfﬁ % 4% @ q:ﬂ‘ % ‘% j:—”‘ *A 20 1 5 hope, we will continue to work with TWGHSs to support
: this meaningful event for a further two years as a means
to promote social inclusion.”
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Autism support network

to help chilaren,

parents and teachers

This year also saw the Trust initiate a three-year
HK$167.79 million project to support children with
Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) and their families.

According to the Education Bureau the number of
autistic children in mainstream primary and secondary
schools doubled between 2009/10 and 2013/14 to over
5,000 and is projected to further increase at a rate of
20% per year. ASD brings great challenges and stress,
not only to the children but also to their teachers and
parents. As such, the Trust’s project - JC A-Connect:
Jockey Club Autism Support Network - the first of its
kind in the city, is designed to support autistic children
and their families by adopting an all-round holistic
approach, encompassing their needs at individual,
school and community level. This will be accomplished
through cross-sectoral collaboration between the
Education Bureau, The University of Hong Kong and six
NGOs with specialist experience in ASD.

The project will roll out in the new 2015/16 academic
year, with the aim of covering over 250 mainstream
schools and benefiting about 50% of students with ASD
in mainstream schools each year. Other components of
the project include family and parent education via 18
satellite centres; capacity building amongst education
and social work professionals; development of service
models and resources to facilitate early identification and
intervention for children with ASD; and support for public
education about ASD and for international knowledge
exchange.
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Club Steward Margaret Leung (centre) joins Under Secretary for Education Kevin Yeung
(left), and HKU Dean of Social Sciences Professor John Burns (right) to officiate at the
launch ceremony of JC A-Connect.
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Lee Sai-ho, an artist with ASD, showcases his talent in sand drawing at the
JC A-Connect launch ceremony.
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Work starts n major
rehabilitation complex

January saw ground-breaking for the development of the Hong Chi Jockey Club Pinehill
Village. Funded with a donation of HK$600 million, the Charities Trust's largest ever
donation in the rehabilitation sector, the Village will be the largest rehabilitation service
complex for people with intellectual disabilities in Hong Kong.

The Club took an active role in the early planning of the project, which led to a major
upgrade. Coupled with support from the Social Welfare Department, the project
demonstrates how the Club’s unique approach to collaborating with the Government
and the welfare sector can deliver substantial benefits; in this case to address the urgent
need for hostel places and related rehabilitation services for people with moderate and
severe intellectual disabilities.

When development is complete Pinehill Village will provide a total of 1,117 hostel places
for people with intellectual disabilities; over 100 pre-school and special child care
services and training places for children aged up to six; as well as a day activity centre,
an integrated vocational training centre and an integrated vocational rehabilitation
service centre.
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Photo courtesy of ProjectArchitectEfic Chan
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Club Deputy Chairman Anthony Chow (2nd right) joins
Executive Director, Charities and Community Leong
Cheung (1st left) and Hong Chi Association Chairman
Philip Poon (1st right) to tour the current vocational training
centre at the Hong Chi Jockey Club Pinehill Village.
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Grand Opening of the CUHK Hong Kong Institule of Integrative Medicine
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29 September 2004

Club Deputy Chairman Anthony Chow (3rd right) with Secretary for Food and Health Dr Ko
Wing-man (centre) and Vice-Chancellor and President of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Professor Joseph Sung (3rd left) at the opening of The Hong Kong Institute of Integrative Medicine.
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“I started receiving acupuncture treatment
two months ago, supplemented with
Western rehabilitation treatment. Now my
situation has improved a lot and I am able to
walk and eat on my own.”

Mr Cheung Wai-ming, stroke patient
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Also addressing the needs of stroke patients is the Jockey Club Integrated Neurological
Rehabilitation Centre at the Princess Margaret Hospital, funded by a Trust donation
of HK$16.5 million and which opened in February. Early and integrated rehabilitation
is critical to stroke patients and the Centre, which is the first of its kind in Hong Kong,
provides this through a one-stop multi-disciplinary rehabilitation service. The Centre is
also equipped with state-of-the-art rehabilitative equipment including robotic rehabilitation
aids, transcranial magnetic stimulation to stimulate nerve cells, and virtual reality

technology to provide multi-sensory stimulation to stroke patients.
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Club Steward Stephen Ip (3rd left) meets a patient at the new Jockey Club Integrated
Neurological Rehabilitation Centre.
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Pioneering medical

facilities open
AT Al S

September saw the opening of The Hong Kong Institute
of Integrative Medicine at The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, funded with a Trust donation of HK$10.45 million.
The Institute is the first of its kind, being jointly managed
by Chinese and Western medical practitioners and
offering both traditional Chinese and integrative medical
treatment, education, research and health consultations.
The Institute comprises two major elements: The East-
West Research and Training Centre, which conducts
research and education, and The Integrative Medical
Centre at the Prince of Wales Hospital, which provides
general consultation, acupuncture and bone setting. The
latter will gradually introduce Western medical specialists
to offer joint consultation services alongside their Chinese
medicine counterparts. A pilot scheme is currently
applying integrative medicine techniques to help patients
recovering from strokes, with plans to further expand the
service to treat low back pain, gastrointestinal diseases,
palliative cancer care, insomnia and mood disorder. Over
13,000 people are expected to benefit annually.
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for affordable health care

122

Club Executive Director, Charities and Community Leong
Cheung (2nd right) and Chairlady of Yan Chai Hospital
Board Susan So (3rd right) tour Yan Chai Hospital.
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As demand for medical services rises, there is increasing pressure on general medical
services provided through the hospital network. Last year the Trust approved HK$1.3
billion for The Chinese University of Hong Kong to establish a new teaching hospital
offering affordable health-care to the sandwich class. The Trust’s largest single donation
to a medical project in Hong Kong, the new hospital will also be the first to offer one-
stop package services at affordable prices covering all costs, meaning that patients
can be better informed of the actual expenses incurred before receiving treatment.
Helping to bridge the gap between expensive private healthcare and the excellent but
often overburdened public services, this represents a major milestone in local medical
development.

Due for completion in 2018, the hospital will have around 600 beds plus a full range of
medical services including a 24-hour clinic, an ambulatory surgery and urology centre,
a cardiac intervention centre, an endoscopy centre, radiology facilities, an elderly day
centre, a special ward with age-friendly features, and a health promotion centre. It will
complement the Prince of Wales Hospital in providing practical training and clinical
attachment for students of the Chinese University’s undergraduate and postgraduate
medical education programmes as well as for other healthcare professionals. Some
250,000 people are expected to benefit annually from the inpatient, outpatient and
training facilities.

Meanwhile, March saw the opening of the newly re-developed Yan Chai Hospital. Trust
funding of HK$84 miillion has enabled its existing four hospital blocks to be consolidated
into an integrated 12-storey building. It is estimated that the hospital will serve some
300,000 people a year in the Tsuen Wan and Kwai Tsing districts.
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Former Club Chairman T. Brian Stevenson (3rd left), Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
(2nd right), join CUHK Council Chairman Dr Vincent Cheng (3rd right), Vice-Chancellor and
President Professor Joseph Sung (2nd left) and CUHK Medical Centre Governing Board
Chairman Chien Lee (1st right) at the donation ceremony for the CUHK Teaching Hospital
Project and CUHK Jockey Club Institute of Ageing.
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Emergency
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Hong Kong’s experience of the SARS crisis in 2003 taught valuable lessons in the need
to be prepared for sudden and major crises. It was in the wake of SARS that the Trust
funded the establishment of the Centre for Health Protection to help the city prevent and
fight future epidemics. And it was to provide rapid relief to victims of natural disasters,
accidents and the like that the Jockey Club Emergency Relief Fund was established in
2010. The Fund has already helped survivors from a number of local tragedies, such as
the building collapse in To Kwa Wan and the sinking of the Lamma Island ferry. This year,
48 families and individuals received support from the fund.

To strengthen Hong Kong'’s preparedness to deal with major crises, as well as to
enhance regional capabilities in disaster management, last year the Trust donated
HK$271 million to establish the Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and
Response Institute. Led by the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in collaboration
with The University of Hong Kong and The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
supported by international experts, the institute will train healthcare professionals,
NGO practitioners, teachers and the public with a view to establishing Hong Kong as
a regional hub for disaster preparedness and response training. Over 30,000 people
will be trained over the next five years in what is Asia’s first such institute dedicated to
disaster management.
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Former Club Chairman T. Brian Stevenson
(1st left) joins Hong Kong SAR Chief Executive
C Y Leung (2nd right) and other guests to

tour the “igloo” at the Hong Kong Jockey

Club Disaster Preparedness and Response
Institute. This mobile facility allows trainees to
experience simulated disasters.
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The Staatskapelle Dresden and the Bolshoi Opera were two of the
productions in The Hong Kong Jockey Club Series at this year’s
Hong Kong Arts Festival.
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Celebrating the opening performance of Le French
May 2015 were Club Executive Director, Charities and
Community Leong Cheung (centre), Consul General of
France in Hong Kong and Macau, Arnaud Barthelemy
(3rd right), Director of Leisure and Cultural Services
Michelle Li (2nd left) and Chairman of the Board of Le
French May Dr Andrew Yuen (3rd left).
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Bringing the best in

arts and culture

to Hong Kong

The Charities Trust continues to be a major supporter of Hong Kong’s
vibrant arts and cultural life. This year the Trust was once again a
major partner of the Hong Kong Arts Festival, as it has been since
the Festival’s inception 43 years ago. And for the fourth year the

Trust was the major partner of Le French May, Hong Kong’s annual
festival of French arts and culture. The Trust sponsored feature
programmes at both events, such as The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Series, which each year brings a renowned theatre production, dance
performance and orchestra to the Arts Festival. It also sponsored new
and innovative performances such as a hip-hop ballet and a sound
art exhibition. Likewise, to give more people an opportunity to share
in these important cultural events, as well as to engage the interest of
younger audiences, the Trust supported outreach and arts education
programmes and provided over 5,000 complimentary tickets for
students to appreciate live performances at both festivals.

Complementing these world-class performing arts events are the
major exhibitions organised as part of The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Series, a partnership between the Trust and the Leisure and
Cultural Services Department. Following on from last year’s record
attendances at the Hong Kong Science Museum for the “Legends
of the Giant Dinosaurs”, this year saw another two highly acclaimed
exhibitions: “Treasures from Tsarskoye Selo, Residence of the
Russian Monarchs” and “Dunhuang: Untold Tales, Untold Riches”.
As with all exhibitions under the Series both were accompanied by
education and outreach programmes.
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Ornate court costumes were just
some of the precious objects on
display in “The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Series: Treasures from
Tsarskoye Selo, Residence of the
Russian Monarchs”.
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Chief Secretary Carrie Lam (left) joins Club Steward Dr Rita Fan (1st right) at the opening
of “The Hong Kong Jockey Club Series: Dunhuang: Untold Tales, Untold Riches”.
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Yoshitomo Nara
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The work of Yoshitomo Nara, described as the father of

the Tokyo pop art movement, was the subject of a landmark
exhibition at the Asia Society, mounted with the Trust’s
support. The first major solo exhibition of his works in Hong
Kong, the exhibition provided a rare opportunity to experience
the broad range of his oeuvre over the past two decades,
including paintings, sketches, photographs, mixed media
installations and the title piece, “Life is Only One”.

The Trust-sponsored hip-hop ballet The Roots at this year’s Le French May.
EeBHSELEHATALMEREZ—IEREE [The Roots | °
DN EBRLORMRERENE AREL AR L L BIE
PRRRER  wREEFSEREEAESZNEY - &
ERRETEHEEEBRTOARBARE  EBA - TF

%232\% AE—E;E%/>7 iﬂzﬁﬁi ié/;@gﬁ[y Ké@j o E %%1#%”\)\)%5"”}5% ! @]%/EE% ° %ﬁé N %ﬁ N @EZ@ N /E
BN | A BB ATEA =R £ PO A Sl (RIS ©

EBH - SEEAOIN A SFTRESBLRKE
—F-ERERBI e — DEBET R 2IE |

IT2AERMH  XEMERNZEHE - BRNEMEnHE -
HWMER [FEESSERZY]  BFATRERE A
Bl BEMEERRELERE - EABR W K8l -

BERE NEREBELEZEMRES - ABEFEEMME
Bl - REBEZTR2ERPERNEMES - K3IEE
FHERNER  ESHBRARFRPTENINERE
MHAE - WERHBRTFREMBIVER T ABME R
BEFMERTAMBE - BRI A BB NREED -

B THERARIRBIEE 25D - BB EBELEN L ER
EaltE B8 [BEEEFEERAT]  RARERER
MARBRE - ZF8 [ERRET] FAITHEEMNBENR
BASABLE: - SFHEBRE - RREITWERELS
MRE B [2HNRE - HEHEEXYR] K (3
B-FHATTHHE] - i [BEEBFEZ2REI] &
THARENSR2HSEREORE RINRED °

125



Club Steward the Hon Sir C K Chow
officiates at the opening ceremony of the
2015 HKFYG Jockey Club Hong Kong
International a cappella Festival.
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Club Steward the Hon Martin Liao (2nd
left) officiates at a special exhibition at the
Jockey Club Lei Yue Mun Plus to mark
the third anniversary of this educational,
heritage and arts centre.
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Club Deputy Chairman Anthony Chow lifts the head of the Tai Hang
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Fire Dragon during its annual parade.
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Fostering local talent
and cultural appreciation

In addition to bringing world-class arts performances and exhibitions to Hong Kong the
Trust is keen to foster and showcase Hong Kong’s own artistic talent. It also seeks to
preserve and promote awareness of local heritage, both tangible and intangible.

Since 2010 the Trust has been supporting the Tai Hang Fire Dragon Dance and has
extended its support to the Cheung Chau Jiao Festival, the Tai O Traditional Dragon
Boat Water Parade and the traditional Yu Lan Festival of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Community. Also since 2010, the Trust has been supporting the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Heritage x Arts x Design Walk (H.A.D. Walk) Project, which encourages people to
explore and learn more about local culture and heritage. Each year H.A.D. focuses on
specific districts. A new feature this year was the H.A.D. kids programme, which used
interactive games and exploration trips to encourage children to learn more about local
history and nurture their interest in heritage preservation.

Among a number of initiatives to promote local performing art, the Trust has worked

in partnership with the Hong Kong Arts Centre to develop the Jockey Club Street
Music Series. Each year since 2014 the Series has brought live outdoor music to
neighbourhoods across Hong Kong, showcasing local talent. In addition, workshops
targeting local youth and underprivileged communities have sought to inspire them to
develop their creative talent. The programme has been so well received that it has been

extended for three more years until 2017, with expanded programmes benefiting a wider

pool of young people, particularly underprivileged and youth-at-risk. The Trust is also
extending support to some smaller arts groups in order to promote a wider range of art
forms, including opera, multi-media arts, short films, animation, drama, classical music,
choral and a cappella singing.

Also designed to promote local talent was the inaugural Jockey Club Local Creative
Talents Series at this year's Hong Kong Arts Festival. The first programme under the
series, “Datong — The Chinese Utopia”, was an original chamber opera produced and
performed by Hong Kong artists.
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Charities

“Thanks to the painstaking conservation
work carried out by the Club

we have preserved an important piece
of Hong Kong history and a herltage
jewel in the heart of Central.”

Bernard Charnwut Chan
Chairman, Central Police Station Revitalisation Project “Art Working Group”
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Chief Secretary Carrie Lam, Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip (2nd right) and Club Steward

central POIice station Michael Lee (1st right) inspect a scale model of the new Central Police Station compound.
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The restoration and revitalisation of the Central Police Station compound is undoubtedly FREZEZEREAIBREET RS ETERERE

one of the largest projects ever undertaken by the Club’s Charities Trust. Working in 7(’*” WIEE 22— BBFE 1’5 REEEHETAELERE

partnership with Government, the objectives are to conserve and revitalise: preserving CREBERLNEZ B - ANGERERITENES

the 16 heritage buildings that collectively represent an important piece of Hong Kong K#@ ERENMAE R R e8I S EEE L

history while also transforming the site into a vibrant centre for heritage, contemporary

arts, and leisure. EEEETIEER BT EMETT - MAKRINEEFER -
IR BB B E R A A D T E BB IME B E

Restoration work has proceeded with great care with results already starting to show, T2 - JRIEEFTASEE - MmEEEEREEY — &

most notably in the Police Headquarters Block on Hollywood Road, where work has BHMBEMBERFEME — WLIREEIERS - (GrtE

been completed on the roof and facade and internal refurbishment is now underway. FERHURZO—A"FETNFFERRTARMER -

Good progress has also been made on the two new low-rise buildings, the Arbuthnot

Auditorium and the Old Bailey Gallery. The current assessment is that the site can be BEE B A B - B R RN R ERXTERE - E®

open for public use in the second half of 2016. ETHELEMNATEFSEXMREERATKATLEL
FEHHERNREXBRTIREEEE HH%§E$1‘@&/E

With the opening in mind, the operational arrangements have now been finalised. 9\\§£ml CEEAEHEEREMEE - Z2FEEES

Under these The Jockey Club CPS Limited (JCCPS), a not-for-profit company  BEERRAITHEAAN XL RBENIER - ZAA

incorporated by the Trust, will provide heritage interpretation programmes across the JTﬁJZ_L THEERNERAKOMELIIENE - 9 BlHEET 2

site and collaborate closely with local and overseas art communities as partners in XYFBMDEE FE - AR E NBREPREER - I

presenting contemporary art programmes. Senior staff have been appointed to lead the EBAR IR EERER -

development and implementation of the heritage and art programmes. To prepare for the

opening, two working groups, comprising experts in relevant fields, have been appointed ELET BBk EIE B e AN T ERE A RIRES & E
to assist the JCCPS in the development of policy and to provide comments, suggestions & BIRINIERIER] o

and expert advice on the content of the heritage and art programmes.

Good progress has also been made in identifying operators of retail outlets and food and
beverage services, which will be compatible with the character of the site.
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Promoting

Let’s stretch for health! Club Deputy Chairman Anthony Chow (seated right) joins
Dr Ko Wing-man, Secretary for Food and Health (seated left) for the launch of the next
phase of FAMILY: A Jockey Club Initiative for a Harmonious Society.
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In April 2014, the Trust approved the extension of The FAMILY: A Jockey Club Initiative
for a Harmonious Society, for a further three years. Launched with a $250 million Trust
donation in 2007 in collaboration with the School of Public Health of the Li Ka Shing
Faculty of Medicine at The University of Hong Kong, the objective is to identify sources
of family problems in Hong Kong and to promote family health, happiness and harmony.
Considerable progress has been made, including the completion of a survey of 20,000
households, the largest ever such study conducted in the Asia Pacific region, which will
provide a significant and ongoing resource for service planning and policy making.

The three-year extension will focus on promoting family holistic health through an
integrated approach to physical and psychological health. This will be achieved through
community-based family health education programmes, community health promotion
programmes, school drama tours, capacity building and training workshops as well as
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wisdom sharing forums organised by project partners. Survey data collected during the
household survey will also be maintained.

Hearts across borders
5 35 5 7% Wi v ) Bt

In January, the Trust donated a further HK$11.8 million to International Social Service Hong
Kong to enhance its cross-boundary support service. Established with Trust support in
2011 the service is designed to support cross-boundary families and to help new arrivals
who have migrated to Hong Kong within the previous three years. With cross-boundary
students increasing last year by 28% to 20,000, the Trust’s support will be a welcome
addition, not least in helping to set up a new centre in Nanshan, Shenzhen.

HEeR—ARE—T A/ \TEETRR TR EERT SR
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Club Steward Dr Rita Fan (centre) joins Deputy Director of Shenzhen District People’s
Government Dai Beifang (3rd right), Director-General of the Department of Social Affairs,
Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in the HKSAR, Li Yunfu, (3rd left), Chief
Executive of ISS-HK Stephen Yau (1st left) and other guests to launch the support service
programme for cross-boundary families in Shenzhen.
FEESUABRRBI(MBERYITEIIECHILS(AD)  FHIE THHRTERLED)
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128 | CHARITIES



Charities

BEERTERARREAIFHERRNT - AMARHERERR

’ HBEBBARSERREBEETRRE - 22BN
- b BRI EBDPXAERY [BEFSREZLEY

5] WEA-O—=FIEREMA « RIS - EETFK

]\ ‘ z% @ é—E “ﬁ ' NEFRBERRARBE ) -
EE ),
;yﬁ M ‘{ o RUTENHRSEH S [FEDIASEFR KRR

78] BESBRETEETINR _O——FHL  BEE
As Hong Kong develops itself into an environmentally friendly and sustainable city, R KETIR - (TEISEDRIEYW T AR AL [ -
public education is fundamental, both to promoting green behaviours and encouraging BEX| BREFENE _JREREITRYLE -
the public to support green initiatives. It was to further these objectives that the Trust

funded the Jockey Club Museum of Climate Change at The Chinese University of Eef-O— "EBINEHE T2 MRS AR E
Hong Kong, which opened in 2013. In addition, the Club is currently supporting two W [ ESeEEGE4EEEE |  ABREBRGELEETTY
public education initiatives. Fie - BEHRBIEMEN  BEALE=F  WHEREN

BE AR KT ME - sHERREHESERIKNEEE
Launched in 2012, the CUHK Jockey Club Initiative Gaia is a five-year community E B EELEHENNES TIRE  AmEEREL
engagement programme carried out by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and ERETEE - ¥ TEBEEAMHTE BERH%EEA R
supported by a HK$70 million Trust donation. Events this year included a two-day SEREENFEHE - ERER BEMBMEMmB4 e
environmental fair under the theme of “Low Carbon — Blue Sky” and the second EHETE  JBstERNE - FTEEE -

annual Eco Tour Photo Contest.

Proving that one is never too old to develop a green lifestyle is the Green Education
Project for the Elderly. Launched in 2012 in Wong Tai Sin, this year the Trust approved
funding to the Mission Healthy Greens Limited to scale up the project and extend it

to two more districts (Kowloon City and Sham Shui Po) for three years. The project
promotes energy saving, carbon reduction and green living amongst the elderly, as
well as encouraging them to adopt a more healthy and positive life style through
farming and volunteering. Key elements of the new programme include an organic
farming programme, an environmental education programme and an elderly green
ambassador programme. Around 42,000 participants are expected to benefit, with
volunteers from schools, NGOs and other partners also helping out.

Club Executive Director, Charities and Community Leong
Cheung (3rd left) helps launch the Mission Healthy Greens-
Jockey Club Elderly Green Living Programme.

BEAERMEEHITRAERS (£2) TH [4HE-EFS
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The Environment Fair cum Jockey Club Museum of Climate Change Roadshow 2015 (above) E"E
carried the environmental message across Hong Kong. Among those getting it started mmm T
(right) were the Club's Executive Director, Charities and Community Leong Cheung (3rd " e -+
right), Secretary for Transport and Housing Professor Anthony Cheung (3rd left) and CUHK Ga | a £ =
Vice-Chancellor and President Professor Joseph Sung (2nd left). e
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Community

In addition to its ongoing support for Hong Kong charities

and NGOs through the Charities Trust, the Club seeks to
engage directly with areas of community need through its own
Club-initiated projects. Some of these involve donations, for
example to provide emergency relief to victims of exceptional
natural disasters in Mainland China and overseas. Others draw
on the Club’s specialist expertise, for instance to support the
development of equestrian sport, or aim to strengthen the Club’s
grass-roots collaboration, as with local community organisations
in the recently inaugurated Community Partners Network.

But the overall objective is always the same: to support those in
need and to promote the overall good of the community.
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elebrates First Year

Inaugurated in March 2014 at the 18 Districts Cup race meeting in Sha Tin, the
Community Partners Network is designed to strengthen the Club’s connections
with the community at the grass-roots district level. The founding members consist
of 13 community organisations covering eight major social sectors, namely youth,
women’s affairs, environmental protection, rural matters, sports, art, education and
social services.

To date, 11 community projects have been identified, most of which draw on the
support of the Club’s team of staff volunteers. Programmes launched or

in progress aim to build the social inclusion of ethnic minority children, to provide
food assistance to new immigrants and underprivileged families in the

New Territories, to promote life-wide learning and youth leadership, to raise
awareness of the importance of waste reduction at source, and to provide support
for the elderly and underprivileged through home visits, including in rural villages.

The first anniversary of the Community Partners Network was celebrated

at this year’s 18 Districts Cup race meeting with a gathering of Government officials,
representatives from the 18 Districts and community partners. Joining them were
representatives from various beneficiary groups, including kindergarten and primary
school students, single parent families and ethnic minority youth.
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Florence Hui, Under Secretary for Home Affairs (middle row, 8th left) joins Club Chairman Dr Simon Ip (middle row, 9th left), Stewards, CEO
Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges (middle row 7th left) and community partners to celebrate the first anniversary of the Community Partners Network.
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Ethnic minority children attend a music day camp on the Music Fish Programme
(top); Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges joins CARE@hkjc volunteers on a
visit to elderly villagers in the New Territories (above); children learn about Hong

Kong’s fishing heritage (below).
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Music Fish Programme /& st 2
“We always believe “Teach a child to
fish rather than give a child a fish’.
Thanks to the Club we’ve been able
$= (0 share the joy of music with ethnic
Y minority students, including those
from underprivileged families.”

Henry Chan Chi-chiu, Director of the City Chamber Orchestra of Hong Kong
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logether We Care =i 3178
“With the Club’s support we were

able to mobilise cross-sectoral support
for the Together We Care Elderly
programme, bringing love and care to
over 2,500 single elderly people and low-

imcome families.”

Amy Chan, Chairlady of the Hong Kong Elite Athletes Association
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Community

“Collaborative projects carried out by the Club

and its community partners at different levels
under the Community Partners Network
have directly benetited a lot of people in need.”

Florence Hui, Under Secretary for Home Affairs
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Putting Our
EAWRE Bast Foot Forward

Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges (right) joins
with young footballers taking part in the Jockey
Club Youth Football Assessment, Hong Kong’s first-
ever football fitness database of youth players.
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HKJC Youth Football .

Assessment Scheme

Like so many other places around the world, football is
played with a passion in Hong Kong. But on top of the
sheer pleasure of the game it is a wonderful medium for
enriching the lives of young people, helping them develop  celebrity mentors, it aims to nurture future community

themselves physically, mentally and socially. And it was
to nurture the potential of Hong Kong’s young people, as
well as to raise the overall standard of youth football, that

Also entering its second phase this year was the Jockey
Club Youth Football Leadership Scheme. Combining
football training with life skills workshops hosted by

leaders. Building on the success of the pilot phase
the scheme has been extended to all 18 Districts, with
Olympic swimmer Alex Fong Lik-sun joining media

the Jockey Club Youth Football Development Programme  presenter Lawrence Cheng and Olympic gold medallist

was initiated. Run in collaboration with international
football club Manchester United, and with the support
of a number of professional bodies, the programme has

brought world-class football training to young people of all

ages and all skill levels. Already, over 40,000 youngsters
have been encouraged to put their best foot forward.

This year saw the launch of the second phase of the
Jockey Club School Football Development Scheme,
which, under the tutelage of a Manchester United
Soccer School (MUSS) head coach, aims to introduce
international standard training practices into Hong

Kong schools. School teachers and coaches as well

as students are the target of the scheme, with four
graduates from last year’s intake receiving accreditation
as MUSS coaches, the first coaches outside England to
achieve this.

COMMUNITY

Lee Lai-shan as a mentor. Joining them were outstanding
participants from last year, who were appointed as senior
leaders for the scheme.

Underpinning youth football development is the Jockey
Club Youth Football Assessment, Hong Kong’s first-ever
football fitness database of youth players. Benchmarked
against a similar database of UK youth footballers, it
provides a means to identify the training needs of young
players and to track their development. Based on its
findings a high intensity circuit training programme was
piloted in secondary schools this year with a view to
developing the fitness of youth players. The results not
only show a notable improvement amongst participants,
but also suggest that a similar training programme could
benefit other young people in the community.




Community

“The coaching and mentoring I received in the
Football Leadership Scheme helped me
re-evaluate my life goals. Now | want to use
my learning to help others.”

Manchester United football legend Gary Pallister shares his skills
with young footballers during a coaching session.

SHREZTREMA] « BEEEREFREIRPAETTF -

Vincent Li Chun-wai, one of the six best performers in the 2013/14 Jockey Club
Youth Football Leadership Scheme
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Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges (2nd left), joins with partners of

the Youth Football Leadership Scheme to present certificates to the six most
outstanding young leaders. The young leaders subsequently travelled to England
to join community programmes run by Manchester United Football Club.
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RIDING HIGH TOGETHER

Club Strengthens Support
for Equestrian Sports

The Club has long supported the development of
equestrian sport, notably through the three Club-run
public riding schools. But it was the strong public interest
in the equestrian events of the Beijing 2008 Olympics and
Paralympics, which the Club helped organise in Hong
Kong, which prompted the Club to take a more proactive
role. This led to the creation of the HKJC Equestrian
Team and the HKJC Junior Equestrian Training Squad

in 2008 to nurture riders with potential. Club support

has enabled riders from the HKJC Equestrian Team to
access top-level training in Europe, while their younger
counterparts in the junior squad have received coaching
in Hong Kong. And the results have already paid off.
During the past six years, Club-sponsored riders have
achieved a number of historic results for Hong Kong
including individual gold and bronze medals and a team
bronze at the Jinan 2009 National Games; a silver medal
at the Singapore 2010 Youth Olympics; a team bronze

at the Guangzhou 2010 Asian Games; and an individual
silver medal at the Shenyang 2013 National Games.

This season, Hong Kong riders, including two members
of the HKJC Equestrian Team, qualified for the World
Equestrian Games for the first time, giving them valuable
exposure on the world stage. Building on that success,
the Club extended its sponsorship to eventing, with
three eventing riders joining the HKJC Equestrian

Team, bringing the squad up to a total of eight. Seven

COMMUNITY

of these riders were part of an eight-strong Hong Kong
team which competed in the equestrian competitions
of the 17th Asian Games in Incheon, South Korea, in
September. This was only the second time that Hong
Kong contested all three equestrian disciplines of
jumping, eventing and dressage, and their performance
resulted in a very creditable eventing team bronze. Two
members of the HKJC and Hong Kong teams - Patrick
Lam and Raena Leung - subsequently went on to further
success in the FEI World Cup Jumping China League,
held in Beijing in April, with Patrick winning the first two
legs and Raena placing second and fourth respectively.

Meanwhile, the Club continues to extend its sponsorship
support to equestrian events. The Club sponsored The
Hong Kong Jockey Club Cup Guangzhou Final, the
closing leg of the 3-star 2014 Longines China Tour. And
for the third successive year the Club was an official
partner of the Longines Hong Kong Masters, one of
Asia’s largest 5-star international show jumping events,
held at AsiaWorld-Expo in February. As in previous years
this attracted a capacity audience, who were able to

see Hong Kong’s Raena Leung take on top international
show jumpers in a thrilling contest. This increasing
enthusiasm for equestrian sports in Hong Kong is very
encouraging, and it is certainly the Club’s intention to
continue fostering the sport and growing the potential of
Hong Kong riders.
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“The Club’s sponsorship has enabled
me to receive the very best training
in Kurope. The Hong Kong and

HKJC equestrian teams could never

llave aChleved SO mUCll Wltll()llt tl]e Club Steward and President of the Hong Kong Equestrian Federation
~ ) o Michael Lee joins winning members of the Hong Kong Eventing Team to
(7 y 1111) S Sl]l:)I\) ()I‘t. celebrate their success at the Incheon Asian Games. In recognition each

team member was awarded a HK$30,000 performance award by the Club.
T Patrick Lam, member of the Hong Kong and HKJC equestrian teams
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The Sichuan HKJC Olympic School (top), Ya'an HKJC Vocational College (left) and Deyang HKJC
No. 5 Middle School (above) are three of the Sichuan reconstruction projects now up and running.
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The Club has periodically donated money for emergency
relief in situations of exceptional natural disaster, for
example following the South-East Asian Tsunami in 2004
and the Taiwan earthquakes of 1999.

Following the 2008 Sichuan earthquake tragedy

the Club pledged HK$1 billion towards post-earthquake
reconstruction. Seven projects were subsequently
chosen for support, with the focus on restoring and
upgrading education, medical and rehabilitation services
in the quake-stricken areas, while also helping the nation
prepare for future natural disasters.

Reconstruction work is now complete and the newly
functioning institutions are already delivering results.
Perhaps most notable is the Sichuan University—
Hong Kong Polytechnic University Institute for
Disaster Management and Reconstruction, which,
following the Yunnan earthquake in August 2014,
sent teams to give emergency training to doctors and
nurses, as well as to help establish rehabilitation for
victims after their discharge.

B (£) REBHEEBSSEAT

Throughout the seven projects, the Club’s emphasis
has been not just on physical reconstruction but on
ensuring that the institutions can continue to deliver
services sustainably and long-term, contributing to

the ongoing development of their communities. To

help achieve this, in May, the Club and the Sichuan
Provincial People’s Government signed a Memorandum
of Understanding, agreeing that the funds remaining
out of the pledged HK$1 billion would be used for the
sustainable development of the existing seven projects.

Previously, in September, an agreement was signed
between the Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse
(BJCH) and one of the Club-supported reconstruction
projects - Ya'an HKJC Vocational College - to establish
a vocational training base at the college. The college

will implement a three-year course for outstanding
students, with a tailor-made curriculum and quality
standards geared to the needs of BJCH. In their third
year students will undergo an internship at BJCH,

with the prospect of gaining full-time employment
thereafter. BJCH will in turn deploy some of its managers
and professionals to the college to give thematic talks
and skill workshops to students.
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In pursuit of its commitment to promoting sport and healthy lifestyles, and
in support of Mainland China’s drive to improve community health, in 2014
the Club supported three pilot community fitness programmes in Mainland
China, utilising funds generated from its activities there.

To raise the standard and status of National Level Community Fitness
Instructors, a Community Fitness Instructor Programme was run in 12
provinces, with 1,800 instructors delivering training to 18,000 participants.
In July, a five-day training programme was held at the HKJC Olympic
School in Sichuan (one of the seven institutions restored after the 2008
Sichuan earthquake) for 100 Qigong instructors from areas affected by
the disaster. This was followed in October by the first Cross-strait Qigong
Competition, with 15 teams from Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Fujian

and Guangdong participating. Finally, a tennis training programme was
organised, attended by approximately 6000 participants and culminating
in a year-end competition.

Community

“The Club’s Sichuan post-earthquake

reconstruction projects have not only

enhanced the friendly exchange
between Sichuan and Hong Kong,
but also introduced inovative ways
of working collaboratively, laying a
foundation for our more widespread

and in-depth co-operation in future.”

Wei Hong, Governor of Sichuan Province
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Volunteers
who CARE

The Club strongly encourages its staff and retirees to serve the community and promote
a caring culture through participating in volunteer work. With over 1,200 members
since its establishment in November 2005, the CARE@hkjc team has devoted more
than 60,000 hours to helping the community.

Q.

This year, CARE team members have been busy lending a hand at the community
elderly lunches, organised in celebration of the Club’s 130th Anniversary. They have
also paid home visits to underprivileged elderly in Sham Shui Po during the Mid-Autumn
Festival, and helped with visits by low-income families to the Charities Trust sponsored
exhibition “Studio Ghibli Layout Designs: Understanding the Secrets of Takahata and
Miyazaki Animation”.

CARE team members have also been actively supporting eight of the eleven projects
under the Community Partners Network. For example, they joined the Hong Kong
Elite Athletes Association and Hong Kong Young Women'’s Christian Association

to launch “Together We Care Elderly 2014”, involving visits to the households of over
2,500 single elderly people and low-income families in eight districts of Hong Kong.
They have collaborated with the New Territories School Heads Association and
Greeners Action to promote a waste reduction at source programme in schools, and
with the Hong Kong Children and Youth Service to run day camps for ethnic

minority youth. And since December the CARE team has been joining volunteers
from the Hong Kong Women'’s Development Association to support the “Give me Five”
Food Bank Programme to provide food assistance for new immigrants and
underprivileged families in the New Territories.
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Community

Waste Readlction at Source sReam B3 5
“The Club volunteers did a fantastic
job. The children learned a lot and helped
bring the green message home,
thanks to the Club’s Waste Reduction
at Source School Programme.”

Chu King-yuen, President of the New Territories School Heads Association
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The HKJC
Forest

Located near the source of the Dongjiang (East River) -
a major source of drinking water for Hong Kong - the
HKJC Forest was established in 2014 with the objective
of tackling climate change, protecting the environment
and safeguarding Hong Kong’s water source.

The second phase of the HKJC Forest was officially
launched on 11 April in Longchuan County, part of
Heyuan City in Guangdong Province, following the
donation by the Club of RMB2.89 million to the China
Green Carbon Foundation.

Together with the first phase, the Club has planted

over 350,000 trees at the HKJC Forest in Dongjiang,

with the total afforested area amounting to 4,000 mu
(approximately 268 hectares). It is estimated that 100,000
tonnes of carbon dioxide can be absorbed by the
afforested area in 20 years, helping to mitigate climate
change and improve the local ecological habitat.

“It is hoped that more organisations, corporations and
individuals in the Mainland and Hong Kong will take note
of the example set by The Hong Kong Jockey Club, and
by proactively undertaking socially responsible projects
make a greater contribution in building a beautiful China
and tackling climate change,” said Su Zonghai, Deputy
Secretary-General of China Green Carbon Foundation.
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Community

“We look forward to seelng even more
organisations and the public participating
in eco-building with the good example set

by The Hong Kong Jockey Club.”

Chen Jungin, Inspector and Party Member of Guangdong Province Forestry Department
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The Club’s Green Ambassadors celebrate the launch of the second phase of the HKJC Forest. [E& @ AE | BRNE_H [FESSHIEM]| BE -
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Customers

It may be a cliché but the customer really does lie at the heart

of everything the Club does. And for good reason. Because

in a highly dynamic environment, with a range of competitors
both legal and illegal, the Club must constantly strive to serve
its existing customers better and reach out to those

who might otherwise turn to unauthorised betting channels.
With this in mind, this season we have continued to strengthen
our customer focus, pursuing strategies to revitalise racing,
broaden our customer base, combat illegal operators, and serve
the differentiated needs of our one million plus customers.
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Racing is, and always has been, the beating heart of Hong Kong. And
as the quality of racing entertainment reaches unprecedented heights,
with Hong Kong horses and races now ranked among the world’s best,
the Club is seeking to re-energise Hong Kong’s love affair with the sport.

Races now have much stronger branding, with the Magnificent Ten
providing a monthly focal point around which to build customer
interest. From the anticipation of season opening, to the fashionable
glamour of Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse Day, to the thriling contests of the
three international race days and top domestic race, the BMW Hong
Kong Derby, to the finale of season end, each event is imprinted with its
own brand identity. This is quite apart from the landmark National Day
and Lucky Start January 1 racedays, and the Chinese New Year race
meeting - by tradition the best attended of the year.

To engage customers with these and other racing events the Club

has reached out through social media such as Facebook, Twitter and
Instagram, and this season through the launch of RacingHK on WeChat,
which features a variety of racing news and updates as well as online
games linked to major racedays. This popular presence also extends

to the non-racing media, not least through the engagement of celebrity
racing ambassadors for major racedays and through the coverage of
our highly successful Happy Wednesday race nights at Happy Valley.
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Customers
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“The Club’s customer service
always gives that bit extra.
This 1s no accident but the
result of an intelligent and
team effort.”

Dr Herman Lau
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Movie star Donnie Yen (top right) was this year’s Derby Ambassador,
while themed merchandise (above) was a particular draw at National Day.

And for Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse Day (right) there were prizes for the best ]
dressed racegoers. —
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“The Hay Market 1s a great place for

a stylish Sunday brunch. The interactive
racing tools make it so easy for my
newbie racegoing friends to get to grips
with the sport.”

Mr Jeffrey Lai
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Ultimately there is no better way to engage with
customers than through the live racing experience, and
this is why racecourse revitalisation is central to the Club’s
customer strategy. This has encompassed a substantial
and ongoing HK$6.3 billion investment to create new
venues and refurbish existing ones, and also attention to
the overall racecourse experience as it is perceived by
the broad range of customers. From the dedicated and
expert racing fan, to the food loving racing aficionado, to
the curious tourist and fun-loving party-goer, the intention
is to create a racecourse which is welcoming and
satisfying for all.

This year saw racecourse revitalisation enter its third
phase with the opening of ten new or refurbished venues.

At Sha Tin, Members can now enjoy a newly refurbished
Paddock restaurant, taking full advantage of Grandstand
One’s spectacular glassline extension, while those
seeking a more dedicated wagering and dining
environment can make exclusive use of a new venue,
The Monopoly. Building on the success of the Young
Members Box in Happy Valley a similar box has now been
introduced in Sha Tin, providing a relaxed environment
for brunch as well as the latest interactive tablet tables.
And to cater for the expanding needs of the Racing

Club an extension has been opened, modelled after the
successful Racing Club Noodle Bar in Happy Valley.

Also in Sha Tin is the all-new Digital Zone and Roof
Deck@2M. Like the Hay Market, which opened last
season, this is also dedicated to the needs of the next
generation of racegoers. The Digital Zone offers an
immersive digital experience, including a racing studio
with interactive tablet tables and free iPad usage, TV
walls and interactive programmes, while the Roof Deck
garden serves as a casual venue for the outdoor racing
experience. Meanwhile a new tourist zone provides

a dedicated service for Putongua speaking visitors,
with enhanced seating and TVs and a Putonghua
broadcast service.



The new-look Leading Edge at Happy Valley Racecourse. 35 ith 5515 5% &5 ER# #7 42 -

“Comfortable
areas with big
TVs, a great view
of the racetrack
from the balcony

. 1
— 1ice.
Mr Wong Shun-hing
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Over in Happy Valley the Grandstand has undergone a
major overhaul, including a new glassline extension on
the 6/F and 7/F. Taking advantage of this is the Farrier On
6, a new air-conditioned betting hall with balcony, offering
the latest racing technology and a variety of seating
configurations to serve the needs of both dedicated and
leisure racegoers. Also making its debut is Wins Café,
modelled after its successful counterpart in Sha Tin and
offering the dedicated racing fan a modern take on the
familiar cha chan tang theme. The Leading Edge has also
been thoroughly updated, with full Wi-Fi coverage plus
large TV walls to provide big-screen racing imagery and
information display, while new online booking replaces
the old manual ticketing system. And not to be outdone,
the popular outdoor dining restaurant, the Stable Bend
Terrace in the Happy Valley Stand, has been refreshed
with new décor, lighting and outdoor seating plus
interactive tablet tables.

Another major refurbishment was the relaunch of the
racecourse retail outlets under a new name: Gift At
Races. Offering a new range of exclusive items, including
limited edition merchandise linked to major racedays,
the shops will further help enhance the brand identity of
Hong Kong racing.
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Enhanced
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With Hong Kong a target for illegal and unauthorised betting operators, both foreign and
domestic, it is imperative that the Club maintains its competitive position in the wagering
market, not least to ensure that demand is provided for through legal and responsibly
managed betting channels. In this respect, in March the Club was pleased to be awarded
the highest level of accreditation under the Responsible Gambling Framework of the
World Lottery Association, the second time the Club has received this recognition and
making it the first in Asia to be recertified.

To strengthen the Club’s competitive position against illegal and unauthorised betting
operators, this season saw betting services offered on three new football leagues
(Russian Premier, Chilean Division 1 and Mexican Premier) as well as on five major
tournaments. Handicap and In Play betting was also provided on more matches, while In
Play and Corner HiLo betting was extended to regular leagues.

The Club also continues to leverage its unrivalled strength in betting technology,

in particular exploiting the potential of “big data”. Last season the Club deployed advanced
odds calculation technology to relaunch the popular Quartet bet. This season the same
technology was used to create a merged pool for the Quartet and First 4, providing a
larger and more stable pool for bettors. Customers have already been very responsive,
with average raceday turnover on the Quartet and First 4 up by 69% since the launch of
the merged pool.

QUARTET & FIRST 4 Merged Pool
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with customers through the we
digital experience

Technology also offers increasing opportunities for customers to enjoy the betting and
racing experience in new and enhanced ways. The Club already offers a wide variety of
such opportunities and this season we extended our offering through the launch of new
and improved digital information and entertainment platforms.

January saw the launch of HKJC TV Football, a mobile platform offering live football
matches plus the latest scores and odds. The popular Racing Touch was also extended
to Android mobile devices, significantly extending the availability of this graphically-rich
horse racing and betting application. And with the launch of RacingHK on WeChat,
customers now have an additional social media platform with which to keep up to date
on general racing topics. Meanwhile the Racing Club website was revamped to provide
more interactive functions for members, including event enrolment and table reservation.
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5 Its always
i Happy Wednesaay

at the Valley!

Since its launch in 2009 Happy Wednesday has transformed Happy Valley
racecourse into the mid-week entertainment hot spot in Hong Kong. Spanning seven
different locations, from the ever-popular trackside Beer Garden and Stable Bend
Terrace, to stylish dining in The Chalk, The Racing Club, The Gallery and the Young
Members Box, to the cool vibe of adrenaline, Happy Wednesday offers racing fans
and novice racegoers a unique blend of on-track action and off-track entertainment.

This season’s Happy Wednesday was launched with a specially commissioned
theme song “Home”, written and performed by singer-songwriter Ben Semmens.
And the music kept coming with Music Hits the Valley in January, a celebration of
pop from the 60s’ to the present day. Then it was the turn of world-class illusionists
to conjure up some Magic in the Valley, just in time for Chinese New Year, which
was seen in with a touch of nostalgia thanks to a partnership with retro stylists G.O.D.
And after a taste of vintage vino with Wines in the Valley, Easter was celebrated

with a parade and chocolate fest with the help of master chocolatier Godiva. Hi-tech
was the theme of the Digital Nights party, with the latest Samsung gizmos

on display. Le French May was celebrated with customary gastronomic style, and
the season came to a dazzling end with a Bollywood extravaganza: When Hindi
meets Happy Valley.

But the party’s never really over at the Valley. See you in September!

CUSTOMER,




Customers

“The digital and interactive racing
facilities at adrenaline are awesome.
My friends and I love to come here
for social gatherings after work.
In a word, amazing!”

Mr Mervyn Fung
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LONGINES International Jockeys’ Championship . .. )
RERER SRS Digital Night
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_! Retail's new and

" neighbourly look
Bt 2 8 W T O 4

The Club’s 100 plus Off-Course Betting Branches (OCBBs) are the retail
face of the Club, their blue signage a familiar part of the Hong Kong
streetscape. And to serve customers better, and to enhance their role as
good neighbours in the community, they are now being revitalised, with six
OCBBs renovated this season and more to follow.

LINLE
12 113

Recognising that customers increasingly want differentiated offerings and
access to the latest technology, the new OCBB format features distinct
zones. Casual customers can try out interactive and digital zones, equipped
with the Club’s latest technology, while those seeking to engage more
directly with the sporting action can take a seat in the media hall or theatre.

Each renovated OCBB also features a Caring Hearts service, providing
such conveniences as umbrella lending, free Wi-Fi, mobile device charging
and first aid. With increasing usage of the service, Caring Hearts is already
proving to be well received by local residents.

Meanwhile a Health Awareness exhibition board is being piloted in a
number of OCBBs to promote healthy living. And as part of
FAMILY: A Jockey Club Initiative for a Harmonious Society,
supported by the Club’s Charities Trust and run by
the University of Hong Kong, a temporary Health
Check Station was set up at two OCBBs on
two days in April to provide health checks for
. members of the local community.

wg Retail's good neighbourliness also extends to
a determined effort to “go green”, with a variety of

measures in place to incorporate energy-saving
and carbon-less initiatives into daily operations. Energy-
efficient LED lighting and automated timers to control
shopfront lighting are being progressively deployed, while
thermostats automatically turn off air-conditioning when
temperatures fall below 20°C. This year also saw the
installation of additional recycling bins to facilitate source
separation and recycling of paper waste.

OCBBs have also been lending a green hand locally.
During Chinese New Year, Retail supported Greeners
Action’s “Red Packets Recycle and Reuse Programme”,
distributing 350,000 used lai see packets to the public via
60 OCBBs. And in April, to coincide with Earth Day, Retall
organised its second Green Day, with the Club’s green
ambassadors on-hand at 60 OCBBs to promote green
living to customers, including ways to reduce paper usage
in OCBBs.
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“The widespread community network

of OCBBs can play a crucial role
in advancing environmental protection
n the local community.”

Angus Ho, Executive Director of Greeners Action
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G FENRELEDE B ML E B BIETRFES o BRitb 2o+ RS INED Top: Green ambassadors share tips on green living with OCBB customers.
BEEEFFBINEE 2= BUE—FENTE  AREFEeEE@EE - Centre: Retail was recognised by Greeners Action for the success of its
TG SRR E A - BATIRCRIARE R BRI - ‘Red Packets Recycle and Reuse Programme".

Bottom: A Health Check Station in action at Whampoa OCBB.
IR —EHBE2EAMBIRED - FTEHM - TERERA [LE b BeAERREREREISRELEELG
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lllegal gambling

a growing threat to society xEERERE

The illegal gambling market in Hong Kong is sizeable and growing, fuelled FEBEMS EERBTIENLZRAER  AEERAR

by the advance of mobile technology which has made online gambling ERRFMBEN  MEERFAR L FEEEBER

opportunities more readily accessible. It is estimated that Hong Kong people EoEMAF  AETREFREASHEELIEEMRAESE

lose around HK$12 billion to illegal operators each year. —B=TEBT-

Unlike The Hong Kong Jockey Club which implements a stringent responsible BRRBEMETHNESHBYEE  HMEEREEFA

gambling policy, illegal bookmakers Ilure customers with credit betting, price BE - - FHREBHAEWHEEERSIBEE  FEHEBA

incentives and a wider range of bet types and gambling products. By offering THRE TR LUERREL  £RSHEBALEASE -

loans and discounts that encourage their customers to “chase losses”, they

exacerbate the problems of addiction and debt. FEREEBRERENB ALY BREEZERBER  BE
SNEFRBATERNBHRF - W EEEEABERALEH

Equally important is the impact of illegal gambling on public funding and AHEMICEES -

charitable work, as illegal bookmakers pay no tax in Hong Kong. Moreover
their revenues are frequently used to fund other types of crime.
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Partnership with
community the key

HtEEREE

For these reasons, the Club has long been committed to
providing well-regulated betting services supported by a strict
responsible gambling policy, so as to divert public demand from
illegal operators.

Recognising that combating illegal gambling requires close 143 9

partnership with the wider community, the Club collaborates Thanks to the CIUb S SllppOI’t, the
plosgly with Goyernment qu|es apd NGOs.. It exchanges Plng WO Fund has been able to
intelligence on illegal operations with the police and helps

promote responsible gambling in partnership with organisations introduce new services iHClUdng a
like the Ping Wo Fund. ’

preventive outreach programme.”
Club representatives regularly meet with local NGOs and
attend regional conferences to share experiences and discuss Dr Yau Wing-kwong,
ways of tackling problem and illegal gambling. This helps the Chairman of the Ping Wo Fund Advisory Committee

Club refine its responsible gambling policies. r%*ﬁ,%@ﬂ@iﬁf ; %iﬂ%@%]})\j&tﬂ%}fﬂﬁ% ;
0, 355 T 7 1] 8 B 1 ) e Pl 25 |
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The Club has also strengthened its efforts to
caution the public against illegal gambling. It
recently produced five one-minute TV info-
segments to remind the public about the risks
involved in patronising illegal bookmakers.

This year, the Club launched a new responsible
gambling website, providing bettors with

a one-stop portal for accessing relevant
information and self-assessment tools.
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RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING POLICY
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Gontributions to

Ping Wo Fund doubled

BB FMESFREEIEE

The Club takes problem gambling very seriously and has taken many steps
to help reduce this social concern. As long ago as 2001 it commissioned an
independent study to identify preventive measures. It then allocated funding
for the Government to launch a two-year pilot project providing counselling
and treatment services, leading to the establishment of the Ping Wo Fund in
2008.

The Club has since been the biggest donor to the Fund, and from the
beginning of this year is more than doubling its annual donations from HK$20
million to HK$45 million a year. By 2019, its total contributions will have
exceeded HK$362 million.

Managed by the Government, the Ping Wo Fund supports research on
gambling-related issues, conducts public education programmes to alleviate
these problems, and helps fund NGOs that provide counselling and treatment
services. Since 2003, over 87,000 problem or pathological gamblers have
received counselling from the four treatment centres the Fund supports.
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“The Club’s support has
helped the ICAPT pioneer
an integrated treatment
approach to help people
with multiple addictive
behaviours.”

Elda Chan, Supervisor,
Integrated Centre on Addiction Prevention &
Treatment (ICAPT)
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Responsible Gambling Policy
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CERTIFICATE
OF ACCREDITATION
Responsible Gaming Framework

Pk 4 B

HKJC Lotteries Limited
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Level 4 of the
WLA Responsible Gaming Framework

R e TR TV iy T S i L ey Rt o8 S L
. S

ae00

T P e

Mo Litgmpes e P

T rvd P Dl ik Prrws i Ly

T

Club’s practices

interationally recognised
REREHIEREIPRR

In 2011, the Club was granted Level 4 accreditation, the highest attainable, under
the Responsible Gambling Framework of the World Lottery Association (WLA).
Operators seeking accreditation are required to demonstrate their commitment
to promoting responsible gambling through a series of stringent criteria, judged
by a panel of independent international experts in sustainability and corporate
social responsibility.

To achieve the maximum Level 4, operators must adopt the WLA's ten
responsible gambling principles into their day-to-day operations and decision-
making. These cover game design, stakeholder engagement, employee
training, public education, problem gambling treatment services referral, and
monitoring of the effectiveness of responsible gambling measures.

WLA accreditation has to be re-evaluated every three years, and in March
2015, the Club was proud to be granted Level 4 recognition for the second
time, becoming the first operator in Asia to be recertified.

—O——%  BEBEAKRER tRABRHE | BEN [FHHEX] FOR
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Sustainability - =

For The Hong Kong Jockey Club sustainability is about much more than keeping its
operations environmentally friendly and capable of cost-effective, long-term growth.
It is about setting an example to the wider community and making good use of
Charities Trust donations to support initiatives that can address the challenges
facing the city’s growth and development. Put simply, the Club’s aim is to serve as a
catalyst in helping Hong Kong achieve a more sustainable future.

More details of the Club’s sustainability efforts and achievements are available in its
Sustainability Report, which is published every two years, with the next edition to be
available online later this year. The following summary presents an overview of the
Club’s sustainability progress over the past financial year.
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Managing our

hoofprint

EEXFIA [EHHED ]

In 2014/15, the Club’s total carbon emissions equated

to 123,116 tonnes of CO2-g, a 2.9% increase compared
with 2013/14. By far the largest constituent of emissions is
electricity consumption, in particular at the two racecourses.
To help reduce electricity use, the Club has installed

more energy-efficient floodlighting at both tracks and is
accelerating an organisation-wide switch to LED lighting
wherever feasible.

The Club is also taking steps to reduce its impact from fossil
fuel by switching all its off-road vehicles and generators from
diesel to B5 biodiesel and deploying more electric vehicles.
Total diesel consumption fell by 22% in 2014/15, with a
major reduction in the use of diesel generators for lighting.

A further 21 electric cars have been commissioned during
2014/15.

The Club is currently conducting a review to develop a
longer-term sustainability strategy to 2020 and beyond,
identifying priority areas through both internal and external
workshops.

—O—W/—RHEE EEStmnEEAt+ 8=
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REZEHE - —O—I/—AFE  FENHHEE
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Environmental and Social Data Summary «opios o
RIBRHEMIBBIE Rassenem

Carbon emissions (CO2-e in tonnes) Electricity consumption (kWh)

W (CRICBRBEREE — 2M) REE (TREW)

Carbon emissions — &t HEK Electricity B8

2014/15 123, 116 @; 201415 166, 658,517

2013/14 2009/10 (base year &%) 2013/14 2009/10 (base year E¥£)
119,643 119,829 165,009,539 175,616,314

1]
N

Cumulative electricity avoided Employees
AitEid#E ES
5 96 o Average training hours Occupational injuries
" million kWh 42.1 hours for full-time staff 13 per 1,000 employees
savings over the past 10.4 hours for part-time staff I%
2 years from infrastructure projects 33T 3| B8 B—TRZEIFIBARIZE

2B T 421 /MBS

BEHEERB
BEMFHRREE HEHRER BBE T 104 /B Hong Kong average

5 960 000 13.2 per 1,000 employees*
- Total training hours OI I8 (&B) —

?EH E) 421,756 hours S—FESEALTHI32ARTEE"

HBIE | R B © 0O

421,756 /NEE [ [

- ) *Source: Labour Department, the Hong Kong SAR Government (2013) *&# 3R &84 BHBF4 L (2013)
Fuel consumption (litres) Food donations and food waste recycled Used cooking oil recycled
MEAE (AFH) BEEE R EERE UL into biodiesel
EERSHEIUR (3L HEYseim)

Diesel &5 Donations 138 &4

17.7 t N 11,447 litres X F
=4 143,025 5 A

y Food waste recycled B &R
N\
2013/14 149,382 ' 704 tonnes £H
M,
(O | -

Paper, plastic, cans, glass bottles recycled Materials purchased

FR4K - 2BE - SREE - IR WRHREE

Paper B4 Bet slips

610 tonnes AN§ 523,354,000 sheets, 100% FSC

BAERE
2014/15 2 21 670 21.7 tonnes 2 # (100% BFSCERB B R 4LR)
g Cans i LED lamps m
Z\

2013/14 316,620 2.5 tonnes AR 7.228 units

S
Glass bottles IF & K —HRE8 (LED)

100 tonnes A Wi @ §> 7,228 &
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Saving energy, helping to mitigate

climate change
B gELA SRR SRR &AL

New floodlighting was installed at both racecourses during
2014/15, replacing systems that were close to 20 years old.
The Happy Valley Racecourse floodlighting has improved
energy efficiency by 30%, while the Sha Tin Racecourse
installation has achieved a 10% improvement.

The Club is currently undertaking Phase 3 of a comprehensive
10-year Racecourse Master Plan, under which new venues
are being created and existing facilities upgraded to
provide racegoers with a world-class sporting, dining and
entertainment experience. As part of this process, in which
the Club has committed to invest a total of HK$6.3 billion,
all new and refurbished venues have been equipped with
energy-efficient lighting and cooling systems. However, this
also means there are more air-conditioned areas, requiring
an emphasis on building management systems to optimise
efficiency into the future.

In addition, since 2008 an ongoing programme of retrofitting
more energy-efficient lighting and cooling systems has
been in place at the Club’s 102 Off-Course Betting
Branches, office buildings and other premises, including
the stabling areas at Sha Tin. This includes external
signage and lighting, car park areas, lift lobbies and toilets,
as well as those areas directly used by customers or staff.
More than HK$13.8 million has so far been invested in
lighting retrofitting alone, with some four million kWh in
electricity consumption being avoided every year.

Sustainability
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The New Energy Centre at Sha Tin Racecourse houses energy-efficient water-cooled
air-conditioning systems.
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Green mobilily
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The Club operates a fleet of about 255 vehicles including cars, horse transporters and off-road vehicles. Since
2010, the off-road fleet has been progressively converted to operate 100% on biodiesel (B5). The Club has also
deployed two electric vehicles for the past five years and encouraged staff to use these zero-emission vehicles
during their time off as a means of spreading the green message. A further 21 electric cars, replacing old fleet
vehicles, were added during 2014/15 for 11 Club Departments. In connection with this, a network of 41 charging
stations is being added at the Club’s various premises in Hong Kong for the use of Members and employees.
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BhETHAEMEHARNER - BE=O—OF UK
Ee3EREHT ZS 2 HESRBSE YL HEE
B EEMABEAEERARBEEHE - LHE
ETIREIHFEFEAEESHRREBEIER » #Eiktm
@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@%ﬁmm o ZO—/—HFEEH

e+ — AL =+ —HESE MH
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%*%éﬁﬁ Al EEEFREXRE
# RETE2EAZETEHHEERN+—EZE 15
HEERETMHEA -

168 | SUSTAINABILITY



Sustainability

Building green,
working green
T R RRERE FTEGETFR

Racecourse, enables Club staff from the Telebet, IT and

broadcasting teams to be housed together in a more

comfortable working environment instead of multiple

locations. Ergonomic principles have been applied to the

design of workplace areas to ensure a safe, healthy and

pleasant working environment for Club staff. The aim is to . w2 i g
create a world-class workplace in which they can take pride | {giatsl | e T i

and feel motivated. peEnaaaiis _ [l

The first staff began moving in in June 2015, since EE i g JEEEE
when management’s focus has been on successfully e ERENEE gu
commissioning the building systems and consulting with
staff to ensure that the optimal efficiency benefits of the

building can be realised.

FFTT T #EEY

The Centre has been designed from the ground up as a

green building and has received a BEAM Plus ‘Gold’ rating
certification from the Hong Kong Green Building Council under T i
the Building Environmental Assessment Method. 'L_ {

ERRNOOTY

Welaaas

The Club’s project team applied Life Cycle Cost tools
throughout to ensure environmentally sound selection of
systems, equipment and construction materials. As for all
new or renovated Club buildings, a “Mean, Lean, Green” T
design philosophy has also been adopted to optimise st TS

the project’s environmental impact — Mean referring to : = :
reducing energy demand by the users of the facility; Lean 4 A
to increasing energy efficiency and reducing distribution

losses; and Green to adopting environment-friendly features
and tapping renewable energy sources where feasible.

EHODEBAE B PO A REMPIAFS - K2
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BRBXAEANBRARRZAETER  BEFAKNBEIR
ERRME R EE -

FORBEREEERERS  CEEBRECEEZSRSE
BRERGNMGE - BB [HERT] (RREEFNMET
B IRk BE -
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Reduce, reuse, recycle

The Club has long been committed to reducing resource usage and recycling
its waste wherever possible. Customers are strongly encouraged to switch
from paper bet slips to electronic channels. As a result, bet slip consumption
was reduced by 7.1% in 2014/15. Recycling facilities in the Off-Course Betting
Branches have been upgraded to encourage customers to discard used
tickets in a proper manner for recycling.

At the racecourse and clubhouse dining outlets, used glass bottles

are collected and recycled into eco-bricks through the Hong Chi Glass
Bottle Recycling Programme, a social venture supported by the Club’s
Charities Trust. Food waste is also recycled, and surplus food is donated

to organisations serving the needy, while used cooking oil is collected for
recycling into biodiesel. Takeaway containers and cups have been switched
from plastic to bio-based materials wherever possible.

In the LEVADE outlets at clubhouses and gift shops at the racecourses,
merchandise has been redesigned to use simpler and more eco-friendly
packaging, and in line with the Government’s recent Plastic Bag Levy
Scheme, customers are encouraged to bring their own bags.

SUSTAINABILITY
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“The Club’s second OCBB Green Day once
again helped spread the message of waste
reduction and recycling to the public.
This tallies with the Government's
Blueprint on Sustainable Use of Resources
to reduce, reuse and recycle.”

Elvis Au Wai-kwong, Assistant Director
(Infrastructure Planning and Nature Conservation)
of the Environmental Protection Department
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Sustainability

Spreading the
green message

BEHSEIRFRME

The Club has implemented various initiatives to spread the
green message to its customers and to encourage them

to show concern for the environment. For Earth Day in
April, more than half of the Club’s 102 Off-Course Betting
Branches joined the second OCBB Green Day, supported
by the Environmental Protection Department and Greeners
Action. On hand were the HKJC Green Ambassadors, who
shared green tips with customers, such as switching to
electronic betting and recycling bet slips and newspapers.

At Chinese New Year, the Club’s OCBBs also supported
a Red Packet Recycling campaign organised by Greeners
Action, distributing 350,000 reusable /ai see packets to
the public at 60 OCBBs and collecting about 270,000 for
recycling next year.
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A responsible employer & 5xEx

As one of Hong Kong'’s largest employers, with a 24,000-strong workforce,

the Club aims to offer its employees rewarding careers and the opportunity to
contribute to the community in a unique way. In doing so, it seeks to look after
the health and well-being of employees and to give them the opportunity to grow
according to their potential. The Club implements comprehensive Occupational
Health and Safety policies and is well recognised for the quality of its staff training
and development programmes. This includes offering training to its 18,000-plus
part-time staff. In 2010 the Club established the Hong Kong Jockey Club College
to put its training programmes on to a more systematic and structured basis.

In addition, since 1999 it has maintained a Corporate Wellness Programme,
encouraging staff to maintain a healthy work-life balance.

FEEATEBRAREIZ— AETMENTEEIRMARERNIENERHLE
MNTEKE  EREEEINS MER  SBETREMR - FSETE2EHABRR
REINHEERERZE  BEENESTHIINRBRAEMEZLT  BERS BN
TZERBETIRMZIKS - —O—OF - FEHUEBEFTEENR  UERASZIL
MAXNZEREEIGE - L EEE-NAANFUREER [ 25 0E 0 RBE
TR BESEETETERREEE ZBEUS T -

Dedicated to high integrity ==z

For an organisation that offers world-class horse racing and sports betting to its
customers, maintaining the highest standards of integrity are fundamental. The Club
requires all employees to sign a Code of Conduct which is rigorously monitored

and enforced. Its racing operations are recognised worldwide for their high integrity,
especially in the area of drug control and testing where Hong Kong is considered to
be a global leader.

FSERNABEERMUABRSAFNESREEERRE  RERSHHAERERS
EMER -  FEERMAEEIRT ERZENTATE  BEEERIBRBTZET
Bl- SEESXEBNSHEERIEMRBESE  LHEERERIH BBEER
e

Advocating &84 iIE%
responsible gambling

The Club has been entrusted by the Hong Kong SAR Government to be the city’s
sole operator of licensed horse racing, football betting and lottery services so as to
meet the public demand for betting in a regulated and responsible manner. It has
never accepted credit betting and has long had rigorous controls in place to ensure
that only adults aged over 18 can access betting services.

SERBNRRE  RAOBM —EBRUEHBESRERELORE  UARBUT
EEANGERS FE-HTHRETREBENER  B-HTEFTHENE
EHEEER  RTEZEERE  YRERARTHEBERIATASES
ZiERBTNABRALTSEBE -
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Sustainability

A number of the community and charitable projects funded by The Hong Kong Jockey

charities naust Club Charitigs Trust each year are eith.er spgcifically targeted at he.lping to create a

- greener environment, or include sustainability-related elements. Since 1984 the Trust
I t ﬂ has donated over HK$1 billion to such programmes. Some of the programmes newly
p ays l s pa supported or extended during 2014/15 include:

Edzz e (=t s RS SRS BRI ER AR TR ARR T ENH BREEE
FEREETES o BN\ - BB S R EEE BB EA BT o —O—

RIERSCRUBIER I/ — F R B S R R A

&8 ﬁﬂﬁ“""""

or et Eiﬁ"‘ AR

b ,.:-mr-"l“"“i‘.

r r 3 The Hong Chi Jockey Club Green Education Campaign for Kindergartens

e S and Special Schools, a new green education campaign encouraging pupils to put
arming environmental concepts into practice in areas such as clothing, food, housing and
hine transportation. It includes teaching kits, school workshops, educational tours, fun
days and exhibitions.

ELEETELROHETE (WHERBKRER) —Ei%%ﬁ@ﬁ%%
B EBEME BRI - £RE IRIFBRRES  SEEL
TR RE - TEETHERRRIES

The Jockey Club Carbon Care Open Innovation Lab,

a new open platform designed to engage stakeholders from the
education and business sectors, as well as the media, in promoting
cross-sector collaboration in solving sustainability challenges.

5 [ERAR] AEHNRAKRATE  EEERRBHAER
BER  URSRBABNEAERTETEE  BEEYT
FEBRIRE -

The Mission Healthy Greens — Jockey Club Elderly
Green Living Programme, to promote green lifestyle
concepts among the city’s growing elderly population.
[t commenced in Wong Tai Sin District in 2013 and was
extended to Kowloon City and Sham Shui Po in 2015.

LHE — EFEREGELETEE EERRBASTE
FAMRES  LABEEETEES - ZEER-O—=
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DONATIONS - .

A NEw RECORD £l 4 8%

Hk$3,87 1

Charitable Donations BE & TZZ1EH

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Charitable and Community Donations (HK$M)
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities

Trust has donated an average of over +FEEFEHEBBAT/\ES !ncrease.
HK$ 1.8 billion to the community T BATERIIMESTE - A in Donations
every year over the past decade REBEBIA—E AR EEE Rk EIER

by way of its own major initiatives
and donations, supporting the
projects of well over 100 charitable
groups and organisations each
year. These encompass four major
areas, namely Community Services,
Education and Training, Medical
and Health, and Sports, Recreation
and Culture. In 2014 /15, the total
approved charitable donations were

HK$3,871 million, an increase of 7.3%

on the previous year. The approved
donations will benefit 189 charities
and community projects, as detailed
on pages 175 to 183.
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Community Services & ik %

S (FET)
Amount
s/ B Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
ERESEEECHESTEHE Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives
HEE HERITERALT BUSKERE1E /&  Tolaunch a five-year Career and Life Adventure Planning Project for Youth (CLAP for Youth@ 500,000
2R VFHTAIRAEN [BEESHE - 2lfRiE] JC) in collaboration with academics, education and welfare practitioners, Government and
AR G E business sectors
HT—IBEAH=F [BEE2EMHAT5TE8l] - 8  To carry out a three-year project “JC A-Connect: Jockey Club Autism Support Network” 167,790
FERERHERERBEEZEIE
HIT—HAH=F HEASEAEESTENEam To carry out a three-year Trust-initiated End-of-Life Care project 131,000
HARR AT &I
HIT—BEEBEREBNARERSHMHLEE  Toimplement a pilot project to build Hong Kong into an age-friendly city covering eight 100,680
sHE - N/ \EEETI R =F+F districts for a period of three and a half years
BE2016FHRERESH To support the International Philanthropy Forum in 2016 7,470
ESERSENES Jockey Club Emergency Relief Fund
RS T To provide assistance to :
BN B B AKE M BN =+ ERE Twenty-four families of fires or other natural disasters 517
FRBEAS B ST AT SROA B2 A 1 DA B R 2 ) HEZR B2 Ten families who faced financial hardship due to the sudden death of their main breadwinners 510
TR AR AR Z 8 HERE RERIA Ten families and individuals with special financial needs 497
RELBESATRAE - THESEHMEINP AR  Four families who faced financial hardship due to the death of main breadwinners or being
ZHENUEARE affected by traffic, construction or other accidents 220
ERNES (THRREHSEGE) The Society for the Aid and Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers (HKSAR Chief
Executive’s Community Projects List)
BOASNEERETRER S RKSHEMREBER  To fund the reprovisioning of the Rehabilitation House and the Detoxification Ward in Shek
HETRE Kwu Chau Treatment and Rehabilitation Centre 36,000
BEEERA R Food for Good Limited
BEZEEERER LA RERE - UERHETHER  Tofund its setting up of a community kitchen in Yau Tong and its education and community
HEEtE - RE=4 programmes for three years 34,860
EAEEREEHEHRS S.K.H. Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre
BB OEITRIE TR To fund the renovation of the SKH Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre 30,740
REEHE Home Affairs Bureau
188) 2015/16 FEH D F/EE To fund the 2015/ 16 Youth Programme 22,300
HEE Heep Hong Society
BYRIERBRRERFTL - WEHHEBRES  To fund the setting up of a Parents Resources Centre at Oi Man Estate and a three-year
EXERERRE - RE=F Support Development Service for Persons with Autisitc Spectrum Disorders 21,400
BEE ((THRRELSERE) Youth Outreach (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community Projects List)
BB — B =+ PO/ N A IEE b & - #17—  To fund the development of an All-time Positive Youth Culture Base and a series of positive
R IEE M AE NEEINES) - AEHE training programmes for four years 16,340
EBLEHLER The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong
BENZ AN KT W L5 TSt & To fund an enhancement project for its sheltered workshop in Sham Shui Po 13,330
DONATIONS
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S8 (TET)

Amount

s/ Rk Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
EREBRL SR International Social Service (Hong Kong Branch)
BEZE AERRERITNR L EARETE] - BH  Tofund its enhanced support service programme for cross-boundary families for three years
=4 11,830
ERSEHS The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
BZEEEMNRLEFAEGEFF LD - LARHME  Tofund the setting up of a Social Innovation Centre for Youth in Wong Chuk Hang and the
TIBBR#HBE - RE=F launch of an Incubation and Education Programme for three years 10,660
ERFT—AHEERAA Hong Kong New Generation Cultural Association Limited
BOE=TEZES O FRREAE To fund the 30th China Adolescents Science and Technology Invention Contest 9,550
ERERHE Hong Kong Single Parents Association
BYZEEDBEKITHRESER L - WEBE  Tofund the setting up of a new Family Support Centre in Sha Tin and its operating costs for
BE=FKE three years 8,280
IRREREBEIFEHS Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services
BERHBESSEIB R L - RE=F To fund the Jockey Club Digital Inclusion Centre for another three years 7,840
ERERBELFIDHEESE ((THRELEEE Committee of Youth Activities in Hong Kong (HKSAR Chief Executive’s
=ral) Community Projects List)
1BBh [HHRE - BIXER] 518 - REAI=4 To fund the Set Sail for Youth Business Programme for three years 7,730
RRRZERHE X Principal Chan Free Tutorial World Limited
BEVEEARABEZ A BERP L - WEPHLER  To fund the setting up of a talent development centre in Tai Kok Tsui and its operating costs
SlcREtEl - REA=5F and training programmes for three years 7,270
Rl EBEFRA R Make a Difference Institute Limited
BHESE [EI1R ] 25:2015-2016F E MK & To fund the 2015-2016 Jockey Club Make a Difference School 7,250
RE=R Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
BY [ HERAR—BFBSESSRHHRSNM] - B Tofund the HKJC Special Marathon “i-Run” for three years from 2015 to 2017
20155 ZE20174 « REAI=F 6,820
BEARERHES The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council
BEZ SN BEN RSP OEITRETIE - LA To fund the renovation of a new service centre in Kwun Tong and implementation of the
REPEBBRERTRRBARE - BE=F Parent Coordination Service for Divorced Families for three years 6,460
EEBAEIRES The Hong Kong Society for the Deaf
BYZSERERM T8 ARE+T O/ [F215  Tofund the renovation and fitting out of the Deaf Cafeteria in the Lions Nature Education Centre
RE] ETREIRERBERE at Sai Kung 6,140
HEmEs The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council
BOZEREREESRALES [1REE] HRiE To fund the enhancement of facilities of its Healthy Manor, a hostel for persons with

moderate intellectual disability 6,000
BB ELELEERRAT Hong Kong General Chamber of Social Enterprises Limited
BE2016F R S hEFE To support the 2016 Social Enterprise World Forum in Hong Kong 5,870
EBEBHLEES Hong Kong Young Women'’s Christian Association
BEZEERKEHTT [ZXRRATTETE - BB=F  Tofund its Walking Hand in Hand with Deprived Families project in Tin Shui Wai for three years 5,630
EBEZPLHE The Hong Kong Federation of Women’s Centres
BhzeBRP O EIRERESRE To fund the renovation and fitting out of its Lai Kok Centre 5,440
EBEYBRBEESHRAT The Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Care Foundation Limited
BEHEAREMBAREYEIRRY - AH=5F  To fund its community pharmaceutical service for the elderly for three years 5,120
RIEEEERATF Hans Andersen Club Limited
BEBEAR Y BERMEMEXE Y518 - 8=  Tofund a Sunshine Lamma Project to serve people on Lamma Island for three years 4,100
EBPYARBESSEFEMEM The Chinese University of Hong Kong Jockey Club Institute of Ageing
BEZb AE BRI REEF@EES - ARESF  Tofund the development of an AgeWatch Index for Hong Kong and publication of the
NBERER  RBARF findings on an annual basis for five years 3,550

DONATIONS



£® (TET)

Amount
g/ Rig Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
BEREEEE Hong Kong Association of Gerontology
BBV EEEZAREETE - REMRF To fund the Hong Kong Carer Supporting Network project for two years 2,900
BARBEERAT 1st Step Association Limited
BEEERATHRE B E - REI=F To fund its community mutual support project for the disabled for three years 2,660
RNGLZEERAF Cheung Chau Island Women'’s Association Limited
BEE (8 (] RZERM] 518 - REIME To fund its Green Harmony in Cheung Chau project for two years 2,660
EEEEE The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention, Hong Kong
BEEBEERGMNESETREIEREERE To fund the renovation and fitting out of its Bradbury Oasis Hostel 2,520
EEEERLENE Women’s Welfare Club Western District, Hong Kong
BOERERBESEML RS - REI=F To fund a pain management community project for the elderly for three years 2,100
BEENES The Society for the Aid and Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers
BB E R e B RIE S D F RN ERMRE © To fund the Family-Social Protective Network to tackle hidden adolescent drug abuse
BE=F problems for three years 2,070
BHERRESNEE Joint Mediation Helpline Office
BEEREWAATHITHY N A AR S At To fund its Minor Dispute Mediation Pilot Scheme for people with limited means for two years
R 1,900
BBFEE The Samaritans
BENVE SRS LEITRISTIE - LARMIT—IE  To fund the renovation of its service centre in Chai Wan and implementation of a youth
FrIEEFBRETE - REB=4F suicide prevention programme for three years 1,540
HEHEs The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council
BEZ SN EBRNAEE RERBEH OIGELFE  Tofund the acquisition of a 28-seater van for its Fairy Land, an integrated rehabilitation
B+ BN service complex in Kwai Chung 687
FlEEERESFRAAE Against Child Abuse Limited
BEIEAPIR LN Z AR EETRISTRE To fund the renovation of a multi-purpose function room at its Tuen Mun Centre 529
LEERGRARE Glorious Praise Fellowship (Hong Kong) Ltd
BENVEMI A HEFIRIAR S RIERF OIEE —26/<EERZ  To fund the acquisition of a six-seater van for its drug treatment and rehabilitation centre in
NE Tuen Mun 312
EEBKRE The University of Hong Kong
BOZRET - EEBEBERALTHADSE  Tofund a study on the demographics of older adults in Hong Kong
iS5 200

TIIRBEZERREEN_O—h/ — "FENBEESSLEE B &K

The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2015/ 16

ERBERE SAHK

TR BN 1B R iR & AR TS To fund its Comprehensive Rehabilitation Seating Service 4,145

EREEHS The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups

BEEEFE TS To fund its Youth Volunteer Network 4,086

EHEEHS St James’ Settlement

BEE [RUERTT] stERRTE To fund its Employment and Training Programme for Vulnerable Groups and Youngsters 3,880

BRHERE Mother’s Choice Limited

BEEBIMER TR O RS To fund its Pregnant Girls Services - Support Centre Services 3,237

BEBNERSS The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong

BOEERLE — 2HUREARGHETE To fund its “Open the Heart” Holistic Child-Focused Counselling Project 3,000

BERAHBREES The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council

18 By EL OB IR A R AR S To fund its Marriage Mediation Counselling Service Project 3,000

ERBEAEHE Hong Kong Playground Association

BYE [FFF2E] 52 To fund its Unusual Academy 2,972

EEg Hong Chi Association

BOEES et To fund its Supported-Employment Projects for People with Intellectual Disabilities 2,763
DONATIONS
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S® (T8T)

Amount
s/ Rk Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
RE=R Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
BEVEF T 5 B SRS To fund its Parent-Child Interaction Therapy Service 2,679
Fyitt BT The Salvation Army
BBE [BER  RE] REXEBG To fund its Family-Friendly Community-Based Project 2,387
M2 R Harmony House Limited
BEE [BEEMAT] 5HE To fund its Moving Forward Against Domestic Violence Project 2,331
5 [ELAT Adventure-Ship Limited
BOEE FEFEmHA 2 To fund its Nautical Adventure Life Education Project 2,293
EBBEEFH Hong Kong Sea Cadet Corps
BENEZ O BREED To fund its Core Training Programmes for Cadet Members and Volunteer Leaders 2,114
EREEENE Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong
18 B E A m ST A2 To fund its Inclusive Arts Project 1,997
EBAt+EE Hong Kong Red Cross
8 BN E il AR B B a7k B B E AT 2 To fund its Uniformed Group Leaders & Trainers Development Project 1,987
EREAGESE The Hong Kong Society for the Blind
BOERBERERRERP L To fund its Parents Resource Centre for Visually-Impaired Children 1,897
DHE AEEBR Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired
BB EIRIE 4 RHE 2 IE RS To fund its Early Intervention Programme for Visually-Impaired Children 1,863
EREBHRKE Hong Kong Christian Service
BEE RS 5t To fund its Integrated Service Centre for Local South Asians 1,847
ERBEERAT Suicide Prevention Services Limited
BEE [ 1T — INERERSS ] To fund its Outreaching Befriending Service for Suicidal Elderly 1,780
EREREAENE The Hong Kong Society for the Aged
BENEHEE N — REFRERFEE To fund its Elder-Friendly Employment Practice 1,680
REMMLHEERHROERAE The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited
BBV EM & EERT To fund its Community Cultural Heritage Plus Project 1,528
HEE Heep Hong Society
BB EEREERINIRRYG To fund its Outside School Support for Students with Special Education Needs and their Families 1,505
EEREBERS LR Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong
BB E 2F R 124 To fund its Kwai Chung Care Network 1,488
BHBERERREY The Parents’ Association of Pre-School Handicapped Children
BEE [RE  RE MERE] 58 To fund its HOPE — Parents’ Networking Project 1,470
RBEIERRE Agency for Volunteer Service
BBEET & T2 To fund its Volunteer Talent Bank Project 1,459
SR TREATS
BHERE RS OFHRHE KR To fund its Social Inclusion Project for Children and Youth in Hong Kong 1,450
BEEHNR The Friends of Scouting
BEBEA [K] AR — FEHFXESFEHET To fund its Know the Future — Non-engaged Youth Counselling Scheme 1,405
IRREBREEIERS Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services
BB E E 1B IR E R4S, To fund its Computer Rehabilitation Resource Station 1,390
ERLEEHE The Hong Kong Girl Guides Association
BBE [REAREEE] BRARETE To fund its Intergenerational Citizenship Project 1,360
ERNRETESS The Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong Limited
B E M B AT S To fund its Second Chance Project 1,277
EREASENGEERAT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
BYE [AER| REEDHEE To fund its Positive Life Elderly Suicide Prevention Project 1,241

DONATIONS



8 (FET)

Amount
s/ A Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
BEAEERFEEHEH S.K.H. Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre
BBV E Bt R AR E T To fund its Human Re-engineering Project for Building a Better Community 1,232
ERREREMNE Hong Kong Family Welfare Society
BB EELZAIFTRET 2 To fund its Bridge to Competence Project 1,219
EEHEENS Haven of Hope Christian Service
TR BhEL (i R AV B B A [ RS T To fund its Healthy Living in a Caring Community project 1,212
EBRHRRES Hong Kong Special Olympics
BEESRAREREIF & To fund its Golf Development Project 1,177
FFtEFREERRAT Against Child Abuse Limited
BYHE [E2E0 ] RERSE To fund its Healthy Start Home Visiting Project 1,172
RS The Comfort Care Concern Group
BEAFZEESTE To fund its Comfort Care and Support for the Bereaved project 1,161
ERAE Caritas - Hong Kong
BEE 28R 58 To fund its Professional Support Services for Children with Attention Deficit and Hyperactivity
Disorders and their Families 1,079
REE Fu Hong Society
BB EKRERE To fund its Casa Famiglia — small group home project 1,075
BEEHARERE L Christian Family Service Centre
BN E B KO0E T & To fund its Youngsters in Motion Project 1,032
EBMBFERLEERS The Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong
BEVER I8 BT E To fund its Suicide Prevention Education Project 1,016
EERERES Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children
BHHE [F -4 2] RES2FE () To fund its Whole Learning Project (Phase IlI) 893
ZEEEERAT Hans Andersen Club Limited
BYH [BAETERR] 58 To fund its Sunshine Community in Tai O 880
BEERE SR International Social Service (Hong Kong Branch)
BEE [BAARTT] — EHERET S To fund its Support Project for Families with Young Kids 869
HeE Sik Sik Yuen
BEE [B4dm « REGHK] &+ To fund its Cherish Our Life: Enhancing Psychological Well-being of Elders Project 854
China Coast Community Limited China Coast Community Limited
BBREZ G SRR (5%) 2k &BhEtEl  Tofund its Subsidy Package for Comprehensive Social Security Allowance Recipients 843
EEEEL Chung Sing Benevolent Society
BEE [BEAE] KHE2BHE To fund its Elderly Lifelong Learning Project 714
EFSRMNEESEFEEHRL Jockey Club Cheung Chau Don Bosco Youth Centre
BB ES FRETEHE R To fund its Adventure-based Counselling Programme for Youth 699
ERERMAEERE The Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association
BENEM (4] #F — ERREIEBR To fund its SHARE Project — a comprehensive support service for families of children with
Down Syndrome 680
fREEESE Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association
BB EhiEEE R BB L RIERRT To fund its Community Rehabilitation Service for Pneumoconiosis Patients and Families 645
BEREEEES The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong
BHHMTRERE S To fund its Community Level Sex Education Programme 617
EREERES Street Sleepers’ Shelter Society Trustees Incorporated
BEEEFEEEZR To fund its Wan Chai Homeless People Shelter 380
Nt (&R )
Sub-total (Community Services) 1,316,232
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Education and Training #& 353

S5 (FHI)
Amount
s/ g Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
EREFGRES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarship Scheme
BOEAESSRESHENNEE - AHAF To support the new developments of the Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarship Scheme for
five years 116,010
KA BBESSREBSHEETHEIMIFRAELRES  To set up the Overseas Graduate Scholarship under the Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarship Scheme 75,490
RIIBEHE REE To support a scholarship for Vocational Education 12,550
BER Education Bureau
BERDHERESS2HNBEES - A2015F 2  To fund The Hong Kong Jockey Club Life-wide Learning Fund for three more years from 2015
2018%F - RHI=%F to 2018 277,580
BEBEKE The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
BEEMRER S ERAE To fund its research postgraduate hostel project 176,050
BERPNARE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
BEEMRER SRS To fund its research postgraduate hostel project 137,440
BEEAR Lingnan University
BOEAFIRENESSZETRE RN TE To fund the renovation and refurbishment of the Jockey Club Hall on its Tuen Mun campus 55,670
BHERGEERAR United Labour Chi Hong Association
BEVERIR + IUEM S B Bae sl 0#178  To fund the refurbishment project of its Ying Choi Vocational Skills Training Centre
IR in To Kwa Wan 6,090
ERF—KLBERRAE Hong Kong New Generation Cultural Association Limited
B2 RAEMREEENE RIRHES - BH=F  To fund its professional study and visiting programme for teachers for three years 4,320
LR RERA A AFS Intercultural Exchanges Limited
BENE R EITRETRE To fund the renovation of its Centre 910
REBRERFLZER Po Leung Kuk Yu Lee Mo Fan Memorial School
BOZREE —W_—+ N\ BELRE To fund the acquisition of a 28-seater school bus 760

THRBERSEREER O~/ —AFENTERS SR A EIBK

The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2015/ 16

BFRSERRAER D T

AFS Intercultural Exchanges Limited

BB EAFSEIRE XL 338 SN it st El To fund the AFS Intercultural Exchanges Sending Programme 1,369
EERA TR E Life Education Activity Programme

B HEHRHE RE To fund its Special Needs Programme 536
BOuRERALTHE Direction Association for the Handicapped

BEHE [EmmmE - RRRLE 58

To fund its Hopeful Life Project 516

NEF (BB RIE)

Sub-total (Education and Training) 865,291
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Medical and Health &s2&% 4

&8 (FHT)
Amount

Wis/ R Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
KRB (TBRRELEEEEE) Tai Po Hospital (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community Projects List)
BN i B BR R TR A 2 K MR BRAE M E B 2 To fund the conversion of an open garden into a weather-proof rehabilitation and activity area 39,900
BEBEES The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
BOEMERAZETE - RE=F To fund its Community-Based Cancer Support Project for three years 17,460
EERTIARERLAERDR Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited
B ATETIERZ BT AMETEREBSTE To fund its Return to Work Coordination Project for work-injured workers for three years
RE=F 2,590

TIRBRZETESR _O—h/—"FENEEES L EE BB

The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2015/ 16

EEHH ST RLERE United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service
BEEMERERETE To fund its Community Geriatric Health Maintenance Programme 4,090
EREEE The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention, Hong Kong
BEVE AN T2l To fund its Project OASIS 1,908
ERAREE The Society for the Aid and Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers
BYEREHER R BEEE5E To fund its Peer Counsellor and Internship Schemes 1,610
EREASEEERARD Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre
BUEAFPERGR AT RHAE TS To fund its Chinese Herbs Employment Training and Education Programme 1,138
EETARERLERAR Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited
BEYE RO HE R b R b TEfEET 2 To fund its Working Together to Enhance Health and Safety Culture and Workplace
Improvement Project 384
INEE (BREERTAE)
Sub-total (Medical and Health) 69,080
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Sports, Recreation and Culture #2878 ~ B4 ik

&8 (FET)
Amount
Hetrs/ Ag Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
EEESSREGRESTEE Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives
BOFEEEREFRA AT E — S/HER To fund the Central Police Station Compound Conservation and Revitalisation Project — 6th
tranche allocation 800,000
BEhA R, - EEETMREE 2015 Cavalia 5T To fund the Transport Subsidy Scheme for the underprivileged for Cavalia 2015 programmes
fE)R 1,200
EBEFREE The Hong Kong Award for Young People
BORRARENE T BREIIREETERZIIER  To fund the redevelopment of The Duke of Edinburgh Training Camp in Tai Po and its
HEAT R B =F A3 AR 2l training programmes for three years 203,390
BEAR - EEMR B DARBMER Public Riding Schools at Lei Yue Mun, Pok Fu Lam and Tuen Mun
BENE 2014/15 FE = 2018/19 FEREAZ H To fund their capital expenditure for five years from 2014 /15 to 2018 /19 146,960
BEERHREAEFRAA The Hong Kong Football Association Limited
BB RN EN B ERTE To fund the five-year Football Development Programmes 119,590
MERES South China Athletic Association
EBEBRUEZSETEAERE  RIENKEH Supplementary grant for redevelopment of the grandstand and enhancement of the football
KRR B IS ETRR pitch and golf driving range 44,880
EREEHS The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
BB EMEEERREE RE=F To fund the Community Team Sports and Sports Serve Community Programme for
three years 39,900
BB ERASSRAT The Hong Kong Football Association Limited
IERBFARZ SRR RERGIRT Supplementary grant for the construction of the Football Training Centre at Tseung
Kwan O 30,300
EEBENEHEaRAT Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited
ER0ISEERSEMEH [BEBEEeERZT | To fund the Hong Kong Jockey Club Series for the 2018 Hong Kong Arts Festival;
EER016EE BB [BEEEeatrm=g  the HKIC Student Matinee Programme, and the local production projects “HKJC
B URAHELEE [BEEEeERENTLH Contemporary Dance Series” and “Danz Up” for the 2016 Festival
51 R [E5E5] 24,820
ERAPT - SHHEMREM ARBMER Public Riding Schools at Lei Yue Mun, Pok Fu Lam and Tuen Mun
HBNHE2015/16F EH)FEERE To fund their net operating deficits in 2015/ 16 24,660
FEERREEASERLA Physical Fitness Association of Hong Kong, China Limited
BEREB=FFH [BE KeepFit 712\] §8E#EE  Tofund a three and a half-year physical fithess development programme "Keep-Fit Formula
RBEtEl for Children ” 17,300
BERXLEKE Leisure and Cultural Services Department
BHZER2015/16FEERERNAEEFEE  Tofund three exhibitions in Hong Kong in 2015/ 16 under the Hong Kong Jockey Club Series:
RIRIN=TARE  Zr A&t - FRIANEEMEIN “The Rise of the Celestial Empire: Consolidation and Cultural Exchange during the Han Dynasty”,
o FEERE — AEAERERBEA AR  (BCRE “Western Scientific Instruments of the Qing Court” and “The Radiant Ming 1368-1644 through the
ERmEAR Min Chiu Society Collection” 17,000
EEAR Lingnan University
B RB=FNEEELEETE To fund the Hong Kong History Learning Programme for three years 14,830
BHEEU RO Hong Kong Arts Centre
BOESSERILRT  RA=F To fund the Jockey Club Street Music Series for three years 12,740
EEEFEHE The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
BEN2015F & 2017 B BRI = 51880 To fund the Hong Kong International a cappella Festival from 2015 to 2017 11,770
BERZEEFRAF Hong Kong String Orchestra Limited
BYETeSREETE - AH=F To fund the Jockey Club Power of Music Programme for three years 9,950
FTEBIEERA A Prospects Theatre Company Limited
B AB=FNES S RS2 To fund a three-year Jockey Club Equal Opportunities Drama Project 9,500

DONATIONS
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Amount

s/ Rk Organisation / Purpose (HK$000)
EELEREBRAE Association Culturelle France - Hong Kong Limited
FRBNERI20155 A B A A s S IEET B To fund the programmes of Le French May 2015 9,200
BERLEKE Leisure and Cultural Services Department
1B [EYirsE ) | IRAERER - RS2 HEE To fund the upgrade of the artefacts and multi-media installations of the Museum of Art on Wheels
RIEITEMI A INERTE] - REA=SF and an art outreach learning programme for three years 8,130
EBBMF Hong Kong Arts Centre
188)2015/16 FEBEFE ifva Everywhere 51 E| To fund the Jockey Club ifva Everywhere project in 2015/ 16 6,800
EENRGZERZERRAR Alice Theatre Laboratory Limited
BRI =FNESSE T BRI ESHERTE To fund a three-year Jockey Club Theatre-in-Education Project on Hundred Schools of Thought from

Ancient China 6,630
ERRBGEERAAE Opera Hong Kong Limited
B EFREBMKERGTE - RE=F To fund the Opera Young Artist Development Programme for three years 6,630
DREEHE St James’ Settlement
BYESE [EEANEE] SUHREHAEE] - BHA=F  Tofund the Jockey Club “Blue House Studio” Cultural Heritage Education Programme for three years 6,520
BERRXEKE Leisure and Cultural Services Department
XFERLEEBEDE To support the 5th Hong Kong Games 6,000
ZRAR . Penfold Park
BBIE 2015/16 FENE @ RKE To fund its capital and operating expenditure for 2015/ 16 5,450
EREBA Radio Television Hong Kong
BYEERBELRIFE =8 To fund the production of the Hong Kong History Series I 5,330
EREEEMWHS Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation
BYHES S BRI FR015 To fund its Jockey Club Community Arts Biennale 2015 4,980
BBERLHE The Hong Kong Philharmonic Society Limited
1BBNH2015/16 FEZE 201718 FEAH=FH [F  To fund the “Keys to Music” Education Programme for three years from 2015/16 to 2017,/ 18
LR | HAEEE 4,830
EE?JHTE%E%%EF/D\ Asia Society Hong Kong Center
2B [BEAL  BZRES | RERBERBHINE  To stage the “Life is Only One: Yoshitomo Nara” exhibition and organise a six-month art education
ABBMHE 'ﬁ E programme 4,210
EREEHE The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
BOBEESEHEESS [B5FK - 8F—0J1  Tofund its HKFYG Jockey Club “Ten Thousand Galloping Horses, United with One Heart”
KEBEMRHEE Installation Art and Education Project 3,950
BERLEKE Leisure and Cultural Services Department
BB 2015 BB EAEEHEN ABHE 2 To fund five educational initiatives at the Hong Kong Flower Show 2015 3,770
BT E BB AR "ﬂ Art in Hospital Limited
BB R B B e E 5 & To fund a two-year Mural in Hospital project 2,000
TEEBSFRES Handball Association of Hong Kong, China Limited
SR BD I 2014 To support the Hong Kong Beach Festival 2014 1,930
R REFE Tai Hang Residents’ Welfare Association
BERZER0I5FE01 T FHIREE T=EATFENEEEE)  To fund the Tai Hang Fire Dragon Dance during the Mid-Autumn Festival for three years from 2015 to 2017 1,810
BEERESERRAT Young Artists Development Foundation Limited
BZERTLFERBEBEITREHE S To fund its Painting Education Programme for youth and the underprivileged 1,410
REHEHEERPOLERA A The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited
BENE AR L 25 HM REBEIRE To fund its Education Programmes: Hong Kong History Series Teaching Kit and Learning

Ideas beyond Classrooms 879
EBERESHRAF The Hong Kong Football Association Limited
BEZE RS FRIKEREEIIRE DM To fund the acquisition of fitness training and performance analysis equipment for the youth squads 520
EBrREses Wan Chai Sports Federation
HEEIB KA LI RS A P B RR RSB D Supplementary grant to establish its Office-cum-Sports Centre at Moreton Terrace 493

Nat (B8R - REERUE)

Sub-total (Sports, Recreation and Culture) 1,620,262

43t Total 3,870,865

DONATIONS

183



TRUST'S MAJOR

INITIATIVES

ON COMMUNITY

PROJECTS

FEFTERBHEE

H

Environment Project B2P& 5t 1

wiE/ A

Organisation / Purpose

EBRERIBERDE
BB —TRE MBS E AR A R R IR
ELEE

Carbon Care Innolab Limited
To fund a project to build a community of carbon care innovators and to facilitate innovative solutions to
key sustainability challenges

KHBERRLF
BEIZEBEE AN - SR RORKIHEI T RE A
BHEE RE=F

Mission Healthy Greens Limited
To fund its green education project for the elderly in the Wong Tai Sin, Kowloon City and Sham Shui Po
Districts for three years

FAMILY: A Jockey Club Initiative For a Harmonious Society
F+ A\ BEEMEEHLEEE

®iE/ Ak

Organisation / Purpose

BB NERSE
HEFT [SORNTEIFBIFUN] 518 - REIME - SA
RESEEZF R 2 RN EREBRREERIER

The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
To carry out the “3Hs Family Drama Project II” for two years to promote positive family communication and
family holistic health among school children and their parents

BERMERKEHE
E2E T \E#ET [REREFEEHES | &t
g BEmE

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
To carry out the “Happy Family Kitchen Movement” project for two years in 18 districts

FHRAR
1T [E2%] REHEE

Caritas - Hong Kong
To carry out the “Be Healthy, So Easy: Family Education Project”

EBHRERBEH O
EBEHT [ £RE] LRERTE - A8
+/\EA

Christian Family Service Centre
To carry out the “Community Health Campaign: Fitter Families Project” for 18 months in Kwun Tong

DONATIONS
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Contributions to The Hong Kong Community (HK$M)
HEBLENRESR (BBET)

1,167

509

@ Betting and Lottery Duty X8 & 8235 @EH
Profits tax F5%¢
@ Charitable donations =185k

Employment and other spending
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@ Lotteries Fund #5E$
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s not-for-profit business model is unique in the industry and much admired
worldwide. It has proved to be a huge asset to the Hong Kong community over the years, enabling
the Club to provide world-class sporting entertainment while channelling public gaming demand into
community benefits, and ensuring that these services are run in a regulated and responsible manner.
The Club continues to be Hong Kong’s single largest taxpayer and ranks amongst the world’s leading
charity benefactors. Total contributions made by The Hong Kong Jockey Club and The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust to the Hong Kong community amounted to HK$34,653 million for the
2014 /15 financial year.

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Sources of Income
and Charitable Donations for The Allocations Fund (HK$M)
EEEFERECAESRRESNBRARRNEASER (BBET)
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@ Donations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Group &Hi&ESSEEER
Charitable donations @ Financial income BfF§URA
BEBR Forfeited dividends and refunds EAREZERIER

Group Structure

The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) is a not-for-profit organisation, and is a company with liability
limited by guarantee. Through its wholly-owned subsidiaries HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited, HKJC
Football Betting Limited and HKJC Lotteries Limited, the Club holds the sole licences for the operation
and management of Hong Kong’s horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six lottery. The Jockey
Club Membership Services Limited (“JCMSL”), another principal subsidiary, manages Members’ social and
recreational facilities.

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) is a public charity and is primarily engaged in
supporting charitable organisations and community projects in Hong Kong.

Key Relationships

Given the Club’s leading role as Hong Kong’s largest provider of sporting and betting entertainment, major
source of tax and charity funding, and significant employer, the Club maintains extensive relationships with
a wide range of stakeholders.

As the only authorised betting operator in Hong Kong, the Club maintains frequent contact with the
Home Affairs Bureau (“HAB”) which regulates gambling policy in the territory, with the Betting and Lotteries
Commission which advises the HAB on gambling licensing, and with the Hong Kong Police, which enforces
laws to combat illegal gambling. In support of its commitment to responsible gambling the Club engages
with Government agencies, customers, employees, international agencies and with relevant community
bodies, including the Ping Wo Fund, which is dedicated to combating gambling-related social issues and
which receives substantial funding support from the Club.

With respect to its customers, including Members, the Club maintains a regular dialogue on the
quality of its racing and betting entertainment and the standard of its hospitality services; indeed this
dialogue is a fundamental driver of service improvement. Likewise, it engages constantly with its charity
and community partners to identify current and emerging areas of need which would benefit from the
Club’s charitable support.



A AT MEREYREND R - UNERE

HI7KF 2 mkimﬁm%ﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁmmﬁﬁmﬁ
PSR MBKFHELR - AZERES - 5

FHE A SN [E BB A E - IR K
AREEEYENSE  UESERER  EEE
ZHEHEEHAL

HRgtER %EJEF%% trEfE & 18
BF - MtSREFY AR RREZMRFRIFTA
8| -

FRRER S —EHZEXREABRE
BE  TERRMERTSNESRBEEETE) BR
SR (EADNERIERE) URIEREERE
(ﬁ&ﬂﬂi;ﬁﬂa)%%/miL@%mlﬁ

& RN HIEBIFIRE - BERAR h%ﬁwe
BT ERERZI  MEBAFHERER
EERR

SeEEBEBEIELTINE -
TMRAFSENEHERE S8 WENER
LIBFsRfZMBENR - BEEERRHEY - %M
W NE—SPEESSEARARAEEATEY
MBI o
ZEREEEBREERIEARRERTE
EELEN —O—N/ —AFEEREM) - 2BEIR
ME3hn_ LR AR AR SRR - EECHBYEERIT
BHUEBE -
SR - BT REUCERE - (A MR ER
% MREEBEMRFNERTE - $RFY
BB RIETEEE - BIEEINE H%Tmh%
K%ﬁﬁ&ﬁm%&wa@g A RRFIEE IS K
TETHEHE  HESASNBEREERK - F
B A Bk AEEl  BEEEEXEEAFE
Rim2EE @ ARRTEYHR A8 R -
EBASEYEGTERAPE -
ﬁ%ﬁtm%ﬁ%mxm%i EERFET
BIERE - BEZBEELCESOEE - FIa#EH N
%ﬁ$m%ﬁ BB RAEE RN ZEFSHRME
MAZGHEETE - SENTEEERIKEY
%%v?iﬁi?%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁieim%ﬁ
REEE A REEMARE W AZETEFH %
EEEEUBRNE ST )\ﬂi' NEERR - E—
Ot e o
—O—m/—EM=—O—=/—VEREE - D5
ANtT—EMNT+EEERSE - iEEW%%%Eﬁ
FREETTER > mMEMBASFERSEN\+=
BER - HE-O—/—REHBEE - %%&&%ﬁk
—FERTOEZBEE T AFEFHs  BEF
M EATES 2B - BEAMBEFIGRE
HEEAFRLEAEATAD 2 2t MESMAFA

BEEXEBRIINEE L

@H

m+mE—F—g&%5r  BEAFRL BT —F
—BEBIT e
MRBEESFHRELGINESHMBHEKE (
BIERERMN  AFEE R IR AMERSNE
) &1 RHMMHNBERIRTIREBE M - Bt

RAEARMBHEENSEAIZEE  EH=0
—=/ N RFEN—E=TLtEEBTERE
O—m/ —RAFEEN_tHENTN\EEET -
SETHBNIRATHIRELES  flmEE
Happy Wednesday E{EKIISRE @ LG5S

In terms of its suppliers, the Club has a rigorous supply chain management process, which is governed
according to strict decision-making protocols and codes of conduct.

Internationally the Club maintains wide-ranging industry connections through its membership of the
Asian Racing Federation (Chairman), International Federation of Horseracing Authorities (Vice-Chairman,
Asia), and World Lottery Association (Member, Executive Committee) amongst others. Through participation in
these bodies the Club is able to shape international standards, policies and protocols for the benefit of the
industry and in support of its own business development.

Group Revenue and Operating Costs (HK$M)
EERARRERE (BEET)
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@ Group operating costs
SEEERA

@ Group revenue
ESETLON

Group revenue excluding one-off disposal
income from investment properties

EBRAIBRBEIREMHEN —IBERA

Operational Review

Notwithstanding its not-for-profit nature, the Group adopts prudent commercial practices in the planning
and management of its businesses. By maintaining a well-run business operation and a strong financial
position, the Club’s goal is to generate sufficient surplus to enable it to maintain and enhance its role as
Hong Kong’s top charity and community benefactor.

The Hong Kong economy grew only modestly in 2014 /15 amid the slow global economic recovery and
due to weakened domestic demand. Consumer price inflation followed an easing trend as a result of mild
global inflation and receding domestic cost pressures.

Aside from the macro-economic environment, a number of other factors continue to have an impact on
the Club’s long-term competitiveness and performance. Despite being the sole licensed operator, the Club
has to defend its business continuously from the deep discounting and other tactics used by illegal and
unauthorised bookmakers as well as from the aggressive promotional efforts of Macau casinos. Likewise,
the ageing population of local racing fans, the overall change in customer lifestyles enabled by technological
innovations, and the unfavourable betting duty regime continue to challenge the Club’s betting revenue.

Over recent years, the Club has implemented various strategies to mitigate the impact of these
underlying challenges. These include strategies to revitalise racing through a rigorous customer-centric
approach and by investing substantially in racecourse facilities and new technology platforms. The Club
also continues to develop football betting to meet growing public demand. Together, these strategies have
produced positive results and have steadily increased revenue, which in turn has enabled the Club to
increase its return to the community through higher tax contributions and charitable donations.

There were 81 and 85 race meetings in the 2014 /15 and 2013/ 14 financial years respectively, with
both racing seasons each having 83 race meetings, as they did not coincide with the financial years. In the
2014 /15 financial year, total racing turnover reached a record high of HK$105,406 million, a 1.4% increase
on last year. Average turnover per local race increased by 2.7% over the last financial year, and racing net
margin was HK$4,412 million, lower than last year by HK$ 12 million.

As aresult of an increase in overseas inbound commingling partners this year (including partners from

3
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Australia, New Zealand, Macau, Singapore, and United States), the amounts of non-local bets placed by
commingling partners increased from HK$ 137 million in the 2013/ 14 financial year to HK$2,488 million in
the 2014 /15 financial year.

The Club continued to focus on enhancing the racecourse entertainment experience, for example through
its successful Happy Wednesday brand, which positions Happy Valley as a midweek social and entertainment
“hot spot”. Investment in new venues and services also continues under the Racecourse Master Plan. In
addition to the HK$4.2 billion already spent to date, a further HK$2.1 billion has been allocated to continue
Phase 3 of the project, in which new venues will be created to address unfulfilled demand, especially to meet
the needs of the Club’s younger Members and various segments among the racegoing public.

The Club’s strategic focus on world-class racing has continued to deliver outstanding results as
reflected in the record 23 Hong Kong horses in the 2014 LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Rankings.
This achievement is all the more remarkable given Hong Kong’s small horse population of around 1,200
thoroughbreds. Another impressive record was established by Able Friend, winner of the LONGINES Hong
Kong Mile in December 2014, whose end-of-season rating of 127 earned him a place among the top three
internationally, being ranked as the joint third best racehorse in the world in 2014.

Hong Kong’s global reputation was further elevated by the promotion of four more local races to
International Group One status, bringing its total number of International Group One races to ten. Hong
Kong-trained horses won nine of these races, including three of the prestigious LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races. Overseas, Hong Kong notched up four International Group One victories. These
included its first wins in the Takamatsunomiya Kinen and Santa Anita Sprint Championship, as well as two
International Group One victories at the Singapore International Races. These followed on from the success
of Hong Kong horses in the same Singapore races in 2013 and 2014.

Tax Contribution (HK$M)

B (BEBT)

0 3,000 6,000 9,000 12,000 15,000 18,000 21,000
14/15 509
13/14 s
w213 4,207 1,906
11712 405
10/11 328

0 3 6 9 12 15 18

@ Horse Race betting duty ZSE%Hi
@ Football betting duty 2 IREZE
@ |ottery duty #E351EEE

Profits tax F/15%%

@0 % of Group’s tax contribution to total taxes
collected by Inland Revenue Department
EEFARREBBRATH KN B D

To maintain Hong Kong’s leading role in global racing the Club needs world-class training and stabling
facilities, and with the current training facilities in Sha Tin reaching capacity the Club embarked on the strategic
Conghua Training Centre project in Guangdong in 2010. Technical problems and site challenges have caused
some delays, but with the support of the Hong Kong, Guangdong and Central Governments considerable
progress has been made and the Club is working towards a target opening in 2018.

Turning to football betting, the Club achieved another record high turnover of HK$78,249 million
in 2014 /15, representing an increase of 25.8% on last year. This generated HK$5,594 million in duty
payments to Government, with a similar amount returned to the Club. This encouraging performance
is the result of strong customer interest following major football tournaments during the year, and also
of the Club’s continuing effort to develop services to meet the demand for legal betting services and
products. Nonetheless, the shift in product mix to low margin bet types resulted in a lower gross margin
compared with last season.

21% Bt
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The Mark Six turnover in 2014 /15 showed a slight 1.6% decrease to HK$7,780 million, generating
commission of HK$467 million for the Club. The turnover growth in the Mark Six Lottery has remained
largely flat in recent years with seasonal variations linked to the number of jackpots/snowballs.

This year was the Club’s 130th Anniversary year, and under the theme of “Riding High Together for
a Better Future”, a series of special events was organised to share the Club’s achievements with Hong
Kong people. The celebrations were launched at the 130th Anniversary Raceday in January 2015, and was
followed by exhibitions, events and media programmes to raise awareness of the unique role the Club has
played in the city’s development. Other highlights included CAVALIA, an international equestrian theatrical
show which the Club brought to Hong Kong as the presenting sponsor, as well as The HKJC Community
Festival held at Sha Tin Racecourse over Easter, which attracted a capacity crowd of 33,000.

The Club is strongly committed to building sustainable practices into every aspect of its operations and
has established targets for carbon reduction, energy saving, resource conservation and waste management.
In support of this, the Club has invested heavily in energy-efficient systems, green buildings, green roofs and
IT solutions, as well as in environmental-friendly office renovations. Club suppliers are expected to follow
a set of sustainability guidelines covering their business and environmental practices, while a number of
initiatives have been implemented to enhance green awareness among Club employees and to encourage
their involvement in the sustainability drive.

As a socially responsible employer the Club strives to provide the best possible environment for its staff,
enabling them to develop themselves personally while also building a positive and capable performance
culture in support of the Club’s goals. Systematic KPIs are set and performance capabilities enhanced via
an Organisation Development Model and a Leadership Development Programme. Spearheading the Club’s
learning and development drive is the Hong Kong Jockey Club College, which also provides training courses
recognised under the Government’s Qualification Framework.

The Club also invests in the working environment. The Sha Tin Communications and Technology Centre
at Sha Tin Racecourse, which opened in June 2015, brings together a number of core operations within an
improved office environment. When fully occupied the building will accommodate the Club’s main Telebet
Centre, an Integrated Call Centre, the Club’s main IT functions, the Broadcasting Department, and the Hong
Kong Jockey Club College, which will occupy a rooftop campus.

Financial Highlights

The Group’s total reveng incregased 5.2% from HK$32,714 million in 2013/ 14 to HK$34,428 million this
financial year. The increase was mainly attributable to higher turnover from horse race and football betting.
Net margin and commission of HK$ 10,473 million was 7.1% higher than 2013/ 14, driven by the revenue
increase.

Total operating expenses of HK$8,961 million were HK$409 million or 4.8% higher than last financial
year, primarily driven by general inflation and higher employment costs, as well as by the increase in
depreciation following completion of capital projects during the year.

In spite of the volatile financial markets, the Group recorded a financial surplus (excluding the surplus
from the Contingency Fund) of HK$832 million in 2014 / 15, HK$ 160 million higher than the surplus achieved
in 2013/ 14. The Group’s financial portfolio, while not immune to volatility in financial markets, is globally
diversified across different geographical regions and asset classes, making it less susceptible to sudden
movements arising from any particular region or investment.

The financial assets of both the Club and the Trust are managed under a rigorous framework, with
oversight provided by the Finance and General Purposes Committee, which regularly reviews and approves
all investment policies. These assets are managed by the Club’s Treasury Department and external
professional fund managers. The portfolios managed by the in-house Treasury team are primarily for
working capital and liquidity, and are predominantly invested in bank deposits and high credit quality debt
securities. The portfolios managed by external fund managers are mainly for long-term capital growth, and
are invested in an array of asset classes across the globe with the aim of achieving consistent returns with
effective risk diversification.

The Group remains Hong Kong’s single largest taxpayer, with total tax payments (comprising betting
duty, lottery duty and profits tax) of HK$20,049 million in 2014 /15. These payments were equivalent to
6.6% of the total taxes collected by the Inland Revenue Department. Due to higher turnover and revenues,
the Group’s total tax contribution over the past year increased by 2.4% or HK$466 million.

The Group’s net surplus for the year, excluding the surplus from the Contingency Fund, was HK$5,031
million, 22.2% or HK$914 million higher than last financial year. Appropriations to the Trust were HK$3,500
million, HK$500 million higher than in the last financial year. In 2014 /15, the Trust approved record high
donations of HK$3,871 million to charitable organisations.
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Membership Services

Catering revenue in the current financial year amounted to HK$783 million, a 4.4% increase over last year.
In the face of severe competition in the hospitality and service industry, JCMSL continues to strengthen
the quality of its service delivery, enhancing product offers and upgrading its catering facilities to provide
the best possible experience to Members. JCMSL also succeeded in reducing its operating costs this year
through productivity improvement measures including direct sourcing, maximising central production
kitchen output, and through conducting periodic menu revisions.

To address future growth and to provide for Members’ needs, JCMSL began work on a major new
extension to Happy Valley Clubhouse last year. The extension will add value to the Club’s branding and
prestige, create additional capacity, and provide a more diverse range of facilities to meet the expectations
of Members of all ages, as identified by a systematic study of Members’ needs. Demolition of the old stable
block at Shan Kwong Road to facilitate the clubhouse extension has started in October 2014, site formation
and foundation work, detailed design and formalisation of the lease modification will follow.

The Beijing Clubhouse (“BJCH”) was the Club’s first strategic move into Mainland China, and since
its opening in 2008 has successfully established the Club’s brand there. BJCH has a current membership
of over 900 well-connected individuals and continues to set the standard for hospitality excellence for
both Hong Kong and Mainland based Members. During the year, the hospitality industry in Beijing was
again adversely affected by the austerity drive in Mainland China. To mitigate the impact, BJCH continues
to drive catering and accommodation revenue through its proven quality and service, as well as through
productivity improvement initiatives to lower operating costs.

The JCMSL Development Fund, dedicated to improving Membership facilities and services, stood at
HK$1,198 million this year, including a HK$44 million appropriation from JCMSL.

The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited Development Fund (HK$M)
EFSEEEKARAABRESHEE (ABET)
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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong
Kong and in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in
managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS AND DONATIONS

The results and donations of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement
on page 10. All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements are
expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group donated HK$3,500 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
and HK$68 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS
The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report are listed in the “Board
of Stewards” section.

Dr Simon S O Ip and Mr Anthony W K Chow were elected Chairman and Deputy Chairman respectively
immediately after the 2014 Annual General Meeting.

Mrs Margaret Leung was elected as a Steward at the 2014 Annual General Meeting for a three-year
term to replace Mr T. Brian Stevenson who retired as Chairman and as a Steward.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Mr Anthony W K Chow, Dr Christopher Cheng
Wai Chee, Mr Michael T H Lee and The Hon Sir C K Chow will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. All four Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

Dr Rita Fan Hsu Lai Tai will resign as a Steward of the Club at the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting for the reason that she will reach the age of 70 shortly thereafter and her
vacancy will be filled by election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Club’s business to
which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The business review is contained on pages 2 to 6, and is part of the Report of the Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES
The principal activities and Directors of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on pages 63 to 64.

AUDITORS
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Simon S O Ip
Chairman
24 July 2015
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB
(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 10 to 64, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

STEWARDS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Stewards of the Club are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Stewards determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Stewards, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Club and its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 July 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWmR

BEAB=THLEE for the year ended 30 June B EE
BEBT in HK$ million Note 2015 2014
(D) CED)
(note 1) (note 1)
HEEHEE Number of race meetings 81 85
A EEEREHBRE Amounts wagered by local customers 188,947 173,888
ESRNEEERIMOTERE Amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners 2,488 137
RITHEEE Total amounts wagered 2.2 191,435 174,025
ERERESFIA Betting and lottery revenue 2.3 31,231 29,872
TR R 2SR Betting and lottery duty (19,540) (18,870)
IR TF It BT S Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (51) (35)
BEES Lotteries Fund (1,167) (1,187)
HRREE Net margin and commission 4 10,473 9,780
Hetgg A Other revenue 5 3,197 2,842
13,670 12,622
KA Operating costs 6 (8,961) (8,552)
ReERR Operating surplus 4,709 4,070
ERA Sz Interest income from deposits 156 203
FERERRBREASHEL Surplus from securities investments and long-term investment
portfolios 7 407 287
ERESRENEER Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 8 231 125
B E A Finance costs 23 (8) 7)
IS RER Financial surplus 786 608
Frib & & A RlaFl Share of profits of joint ventures 15 815 624
HRBIE BREAESETESBIUR Surplus before taxation, donations to Charities Trust,

ERTERESRERESAINRELG transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 6,310 5,302
BiIE Taxation 9 (561) (763)
MNRFiEE BEERSETESER Surplus after taxation and before donations to Charities Trust,

ERTERESRERESAINRELG transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 5,749 4,539
BIETERESSLEETESNRE Donations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust

- BRES - Allocations Fund 10 (3,500) (3,000)
BRR BB R TR Net surplus after donations and taxation 2,249 1,539
EBRTHERES Transfer to Contingency Fund 28 (718) (422)
BERTRRES Transfer to Development Fund 29 (44) (55)
REBEAE A BB Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated Reserves 27 1,487 1,062

BETHEEATEENHEBA GRS MBRERO—BD

The notes on pages 15 to 64 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BEXA=THLEFE for the year ended 30 June F 5
BEBT in HK$ million Note 2015 2014
B ERBRAFRR R ER Net surplus after donations and taxation 2,249 1,539
Hith2mEikes Other comprehensive income
TEEFERARERNIER Items that will not be reclassified to income statement
R ENBEREENEBNENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations, net of tax 27 (81) 200
HERREN BB ARGERNIER Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement
A EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BE2Y Change in value
BEXEFESRRBREAS Debt securities and long-term investment portfolios 27 336 341
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 28 183 134
BRESRAREES Development Fund long-term investment portfolios 29 1 7)
it &EARMNEMEE (&E) /s Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of joint ventures 15 (809) 1,767
B HaE Currency translation differences 27 18 (72)
AEERBENEM2ERE Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 158 2,363
AEESHINRETE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,407 3,902

BETHEEATEENHEBA GRS MBRERO—BD

The notes on pages 15 to 64 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION | ##& Btk R 3=

~A=tH at 30 June P E
BEET in HK$ million Note 2015 2014
FRBEE Non-current assets
Y2~ RIBRB|M Property, plant and equipment 12 9,017 7,632
EHEANAE + 1 |2 + 5 FARE Leasehold land and land use
rights under operating leases 13 1,291 1,313
REYZE Investment properties 14 1 2
AENERE Investments in joint ventures 15 20,017 18,804
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments 16 3,464 3,017
ROREES Long-term investment portfolios 17 9,039 8,248
REFEMNRE Long-term prepayments 18 360 388
43,189 39,404
mEEE Current assets
ERESEE Debt securities portfolio 19 1,009 959
FrisSEEE Assets held for sale 12, 14 - 8
HiREEE Other current assets 20 815 974
PTEESRI A - HiRE Derivative financial instruments -
other investments 21 21 5
TEUECE Short-term deposits 22 2,466 4,015
RERREEED Cash and cash equivalents 22 5,885 6,031
10,196 11,992
nEEE Current liabilities
HEHIER Short-term loans 23 (150) (155)
PR BRI FE R IE Creditors and receipts in advance 24 (6,385) (6,884)
AEFEHREAE Current income tax liabilities (511) (672)
PTEESRMIA - HiiRE Derivative financial instruments -
other investments 21 (3) =
(7,049) (7,711)
RENEEFE Net current assets 3,147 4,281
FEREEE Non-current liabilities
BLEFEBIEERE Deferred income tax liabilities 25 (317) (231)
HinE s Other liabilities 26 (580) (422)
(897) (653)
45,439 43,032
& Reserves 27 28,845 27,245
HERES Contingency Fund 28 15,396 14,644
BRES Development Fund 29 1,198 1,143
ERBE Total equity 45,439 43,032
5% Simon S O Ip
Bo% Anthony W K Chow
Bk Stewards

BtREEATRENHEBA GRS BRTN—

The notes on pages 15 to 64 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FBRES BRES

f##  Contingency  Development aEE
BEBT in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
—O—mEtA—B&RR Balance at 1July 2014 27,245 14,644 1,143 43,032
BREGHRENFRRR Net surplus after donations and taxation 1,487 718 44 2,249
REERBENEMEE R Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 113 34 1 158
NEEEZHWSEER Total comprehensive income for the year 1,600 752 55 2,407
—O—HEFEXRA=THEE Balance at 30 June 2015 28,845 15,396 1,198 45,439
—O—=%tA—H&& Balance at 1 July 2013 25177 12,858 1,095 39,130
BRE BB FRREER Net surplus after donations and taxation 1,062 422 55 1,539
AEERBENEMEEKE /(&18) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 1,006 1,364 (7) 2,363
AEERHKHERE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,068 1,786 48 3,902
—O-mEXA=+BLEES Balance at 30 June 2014 27245 14,644 1143 43,032

ETREEATHENNEEAN GRS BREN—D

The notes on pages 15 to 64 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS | #Z&BR&RER

ETREEATHENNEEAN GRS BREN—D

The notes on pages 15 to 64 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BEXB=tTHLEE for the year ended 30 June PiEE
BEET in HK$ million Note 2015 2014
EEEE Operating activities
EXTHMEENRS Cash generated from operations 30 5,255 6,702
EXAFE Interest paid (8) (7)
SR Income tax paid (403) (390)
B TERESSAEGTESNRE Donations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (3,500) (3,000)
EETEMELENTFRS Net cash generated from operating activities 1,344 3,305
REEH Investing activities
EH A R =18 A U L EEFRR D Decrease in short-term deposits 1,549 980
with maturities more than three months
BEYE - RERSEM Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,502) (2,535)
HERE Y Sale of investment property 59 24
2 IREFIE Interest received 246 231
B IER 2 Dividends received 266 334
HEENREEE Injection into joint ventures (2,460) (100)
mEE Q= EE Redemption from joint ventures 1,756 666
BEAMHEENKERE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (1,671)  (6,775)
HERRHBENKERE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 1,553 5,156
HETE SR T BFTBUFRERIE Net receipt for derivative financial instruments 34 40
REBEMLENER (LM /R (Increase)/decrease in deposits held in long-term investment portfolios (329) 4
REEBIMANFERE Net cash used in investing activities (1,499) (1,975)
RUEEE Financing activities
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (6) =
GBS FIE Proceeds from borrowings - 38
BETE (FTR) /ELENTFRSE Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (6) 38
B RIRSEEYF CRL) /LM Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (161) 1,368
FHRERAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,031 4,711
R/ (EE) Exchange gains/(losses) 15 (48)
FRACKASEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,885 6,031
RERREZEVHEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
RHIER Short-term deposits 22 4,695 4,651
BITER  REREMRBES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 22 1,190 1,380
5885 6,031
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in managing
Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability
limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong
Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on pages 63 to 64.

The last two race meetings of the 2013/ 14 racing season were held on 1 July 2014 and 6 July 2014
(“July 2014 race meetings”) and the last four race meetings of the 2014 /15 racing season were held
on 1 July 2015, 5 July 2015, 8 July 2015 and 12 July 2015 (“July 2015 race meetings”). Accordingly,
the financial results of July 2014 race meetings have been included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2015 and the financial results of July 2015 race meetings will
be included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2016. The 2013/ 14
and 2014 /15 proforma consolidated income statement for the full racing season is shown on page 65.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$
million), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 10 to 64 were approved by the Board of Stewards
on 24 July 2015.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

(a) New interpretation and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations and are
effective for the current accounting period
HK(IFRIC) - Int. 21 Levies

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 19
(2011)
Amendments to HKAS 32

Employee Benefits: Defined Benefit Plans - Employee Contributions

Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Impairment of Assets: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets

Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement -

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Annual Improvements 2012 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements 2013  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(a) New interpretation and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations and are
effective for the current accounting period (cont.)

The adoption of the following new interpretation and amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements and has not led to any changes in the Group’s
accounting policies.

HK(IFRIC) - Int. 21 ‘Levies’ sets out the accounting for a liability to pay a levy if that liability is within
the scope of HKAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The interpretation
addresses the obligating event that gives rise to the recognition of a liability to a payment of a levy.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) ‘Investment Entities’ mean that many
funds and similar entities will be exempted from consolidating most of their subsidiaries. Instead,
they will measure them at fair value through profit or loss. The amendments give an exception
to entities that meet an ‘investment entity’ definition and which display particular characteristics.
Changes have also been made in HKFRS 12 to introduce disclosures that an investment entity needs
to make.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) ‘Employee Benefits: Defined Benefit Plans - Employee
Contributions’ apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments distinguish between contributions that are linked to service only in the period in which
they arise and those linked to service in more than one period. The amendments allow contributions
that are linked to service, and do not vary with the length of employee service, to be deducted from
the cost of benefits earned in the period that the service is provided. Contributions that are linked
to service, and vary according to the length of employee service, must be spread over the service
period using the same attribution method that is applied to the benefits.

Amendments to HKAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’ clarify the right of set-off must be available today, that is, it cannot be contingent
on a future event. It also must be legally enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course of
business, as well as in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendments also consider
settlement mechanisms.

Amendments to HKAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial
Assets’ address the additional disclosures about the measurement of the recoverable amount of
impaired assets when the recoverable amount was based on fair value less costs of disposal.

Amendments to HKAS 39 ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’ provide relief from discontinuing hedge
accounting when novation of a hedging instrument to a central counterparty meets specified criteria.

(b) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into operation during the financial year; as a result, there are changes to
the presentation and the disclosures of certain information in the consolidated financial statements.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(c) New standards and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations but are not yet
effective and not early adopted

The following new standards and amendments have been published and are mandatory for the
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Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2015.

HKFRS 9 (2014)
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 27

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

Joint Arrangement: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

Separate financial statements: Equity Method
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Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative

Annual Improvements 2014 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Group is still in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new standards
and amendments will be in the period of initial application, but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new standards and amendments will have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position.

2.2 Amounts wagered
The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered as the amounts wagered by local
customers and amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners.

2015
EEEY EBREF
BEANA=tTRAILLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football #% #oE
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
A RRE IOT AR Amounts wagered by local customers 102,918 78,249 7,780 188,947
BESRNEEERIMNDEEE Amounts of non-local bets placed
by commingling partners 2,488 = - 2,488
105,406 78,249 7,780 191,435
2014
EEEE IR
BEXA=THLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football 8% 45
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
iR R A Amounts wagered by local customers 103,781 62,197 7910 173,888
ESRNEEE RN Amounts of non-local bets placed
by commingling partners 137 - - 137
103,918 62,197 7,910 174,025

2.3 BERRHFBA

EEK— VAN EERRSEFHELENFRERE
B G5IERA - S REEER U ERE RO RE
HIRFRENMR SR SRR ERE - FEFRE
AR RN RS AR VIR - SRR

2.3 Betting and lottery revenue

The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities as revenue,
which is the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery
prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and betting and lottery revenue
is shown in note 4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.4 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2015, of
the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries and joint ventures are
accounted for by the Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses and movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a
joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

2.5 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income from betting
operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the Club or for the
Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s substantial investment
in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as deemed appropriate by the
Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the Contingency Fund investments
and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment income, realised surplus or deficit,
revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint ventures: HKJC Equity
Trust Fund (“Equity Trust”) and the Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”)) are held for non-
trading purposes. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for loans
and receivables (which are stated at amortised cost). The surplus derived from Contingency Fund
investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting
policy for the financial assets of the Contingency Fund investments is stated in note 2.9.



2 EEEHE (@)

26 BRES
ESES8EKERATETNERRERES  DHUNERR
WES  UERAB(LSERE ESREMELTER
BEHBERRE  $EEEFENELSRES - EEFHRE
MRERE  EERARBNEESERATSEASE
REEEKE  URMADERBN SRS IR
BE - RRESHMBEE  BIARBREHAEZR °

2.7 REREAS
RIRPREAS(BREYRRESREFESHR
BEMETEEN  REEABEFEMEESUIRER
BT AUBERE - EMENTRBEEE -
ELEREASERFHREERS  WRERHPRRR
DFEER - EERREUGR (LUK ASR) Al
BRoD - BLREMBHNESSAUABERE  WERR
ENBRFARMREESER - FARPREESH
BEENS T BRERENMEE2.9 -

2.8 EHEHES

FEEXIESNEIEEN  ARERGESBERE

LU S EBERENE SEHR - EHRESN2RPR
ZRAPEESR FHEBESESUBEENSS

BUREAMEE2.9

2.9 HBEE
SEREBBEES AUTER  AIHLEMKEE - %
AL EEFEBERIENIEEE  URER R EWRE
(BREESRRESEEY) - pERTEBESEREIMKE
ENBEWNME  BREESNILSEANEEEREEEAR
BiER - BRE—E2WRAENMEEABER - FRES
BE - REKREMAS EREFEEREEATRE 15
AEFEELMKEE - BARNENMKEE RS
BIEEEFGZEEEEE ARER - ERAVEERKER
SIBRMBIEEE - YR AL EERER - MRS KAATE
WgsRFIER © WIEFEB AL EERIBRIRNIEEE -
R LAA BB S IR 5 BRATER ©
ERRERERERNERN SR LHWEE  MEE
BEELEEFERREN—VRKRKREREGER &
ESEUERRAMEEE -

(a) AT EMTEEE
AHHEMBEERIITETE - RIANEHBIH A5
AEAEMER - RIFREBREIHNEEEAZREZ
HBERET T EARNLEEE - BATHEENKE
EMSMEERBEE - AL ENBEERREABRE
HETRIETRE « EBESR/RNBEIRE o At
EVBEEBRBUNFEEIR BREENATVE
E2E - HHARMEEWERRENREE MHER
A BEEFREECHERL -REEFREER - T
BHFRAEREEERNENER  UARLCAEEME
EWZAER R ERHRESMRFEEN D BRARE
MRBERRDEE  BIIA [RERERRBIREAS
VBEY/EE] S [BRESRENELR/BIE] ET -

SEREEFEHHNES  AERBEESRALERBE
EF - AR EREVEEFENTSRE  KEESZ
BYESEEAGERIDHELEESHMENEE - JUR
EEAFEE -

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.6 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, is held to
accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual transfer from the
net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into consideration the operating surplus,
investment income earned by this Fund, and the amounts of entrance and qualification fees of Full
and Corporate Members, and Country Concession Scheme joining fees received during the year. The
financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment portfolios.

2.7 Long-term investment portfolios

The primary purpose of the long-term investment portfolios (including investments in the Equity
Trust and the Bond Trust) is to invest surplus funds in excess of normal operational requirements for
capital appreciation over the medium to long-term.

These portfolios are held for non-trading purposes and are stated at fair value at the end of the
reporting period, except for loans and receivables (which are stated at amortised cost). The surplus
derived from these investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed within these portfolios. The
accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term investment portfolios is stated in note 2.9.

2.8 Debt securities portfolio

The primary purpose of debt securities is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The accounting policy
for the financial assets of debt securities portfolio is stated in note 2.9.

2.9 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables (including cash and
cash equivalents). The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial recognition and
re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date. The Contingency Fund investments, long-term
investment portfolios, debt securities portfolio, and the investments in joint ventures may contain
these financial assets. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day - the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in
the income statement. Financial assets not carried at fair value through profits or loss are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all such assets.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period. They comprise local and overseas listed or unlisted equities, debt securities and/
or alternative investments. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and retained in the investment
revaluation reserve until the assets are sold. On the sale of these assets, the differences between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified from investment revaluation reserve
to income are included in “Surplus/deficit from securities investments and long-term investment
portfolios” or “Surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments”.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds and private
real estate funds. For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair
values will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using
valuation techniques.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.9 Financial assets (cont.)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of derivative financial instruments. The Group uses derivatives such as interest
rate swaps, equity options, foreign exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its
financial risks and to facilitate the implementation of its investment strategies. Derivatives are initially
recognised at fair value on the date derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value.

Changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds
or the net payment and the carrying value is included in the consolidated income statement unless
the derivatives are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and are included in current assets, except for amounts that are expected
to be settled or with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period where
these are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” as shown in note 20, short-
term deposits, deposits and fund awaiting investments under non-current assets and cash and cash
equivalents as stated below.

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits
placed at bank for a fixed term are classified as “Short-term deposits” while other elements of cash
and cash equivalents are classified as “Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds”.

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. It may not be possible
to identify a single, discrete event that caused the impairment. Rather the combined effect of several
events may have caused the impairment. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter
how likely, are not recognised.

(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
income statement.



2 TEEBOR (@)

210 BEERE (&)

(a) FITEET M BRI 2 (4F)
MIETHEENRERZERENS  RABBERE
HBERENTERE  JRafEs TEM  MEEER
Bl RERN - ™5 KBESEERRHREAR
2 DBURERARMUATLNE - LUKk REN D FEE
BAERRAKEENEEASE - BAHHENITE
EFALERER  RFABE—RBERFEERLQF
BENEE  REZMBEELNTRS REREZN
EUREEBRFTE  THREEGHBERIE &
FEBRERR - ERERERABEINRERETAR
SERERERE  TEERFEREREE -

(b) LI EESE AT IRR I
MREHRREWFENS - BEAERUEEREEE
BRI B EEFRRERFRTRTEN AT ERE SR
EREMENEHTE - EENREEEHERD - ™
BEREREAGERERA °

HE-RBEEZ  BESEREZE LRERER
REFBENSZY (PINEBEANEEFRER) M
BIRA - AR ERIBNBEBREEFS RER
e e

2.11 ¥ - sREREH
Y - RERSVERERERNHIZBTER 2B
EFEXRE REAFEEREESEERMERESIE
Wz o 9% RERSMURBERVHEE LI > 15
RIBE A EAEHUESSE SRR B ERIERE
BEELITERESENT ¢

MEROEETE  EOH
e —t+5E

REREM SEEAZHEEAZ=1=
FEANHIRER EEEFNIRER RIS

BEMEMNRAZZA - 9T E
EER - HETHR - HRA
ABBEENYE  REREN
BT °

RE-—EHRHR - EENRSKEERIERFHG TR
& AR EBEERELRAR & - REENRAEES
REM AW EEE - AIRZIEE E /9 IRE B {EAS B
MEE TR EISHE (fFE2.24) ©

BERAREEEBNRRKENRTREERALE
B &R S At B HRES - A2 RENBETEEENK
HEEER - APREIAREE - TERTHNIREEE
HEUETER - TARMEBREEREELRTEY K
FENGFERBERAIEE

HENYE  RERSVAEENREIEE - 25
HEBHEEMGNFRARIREFEMRENERE - I
TEARERERARER o

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale (cont.)

For equities and alternative investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence of
impairment for an investment may include information about significant changes taking place in
the technological, market, economic or legal environment which indicates that the cost of the
investment may not be recovered, as well as a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment below its cost. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated income
statement - is reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments and
alternative investments are not reversed through the consolidated income statement.

(b) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.11 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance leases
are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases over the lease term

Buildings 25 years

Plant and equipment ranging from 10% to 33% per annum

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress until they
are ready for use in the manner as intended by management.
On completion, the project costs are transferred to the

appropriate property, plant and equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.24).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.12 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment properties
are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are depreciated on
a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives at
the same rate as buildings.

2.13 Leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases of assets where the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower
of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in non-current liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives
or the lease term.

2.14 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.15 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average cost less provision for diminution in value.

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income.
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to

Management periodically evaluates positions

interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences

arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated

financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee benefits, depreciation

on property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred income taxation.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.16 Current and deferred taxation (cont.)

(b) Deferred income tax (cont.)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period. The differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement
except for translation differences on non-monetary items of available-for-sale financial assets, such
as equities, which are included in the investment revaluation reserve.

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:
— assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;
— income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and
- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.18 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.19 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.20 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.21 Revenue recognition
Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net of betting
dividends and rebates and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents commission income and is recognised when the relevant
betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election
of members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised when
the event has been held.

Revenue from food and beverage sales, other member services and livery charges is recognised
when the relevant services have been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised on an accrual basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon
retirement with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position in respect
of the Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) is calculated
annually by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
market yields of government securities which have terms to maturity approximating terms of the
related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme applicable to each year are charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.22 Employee benefits (cont.)

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.23 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

2.24 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation
and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or
using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment on
the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off their cost to the residual
value over their estimated useful lives (note 2.11).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuation of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors including discount rate
provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 26 (e). In determining the appropriate discount
rate, the Group considers the market yields of government securities which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension obligation. Changes to the principal actuarial
assumptions can affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in future periods.

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required in determining the income tax and deferred tax provision. Final tax outcome may
be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group recognises liabilities based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (cont.)

3.4 Asset impairment

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing
whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using estimated cash
flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could significantly affect
the Group’s reported financial position and results of operations.

3.5 Joint arrangements

The Group holds 90.0%, 45.6% and 45.4% ownership interests of China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech
(Beijing) Co., Ltd (“BJ CJV”), the Equity Trust and the Bond Trust respectively. The Group has joint
control over these arrangements as under the contractual agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements for all relevant activities.

The Group’s joint arrangements are structured as limited company (i.e. BJ CJV) or trusts (i.e. Equity
Trust and Bond Trust) and provide the Group and the parties to the agreements with rights to the net
assets of these joint ventures under the arrangements. Therefore, these arrangements are classified
as joint ventures.

4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION
Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and football net
of the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting Duty Ordinance and the
Betting Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on the lottery net of related prizes, duty and
payment to the Lotteries Fund.

2015
BEEY IR
BEAA=THLESE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football #®3 i
HEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
AR BOE AR Amounts wagered by local customers 102,918 78,249 7,780 188,947
BEEE - ANRESRE Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (86,454) (67,061)  (4,201) (157,716)
R RERZIRA Betting and lottery revenue 16,464 11,188 3,579 31,231
B R RS EEH Betting and lottery duty (12,001)  (5,594) (1,945) (19,540)
SRR FIME B E AR Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (51) - = (51)
REEE Lotteries Fund - - (1,167) (1,167)
#HRARAE Net margin and commission 4,412 5,594 467 10,473
2014
BEEY EIRER
BEAA=+HLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football %% Feb)
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
AR IR E AR Amounts wagered by local customers 103,781 62,197 7,910 173,888
BEEL  BIIRRSRS Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (87,310)  (52,435) (4,271)  (144,016)
BEREEWRA Betting and lottery revenue 16,471 9,762 3,639 29,872
R R B S TR Betting and lottery duty (12,012)  (4,881)  (1,977) (18,870
SR F oMt B FHEAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (35) = - (35)
REES Lotteries Fund = = (1,187) (1,187)
MR EE Net margin and commission 4,424 4,881 475 9,780

Kb BEEEHABERARBEREFHE  —O0—
N/—H2ER=ZO0O—=/—NENBHEEEEHRSNED
ZEttH - EREEBHRASHRSEEH - A2 51
BEBRANBS 2E T REFRIBENESZ2=1H
& -

Betting duty on local horse races is charged on a progressive sliding scale on the betting revenue,
reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2014 /15 and 2013/ 14. Betting duty on football betting and
lottery duty on Mark Six are charged at the rate of 50% on the betting revenue and 25% on the
amount wagered on lottery respectively.
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5 OTHER REVENUE

BEBT in HK$ million 2015 2014
AR RIS E Charges for catering services 890 871
28 Membership fees 734 694
EERESEREKNE Stable and livery service charges 576 540
RREEREE Risk management service fee 199 118
EBEERUEeEE X NNBHKRERITAIE Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling partners 178 16
EEEBEWRE Racing related income 154 151
vl Royalty income 138 157
HELRMAERIE Sale of souvenir items 48 51
HABRA Other revenue 280 244
3,197 2,842
6 BERE 6 OPERATING COSTS
BEET in HKS million 2015 2014
B TR (MiEE11) Staff costs (note 11) 3,835 3,676
EERE Prize money 959 905
EiEEERENES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 163 148
ZHE NS Auditor’s remuneration 6 5
EEME Stewards’ remuneration - -
W2 - RIBRBMITE (FIFE12) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 1,230 1,119
EEEH (MEE12) Assets write-offs (note 12) - 73
EERNAE T 1 K 1 b AR (FTEE13) Amortisation for leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases (note 13) 30 30
SIAEET TR E WEHE AL Capitalisation of amortisation to projects in progress (30) (30)
REVHEITE (firE14) Depreciation of investment properties (note 14) 1 1
HES MM Cost of inventories sold 565 554
HEIBREER Repairs and maintenance 228 212
YRR 2 AR Supplies and utilities 646 629
H b 48 R AR Other operating costs 1,328 1,230
8,961 8,552
7 BHRERRYREHSNRER 7 SURPLUS FROM SECURITIES INVESTMENTS AND LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS
HEET in HKS million 2015 2014
HERRHEMBEENRES/ (F18) Surplus/(deficit) on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 139 (20)
EmRERE WS Dividend income from listed equities 30 29
SERERE KRGS Dividend income from alternative investments 168 237
EmEEESFE RS Interest income from listed debt securities 55 42
Ik SR SIS E Interest income from unlisted debt securities 7 9
PTESmI AT/ (B5E) Net gains/(losses) of derivative financial instruments 13 (7)
BN E Management fees (5) (3)
407 287
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8 EHRESBENELR 8 SURPLUS FROM CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS

HEET in HK$ million 2015 2014

HETHEENBEENRE Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 174 66

ERERE WG Dividend income from listed equities 68 68

EEINE Management fees (1) 9)
231 125

9 HilE 9 TAXATION

BEBT in HK$ million 2015 2014

ANERFT1SHE Current income tax

- Bk - Hong Kong 434 394

- BB - outside Hong Kong 52 20

- BEFERE - adjustments in respect of prior years (27) 232

IEIEFTSH (FfdRE25) Deferred income taxation (note 25)

- Bk - Hong Kong 102 87

- BB - outside Hong Kong = 30
561 763

FRNEHHRBEAFEMGTERBUENEED 21X
BE(ZO—MF : A2 TAHA) BEFE - B
IMERBURRNFFEENFTES - CREBBEEANS
RAEHERAE o

SERGABEBMEENERNE  BRETBIE
PR R ENBIRZRET ¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the rates

prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that

would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

HEEL in HK$ million 2015 2014
HBRFIIE - BIBEEETESBRURERFER Surplus before taxation, donations to Charities Trust,

EeRBRESAINEL transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 6,310 5,302
W R TEBESSRESTESHNE Less: Donations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (3,500) (3,000)
HBRHREARERTFERESRERESA » BHIBR Surplus before taxation and transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund

REGCTESERENES but after donations to Charities Trust 2,810 2,302
BHE16.5% (ZO—MNEF : 16.5%) T&E Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) 464 381
HER TR PSHB RN R Effect of different income tax rates in other countries 12 1
BRI RIS & Tax effect of non-taxable income (276) (215)
PRHIB S B s 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 368 318
BIEFEAE Adjustments in respect of prior years (27) 232
Hith Others 20 46
BIEZ Taxation charge 561 763
10 B 10 DONATIONS

BRETEEESSAEEAES ([FRES]) HR0E -
EESEENFHEEREREERESHERBR - 4HE
HERE -

Donations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) represent donations of the
Group’s net surplus to the Trust for charitable purposes.
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11 STAFF COSTS

HEET in HKS million 2015 2014
e R AR Salaries and other costs 3,555 3,401
REMFRETE Defined contribution plan
RIRE A Pension costs 46 43
BB AR Contributions to MPF scheme 90 81
RERAIFTE—RIRE A (FizE26) The Scheme - pension costs (note 26) 144 151
3,835 3,676
12 Y% - RREBRI[IH 12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RERNHEHE L EETH
Leasehold RRIEREEM TRIER
land under BgF Plant and Projects in “wE
EL -7 in HK$ million finance leases Buildings equipment progress Total
—O—-WME+A—ARAE Cost at 1July 2014 1,537 4,375 12,304 2,278 20,494
BB Additions - 168 1,378 1,069 2,615
R Transfers = 749 618 (1,367) -
BERTH Disposals and write-offs = = (374) = (374)
B HIRER Currency translation differences = = 3 3 6
—O—"EEAA=+HEAE Cost at 30 June 2015 1,537 5,292 13,929 1,983 22,741
—O—mE+ A —HEBTERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2014 (1,020) (2,931) (8,909) (2) (12,862)
REERE Depreciation for the year (11) (129)  (1,090) - (1,230)
BERTH Disposals and write-offs - - 368 1 369
B HRER Currency translation differences = = (1) = (1)
ZO—AFARA=ZTHERFTERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2015 (1,031) (3,060) (9,632) (1) (13,724)
—O—EFARAA=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2015 506 2,232 4,297 1,982 9,017
—O—=%tB—HKAE Cost at 1 July 2013 1,553 4147 11,123 1,380 18,203
7E Additions - 202 1,268 1,293 2,763
LEEE Transfers = 27 282 (309) -
BRTIESEERE Transfer to assets held for sale (16) = = - (16)
ERTREYE Transfer to investment properties - 6] = = (1)
BERIH Disposals and write-offs = = (360) (73) (433)
B HRER Currency translation differences = = 9) (13) (22)
—O—MmFEARA=THEAKE Cost at 30 June 2014 1,537 4,375 12,304 2,278 20,494
—O— =5t A—BEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2013 (1,017)  (2,810) (8,287 2) (12,116
REETE Depreciation for the year (11) (122) (986) = (1,119)
ERTEGEEE Transfer to assets held for sale 8 = = = 8
ERTIREYE Transfer to investment properties = 1 = = 1
b Disposals = = 357 = 357
B HIRER Currency translation differences = = 7 = 7
“O—MEAA=THEBTERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2014 (1,020) (2,931) (8,909) (2) (12,862)
—O—MEARA=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2014 517 1,444 3,395 2,276 7,632
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13 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

HEET in HKS$ million 2015 2014

+tB—BEAME Cost at 1 July 1,427 1,453

ERGRER Currency translation differences 9 (26)
NA=ZTHRAE Cost at 30 June 1,436 1,427

+ A — B Z&5#E Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (114) (86)
ANFE Amortisation for the year (30) (30)
EWEBaEs Currency translation differences (1) 2

RA=THREE#E Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (145) (114)
ANA=ZTBEREFE Net book value at 30 June 1,291 1,313

14 &Y% 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BEET in HK$ million 2015 2014
tB—HEAME Cost at 1 July 25 29

EiRgET Transfer from buildings = 1

ERTHEEEEE Transfer to assets held for sale = (5)
RA=THEAE Cost at 30 June 25 25

+tA—HEBIFE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (23) (26)
REEHE Depreciation for the year (1) (1
EEEET Transfer from buildings = (1
EETEHEEE Transfer to assets held for sale = 5

ANB=THEERE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (24) (23)
AA=t+HEREFEE Net book value at 30 June 1 2

BRENEER=O—HFAA=THR=O—HFEXA
=10 HBELINESERZEMGEN [BEHTEETG
BEEERA R ETEHMGE - IERENEINVURE
B MERHAR  RENENAFEEANENT=E
BB (ZO—mE : NENT=-GEBT) °

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2015 and 2014 by independent, professionally
qualified valuer Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited. The investment properties are located in Hong
Kong. The fair value of the investment properties was HK$983 million (2014: HK$882 million) at the end

of the reporting period.
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TROMRMEELRE D - ULAFHEEFENREDF -

NP EEAERR
RARB=TRATHAXFAENAFEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont.)
The following table analyses the investment properties measured at fair value, by valuation method.

Fair value hierarchy
Fair value measurements as at 30 June

2015 2014

EXFABERASE BATTBEEGASH

Significant Significant

unobservable inputs unobservable inputs

BEET in HK$ million #5l Level 3 # 7 Level 3
AEEEFE Fair value measurments

REYZE Investment properties

-EE(F8) - Residential (Hong Kong) 154 137

- A% (B8) - Commercial (Hong Kong) 829 745

983 882

REMENATFEE  RREBAELBRIEECETH

REZPNEREE - UEELEF A FRMGEE 1o
TESMENE - EBEREES T EARE S A ELLERY

¥ WiHEEEBYENEEI KRR
BEEE A FLEE -
BRIBHMEREANAABEGASH > 2EHR
VE EERTAREEERZEZFAENSELIRTS
B85 o
SENBRERRERERNEHABRELLREE
B BRAFEETERBINEARED -
FREFEANMERIGILEEE -
RZO—RER=-ZO—NEFE  =EAQXFEETEHH
Z B RIRE YR o

#TISE

BEATRE
RZO—HFARA=THEEQATFBENT :

The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method whereby
comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties have been made.
Comparable properties with similar character, location, size, etc are analysed and carefully weighted
against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the properties in order to arrive at the fair
comparison of values.

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking account of
location, size and pedestrian flow, etc.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

During the years of 2015 and 2014, there were no transfers of investment properties among the three
levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2015 are as follows:

M B / TR LB EERAREHERAE SEAR
HEREE Place of business/ EEEH Authorised and Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation Principal activities paid up capital method
EAPRBREEERMERAR R A RAFE ([HE ) RESEME - Bk AREATER R
China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd BEEE A BARE Renminbi (RMB”) Equity
The People’s Republic provision of computer 60 million
of China (“PRC”) technology, technical
training and business
information consultancy
ERESEREES HERHS RERE TEMA TS
HKJC Equity Trust Fund The Cayman Islands investment in equities n/a Equity
Stellar Performer Global Series HERS REBBES TEMA R
The Cayman Islands investment in debt n/a Equity
securities

31



32

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15 SEATIRE (@)

RZO—HFARA=ZTHR=ZO-OFEAA=+H &
ERFELRPEREEERMERARANEEEERR
BAZNT RZEO—HEFR=O—MF - £EFTEIL
RPBREESRMARQIANFEIRES 2MT -
RAA=1H &8 FekHERERERZES
REZECHEFANBRBEILLNT :

B ER R M A

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was 90.0%. The Group

shared 40% result of BJ CJV in 2015 and 2014.

The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in Equity Trust

and Bond Trust as of 30 June were as follows:

BEES Equity Trust

&%E£ Bond Trust

HEEL in HKS million 2015 2014 2015 2014
BEEFS The Hong Kong Jockey Club 45.6% 45.3% 45.4% 44.7%
BRESERERETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 49.2% 49.3% 50.7% 50.9%
BEEFFE T RINEFE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme ~ 5.2% 5.4% 3.9% 4.4%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
HEET in HKS million 2015 2014
+tA—H At 1 July 18,804 16,984
xE Injection 2,460 100
e Redemption (1,756) (666)
Pt s Share of profits 815 624
FrihE M2 (F518) /W Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income (309) 1,767
BEXEmERE Currency translation differences 3 (5)
~B=+H At 30 June 20,017 18,804

RESEARDBEAA=THILENEEREEZEREM
REMNMEEREENT ¢

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures based on their management or audited accounts

as of 30 June is as follows:

2015 2014
SEFEN £EEFEN
EMESI EHESIE
Group’s effective Group’s effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest
Wz Income
bt RmHERE S ERMERA R BJ C)V 221 125 B5% 309
REEE Equity Trust 1,045 476 507 231
BHES Bond Trust 651 288 566 255
& Expenses
L RP BB EBRMERAR BJ CIV (135) (55) (115) (102)
e Depreciation
St EPEBREEERMERA T BJ CJV (64) (26) (61) (54)
F B Uz Interest income
T RPEEEEERMERAE BJ CJV 7 3 5 4
TRIFIOR/ (F18) Taxation credit/(expense)
tEPEB Y EERMERAT BJ CJV 9 4 (23) (19)
FrFi &R Profit after taxation
b= EREEERMERA R BJ CJV 38 51 163 138
REES Equity Trust 1,045 476 507 231
BEHES Bond Trust 651 288 566 255
Hit2EE/ (B5iE) Other comprehensive income /(l0ss)
A Eg‘;gyTIL:ft 188 84 | 3,475 1,575
. (864) (388) 465 207




15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

2015
I RFEREEERMERAR REES BFES aEE
BJ CJV Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
MmN EmIFEN EmEEN EmIFEN
ERBEIL BEBREIL BRESL BBREIL
Group’s Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
EREEE Non-current assets
D2 - BRI Property, plant and equipment 113 99 - - - - 113 99
EEBIEEE Deferred tax asset 28 25 - - - - 28 25
A HEMKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
(i Equities
EEBLES Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,810 826 - - 1,810 826
BT Listed overseas - = 19,856 9,064 - - 19,856 9,064
BRES Debt securities
gL Listed overseas - = = = 14,729 6,722 14,729 6,722
¥Em Unlisted - = = = 4,817 2,162 4,817 2,162
HEFRENES Funds awaiting investment - = 482 220 1,428 635 1,910 855
TTEEMITE Derivative financial instruments - = = = 221 101 221 101
MENEE Current assets
HiREEE Other current asset 41 36 - - - - 41 36
STESRT A Derivative financial instruments - = = - 161 74 161 74
FEHFER Short-term deposits 100 88 = = - - 100 88
BeRBLZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 179 156 = - - - 179 156
MENEEHAE Total current assets 320 280 = - 161 74 481 354
pir =N Current liabilities
FESBRFRTEWGAIE  Creditor and receipts in advance (39) (33) = = = = (39) (33)
TESmMIA Derivative financial instruments - = (4) (2) (152) (69) (156) (71)
mEIEEERE Total current financial liabilities
(FEFESR (excluding trade and
HE(SIRRAMEM)  other payables and provisions) - = (4) (2) (152) (69) (156) (71)
FREERE Non-current liabilities
PTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments = = = = (189) (87) (189) (87)
422 371 22,144 10,108 | 21,015 9,538 | 43,581 20,017
BRESIRE Contingency Fund investments - = = 7,004 = 4,928 - 11,932
RE®REHAS Long-term investment portfolios - = - 3,104 - 4,610 - 7,714
- B - 10,108 - 9,538 - 19,646
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15 SEATHRE (§)

B ER R M A

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

2014
St ERFEEE EERMERAT BREES BEHEES Fkc)
BJ CJV Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
SEEFEN S@EEFEN SEEFEN SEIFEN
BBEA EBEA BBEA BBEAL
Group’s Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
ERBEE Non-current assets
Y2 - RIBEREEM Property, plant and equipment 106 89 = = = - 106 89
FAERIEEE Deferred tax asset 13 11 - - - - 13 11
At HENKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRE Equities
EREBLEM Listed in Hong Kong = - 2,257 1,023 = - 2,257 1,023
w8 Em Listed overseas - - 18,489 8,378 - - 18,489 8,378
BEXES Debt securities
18I EHm Listed overseas - - - - 12,605 5,625 12,605 5,625
kL Unlisted - - - - 6,697 3,003 6,697 3,003
EFRENES Funds awaiting investment = - 454 205 583 259 1,037 464
TTESmIT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - 50 22 50 22
RBEE Current assets
HiREEE Other current asset 199 167 = - = - 199 167
TTESmIT A Derivative financial instruments - - = - 91 41 91 4
RERBFLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 195 164 = = = = 195 164
MENEEAE Total current assets 394 331 = - 91 41 485 372
REEE Current liabilities
BRI RFAWGIE  Creditor and receipts in advance (131) (109) = = = = (131) (109)
TESHMTA Derivative financial instruments - = (8) (4) (81) (36) (89) (40)
FEAKEEEE Total current financial liabilities
(FEREE S REM (excluding trade and
FEA BRFR AN ZE ) other payables and provisions) = = (8) (4) (81) (36) (89) (40)
ERBARG Non-current liabilities
PTESRT A Derivative financial instruments = = = = (77) (34) (77) (34)
382 322 21,192 9,602 19,868 8,880 41,442 18,804
HERESKRE Contingency Fund investments - = = 6,807 = 4,820 = 11,627
REREHSE Long-term investment portfolios - = - 2,795 - 4,060 = 6,855
- - - 9,602 - 8,880 - 18,482

BEARNEBESIENERRS  REMETHE
BAZEI 2=\t (ZO-—HNF  Boz=4MN
=) - EHEFNRAEEEE N HEERS - MEMNE
FHHRAIBAF (ZO—IF : £F) -

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rates of 3.87% for the joint ventures
under the Bond Trust (2014: 3.43%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their
fair values and their weighted average maturities were 6 years (2014: 7 years).



15 SEATHRE (8) 15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)
REES BHEES
Equity Trust Bond Trust
2015 2014 2015 2014
BTREUTIIEHINE : Underlying investments
were denominated in the following currencies:

ES United States Dollars (“USD”) 61% 55% 75% 66%

BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 9% 1% = -

B Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 7% 7% 4% 3%

BEE Korean Won (“KWR”) 4% 5% - =

/¢ Euro (“EUR”) 2% 4% 1% 21%

=i Japanese Yen (“JPY”) = - 3% 3%

Hitneg Other currencies 17% 18% 7% 7%

100% 100% 100% 100%
SENEE QA RMSENITESRTA Group’s derivative financial instruments in joint ventures
REHEE Equity Trust
BRESRE RERERS
Contingency Fund Long-term kol
investments investment portfolios Total
BE 8fE BE 8 BE 8
BEET in HK$ million Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
RENEEH Foreign exchange forward contracts = (1 = (1 = (2)
—O-FEFXA=+A At 30 June 2015 - ) - (1) - 2)
DA Analysed as:

TRENER Current = (1) = (1) = (2)
EHINESH Foreign exchange forward contracts = (3) = (M = (4)
—O-mFEXA=+H At 30 June 2014 - 3) - (1) - (4)
DATAT - Analysed as:

nEE D Current = (3) = (1 = (4)

35



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 SEATRE (4)

B ER R M A

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

E%#E<E Bond Trust

HRESRE REIREEE
Contingency Fund Long-term it
investments investment portfolios Total
&E afF BE afE &E &fF
BEBT in HK$ million Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EHMNEESH Foreign exchange forward contracts 9 (21) 9 (20) 18 (41)
HE Futures 1 (7) 1 7) 2 (14)
Hite Options 1 (1) 1 6] 2 (2)
158 Swaps 77 (50) 76 (49) 153 (99)
—O—HEAB=+AH At 30 June 2015 88 (79) 87 (77) 175  (156)
DA Analysed as:
FENEH Current 37 (35) 37 (34) 74 (69)
ERENER D Non-current 51 (44) 50 (43) 101 (87)
88 (79) 87 (77) 175 (156)
REESEN Forward contracts on bonds 1 = 1 = 2 =
RHEMNEESH Foreign exchange forward contracts 5 (12) 5 (12) 10 (24)
% Futures 5 (5) 5 (5) 10 (10)
HAte Options 1 = 1 = 2 =
15 Swaps 19 (18) 20 (18) 39 (36)
—O-mEXAZ+H At 30 June 2014 31 (35) 32 (35) 63 (70)
DATWT Analysed as:
FENEH Current 20 (18) 21 (18) 41 (36)
IERENER D Non-current 11 (17) 11 (17) 22 (34)
31 (35) 50 (35) 63 (70)
EEESE L RFENERTES R EMARAEE - There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.
16 HERELRE 16 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS
HEET in HK$ million 2015 2014
At EREEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRE Equities
TEEB LT Listed in Hong Kong 2,386 2,170
e =2/ Wil Listed overseas 137 169
2,523 2,339
BESHES Alternative investments
JFELEm Unlisted 729 621
HEFRENES Funds awaiting investment 53 57
beE N Deposits 159 =
3,464 3,017
SEFSNEFRNMEEEERANZRE D 2Z 8N The deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 0.46% for the Group. The carrying
7~ o REEFNERREEEEE A FEERE - amounts of the deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average maturities were 4 days
MEIEFIIERABNA - KER-O—NFEASA= for the Group. The Group did not have deposits as at 30 June 2014.

T RS EWEIEREAFR o
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16 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS (cont.)

2015 2014
ERESREUTIIEENE : Contingency Fund investments were denominated in the following currencies:
BT HKD 70% 73%
Epv usSb 30% 27%
100% 100%
17 REREES 17 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS
HEET in HK$ million 2015 2014
At EBEE Available-for-sale financial assets
RE Equities
EEBLED Listed in Hong Kong 1,050 892
1w LEm Listed overseas 60 69
L Unlisted 44 48
1,154 1,009
EHES Debt securities
EEBLD Listed in Hong Kong 96 100
CE=2 Nnlyi Listed overseas 1,540 1,526
LT Unlisted 78 77
1,714 1,703
BSERE Alternative investments
kLT Unlisted 5,489 5,024
8,357 7,736
HIFRENES Funds awaiting investment 24 24
LEZ N Deposits 658 488
9,039 8,248

EBEENEBESRERNINETHERINEZSE S
ZEB=— (ZO—IF : Boz=ENZ) - KB
WEKESRFRNREEEEE A FEERS - MHE
TR A=F (ZO—HF : WF) -

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 3.31% for the
Group (2014: 2.82%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities and deposits approximated their

fair values and their weighted average maturities were 3 years for the Group (2014: 4 years).

2015 2014
REREHSUTIERINE Long-term investment portfolios were denominated
in the following currencies:

e uUSD 83% 83%
HEIT HKD 13% 12%
AR#E RMB 2% 2%
BZE EUR 2% 3%
100% 100%
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18 REIFEARIE
RPANRERIESILREREESMER AT L
REZNANES - WEFIRRER T RN
fhET A A F I B AE S - REITRNTURNEREE
EEEAPEERS -

B ER R M A

18 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Long-term prepayments represented prepayments of rental for the land and property of Beijing Hong
Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The carrying amounts of long-term prepayments approximated their fair values.

19 EFEEHEE 19 DEBT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO
HEBT in HKS million 2015 2014
At HENKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BERES Debt securities
ERBLT Listed in Hong Kong 495 493
e EHm Listed overseas 327 203
LT Unlisted 187 263
1,009 959

EEENEBESNMETHIERRNRRE D 2=5
= (ZO—mF : BARZZAED) c KEMENE
BRFNRAEEEANFEERS - MENETIIH
RIEGB—F (ZO—TF : MF) - EHIFHUBIT X
THAREINE -

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 3.23% for the Group (2014:
3.03%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair values and their weighted
average maturities were 1 year for the Group (2014: 2 years). The debt securities were denominated
in HKD, USD or RMB.

20 HibimEhEE 20 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
BEET in HK$ million 2015 2014
HitREgeE Other current assets
78 Inventories 116 113
BRI BRI (FifEE34.1 (c)(ii) Loans and receivables (note 34.1(c)(ii)) 445 412
AR Prepayments 254 449
815 974

SENERRERFEFAEES 2N+ (ZO—H[F :
Bozt+m) BBTAE  HBRUHEMERITE -
ERREWRFERAMTENRAEEREE N TEE
& o

80% of the loans and receivables were denominated in HKD for the Group (2014: 74%), the rest of the
balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and
prepayments approximated their fair values.



21 FTAESMIA — K&

21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

OTHER INVESTMENTS

BE a8
BEBT in HK$ million Assets  Liabilities
RHIEESHD Foreign exchange forward
contracts 21 (3)
—O—-HEAA=+A At 30 June 2015 21 (3)
AHWT : Analysed as:
RENER D Current 21 (3)
RHIEESHD Foreign exchange forward
contracts 5 -
—O—MmFEXRA=TH At 30 June 2014 5 -
DA Analysed as:
MENER D Current 5 -
22 FHERRBRERIALEEY 22 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
221 BEHHER 22.1 Short-term deposits

EENERFRNINETSERFZSAs 2= Ht=
(ZO—HmF : gaoz=Ht—) - KENEHFRN
REEEEAE AN TEEES  MEANEFIHRRA—F
ATHE(ZO—MEF : —AARTZ=H) - EHFERUE
T ET - ARY - MTRESEITEH o

222 RE&ERIRLEEY
SEENEHERNNELIERFRAEIZ—HE+
(ZO—E : Boz—HA=) - EENERERNIER
EEEEEAFEEES  MENEFLHHRAE=T=
B(ZO—WF : +HhB) - BBMERUBT Ex - A
RUSsSRTITE ©

BE-O—AFEAA=THI SFENETHEBELR
EFEFENRTEFOSERSRESEENRE=R
“THHEEBLT(ZO—NF : \EATHEEESBT) -
UAREBRETITE » UEHEINESHRE

EENRERBEEEYEE-t=—TN\E8E
THEEE2 (ZO—ENF: —Z+HE=F=" &8
Br) HERBHEMARAENESEHE FHR
HHiEE24

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 2.73% for the Group
(2014: 2.71%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their
weighted average maturities were 164 days for the Group (2014: 163 days). The short-term deposits
were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB, Canadian Dollars or GBP.

22.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 1.07% for the Group
(2014: 1.53%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their
weighted average maturities were 23 days for the Group (2014: 19 days). The short-term deposits
were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB or AUD.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$325 million (2014:
HK$895 million) denominated in RMB and USD which were held by certain subsidiaries with bank
accounts operating in the PRC where exchange controls apply.

Cash and cash equivalents included HK$2,318 million of customer funds for the Group (2014:
HK$2,433 million) that were matched by liabilities of an equal value as disclosed in note 24.

23 sEHIER 23 SHORT-TERM LOANS
BEBT in HK$ million 2015 2014
A ER Unsecured loans 150 155

LR R MERTERER - RYANER - FRRS
HAZOEN_ZRAHEN (ZO—NE: Gozhf
ZM) - ERHREFEEEA X FEERS - ERUA
REIFE -

FRANERFEZHANEEET (ZO—HNF : £
HEBT) °

The above were unsecured short-term revolving bank loans with maturities of six months and interest
rate was between 4.92% and 5.04% per annum (2014: 5.04% per annum). The carrying amounts of
the loans approximated their fair values. The loans were denominated in RMB.

The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$8 million (2014: HK$7 million).
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24 FEfTER AR R FEULFRIA 24 CREDITORS AND RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

BEET in HK$ million 2015 2014

B 5 TR R a8 Trade payables and receipts in advance 4,925 5,068

H AT BRAR R FESTFRIE Other payables and accruals 1,460 1,816
6,385 6,884

SENEZEMERRERGE  BE=t=E—TN\E
BEETHERERFER (ZO—0NF : —+HE=F=7
BiEn) - HEREHEGETRERESEEYRERMR
BB E S U - FHBERNKMTE22 - E5REME
R R FERT R R R BB E N EERE -

Trade payables and receipts in advance included HK$2,318 million of customer accounts’ deposits
for the Group (2014: HK$2,433 million). This was offset by an equivalent amount of customer funds
held which was included in cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 22. The carrying amounts
of the trade and other payables and accruals approximated their fair values.

25 BEFRHIE(EE)/EE
FREFAGERBRRRAMIBELEEH (BE)/EE

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS
The components of deferred income tax (liabilities) /assets recognised in the consolidated statement

40

HERESFERMOT of financial position, and the movements during the year were as follows :
TR BRI
HIEREE BRI
Accelerated Employee
depreciation retirement Hity #BER
ABET in HK$ million allowances benefit cost Others Total
—O—mELA—H At 1 July 2014 (272) 92 (51) (231)
(f18) /AR (Charged)/credited to
income statement (109) 10 (3) (102)
NEEAEmERES Credited to other
comprehensive income = 16 - 16
—O—&FXRA=1+H At 30 June 2015 (381) 118 (54) (317)
—O—=%+tH—H At 1 July 2013 (178) 122 (18) (74)
(f18) /AR (Charged)/credited to
income statement (94) 10 (33) (117)
B8 Hth2EkE Charged to other
comprehensive income - (40) - (40)
—O—mEFEXA=1+A At 30 June 2014 (272) 92 (51) (231)
2015 2014
ELFRSH B FTSH IESEFTSH EREFTSH
&E aff &E aff
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
income tax income tax g income tax income tax g
BEBT in HK$ million assets liabilities Total assets liabilities Total
ZRT=EA%E Deferred income tax to be
Y B HYIESE TS B recovered after more than
12 months 70 (357) (287) 54 (273) (219)
R+=@ARKRE Deferred income tax to be
IEFEFT1S T recovered within 12 months 48 (78) (30) 38 (50) (12)
118 (435) (317) 92 (323)  (231)




26 HibEf&

26 OTHER LIABILITIES

(a) SFEEFIEI (a) Defined benefit scheme
L7 in HK$ million 2015 2014
Hit B BERIEEAEREEUHMRRRACHERH Other liabilities represented pension liabilities of

EERERFERRESEEWT ! the Group’s Scheme recognised in the consolidated and Club’s statement of

financial position which were determined as follows:

EIEENAFERE Fair value of Scheme assets (2,825) (2,842)
ANHRARERE Present value of obligation 3,405 3,264
FEREEMEIRRARFAIERASFEE Net pension liabilities in the consolidated and Club’s statement of financial position 580 422
RERFFEIFIAESENRELROT ¢ Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was as follows:
tA—AH At 1 July 3,264 3,262
HIBME & SR B HIRITARFE A A Current service cost net of employee contributions 136 140
BB Interest cost 57 60
EHEE Remeasurement:
- ARSI R EER ~ Actuarial losses due to liability experience 31 12
- BB EBRERE B S| BEEEE — Actuarial losses due to financial assumptions 193 24
- BA OGS RENSEBEE R ~ Actuarial gains due to demographic assumptions (32) -
BREX NIRRT Actual benefits paid (244) (234)
RAZTHENHRKERE Present value of obligation at 30 June 3,405 3,264
FRTEEEDNFEEZSNT ¢ The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets of the year was as follows:
o = At 1)uly 2,842 2,666
FEUA Interest income 50 50
BEHEE Remeasurement:
- SFEIEENERSRITRE - Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate 95 276
EEMHK Employer contributions 83 85
2 HEF Benefits paid (244) (234)
Bt SIS ERANITRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets (1) (1)
NE=1THWFEIEEAFER Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,825 2,842
BEET in HK$ million 2015 2014
EWERPERANFIRNT : The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:
B BFARAG AL Current service cost 136 140
FRERENEEFFIERA Net interest cost on net defined benefit liabilities 7 10
Bt BIEERANITHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets 1 1
FTAB T RZAHVAREE (MiE11) Total included in staff costs (note 11) 144 151
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26 Hh&E (&)
(a) FEEFIZE (48)

HEBT

B ER R M A

26 OTHER LIABILITIES (cont.)
(a) Defined benefit scheme (cont.)

in HK$ million 2015 2014

ERHWEREINEINTELENT ¢

R&BE | HBEREE

Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income were as follows:
Actuarial losses due to liability experience 31 12

R IR B E S| B EEE Actuarial losses due to financial assumptions 193 24
E A O#eHRERNE BB E W Actuarial gains due to demographic assumptions (32) =
HREENEEREEETE Actuarial losses on liabilities arising during period 192 36
EENERSRITRE Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate (95) (276)
EEEREREINENTELE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 97 (240)
HEET in HK$ million 2015 2014
W RREZRNAERBRRA (FizE11) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 11) 144 151
ErANRRERNENTESE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 97 (240)
RERFIRA/ (W) Defined benefit cost/(income) 24 (89)

(b) SRIETEFIaT &89 45 B4 % #5121 Bk #if ot
REBAFTEURENGZRFE - RUAERNK - H
W SRR RBFRAERSE - mEREE—
EPNEAE - RERFFTITERRFARNES

RERANFTERE —RETLHRY - WM (B
RARFTEMRD)) WREZM - £ CRFIEQAESFTE (B
R) B WRETRAEAER RS - FERBER
ERAME BT —EE -

RIERERFFEEERONERGR  FETHA
REBAFTFEINES (MF) » LURERERATERE
FIRERE » RE B R EZNMER - Bt - B EFHER
551955 (2011) FHE4RFTEMEE LIRREFE (BRI
BERBZES) REF S MANGEESER - 97
AR ERAIETE -

RERAF BB DESHBETRE (M) BRA
A EH  ZARARRERERAFENGETIA o

EERRATEANAEMBAZNEZRMKAOT :

(i) BERR
EREEFAS > AERAFEEENAFEELS
BN RIS LUERERMNESE/ EETENAERH
TR IR A kS - BEREEFRERHREE
R AIgSHEIARESS o

RERANFTEEERENBEEE S AT T =M
BHZULBRERS  BiEFS  TEESREEU
REHTES - ZTMNEERBIRMES - BEID
BRERFF R EWIEEERERS

(i) FZ= = Bz

AERFFEMAESEIRREMSESEHRES
B DUTHEHE - EMiSEFEHRETR » RE
B BIFTAESEEAEIEM

(b) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump sum benefits based on a multiple of a
member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement, death, disability or leaving
service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees.

The Scheme was established under a trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO”), and is an exempted scheme under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes (Exemption) Regulation. The Club is the sole employer participating in the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the surplus of the
Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by the Scheme’s actuary. As a
result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding requirements of
HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

The Scheme is administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited who acts as the trustee
to the Scheme.

The Scheme typically expose the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk
Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of Scheme assets and therefore improve
the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit liability /asset, whilst poor or
negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income securities and
cash, and hedge funds covering major geographical locations around the world. The diversification
amoung asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce the concentration of risk associated
with the Scheme investments.

(ii) Interest rate risk
The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market bond yields. A decrease in the bond
yields will increase the DBO.



26 HWEE (&)

(b) FREBFIH BB 25 R 165 R BRd it (48)

(iily FrEER
HARERAGTEINEFIEES 58 » PR ERA
STEIFTRIEERTIZ BN E B RNEH 25T E « BFa
REFER RS @ RERAGTEIFTRIESESEEIGM

(c) BT E(EFFAE B Flzt Y& E

WNFIEE26 (b) IEFTAR - AR EBEETERIE 1958 (2011)
BOARFBAMNEE LIRREE (B IHBHREREEE
D) RBEAFIENREESER  YTBEANAER
FITE - FrAB/ARERE A AHE R R AT R

(d) FEEFIaEIEERIEH

26 OTHER LIABILITIES (cont.)

(b) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)

(iii) Salary risk
The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the Scheme’s
benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will increase the DBO.

(c) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 26 (b), determination of economic benefit available is not required because the
asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding requirements of HK (IFRIC)
Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(d) Scheme asset information

HEBET in HK$ million 2015 2014
STEIEEERE Scheme assets were comprised as follows :
BE= Equities 1,574 56% 1,539 54%
EEESFRRE Fixed income securities and cash 848 30% 920 33%
HhES Hedge funds 406 14% 383 13%
2,828 100% 2,842 100%

RERIAIREFMUEEEILR SEHHFSEE
Ketmay o

The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club on a
regular basis.

(e) EXIEEBERE IS T (e) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
BABEMREZWT : The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2015 2014
IR = Discount rate 1.5% 1.8%
R SEREE Long-term salary increase rate 4.5% 4.0%

RZO—HEARA=+H  BFEXLA/THRESZ
TR THEMAETEERGESTEZNERT -
REBFFEFTRESENDFEE  KEHD/EN
BAZ—HN\ (ZO—mF  Aoz—&) -

RZO—HEARB=+H HREFSLA/THKA
DREH-A  EREMAARNEREZDERSTENER
T - REBAEFRESENAFER  H2EM/
BLBEDZ—EN (ZO—IF : 2RIED Z—HAKR
BOZZ) °

() BERLHRBIF
BARAHSERKE(RRRITHRAERKEFNFET
HERATHA B)EERE - RIBSTEIRE - REHHK
DRAERFSUBENE AL E - EENHHRAE
S8 (BERNTERAG) MRE Bt ERBEMET
BESEENEE - AEBAHEER=-_O—mELA—
BETRE—REESMHE -

(g) TEa1 450
SEBEFZO—A~"ENHRNALTAEESRT (ZO
—hEN\FZHEBR) °

At 30 June 2015, if discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.8% (2014: 1.9%).

At 30 June 2015, if long-term salary had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.9% (2014: 1.9% and
2.0% respectively).

(f) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (Existing Executives of the Executive
Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage of basic salary as stipulated
by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are determined with reference to the funding
valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in accordance with the ORSO requirements. The last
funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 1 July 2014.

(8) Expected contributions
The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$79 million for the year 2016 (2015: HK$82 million).
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26 Hih&E (&)
(h) REEFITEIPFRIEE R FIRIER
AERAGFTEFIAESEABEZE=-O—EF<A=1THW
IR A SENE (ZO—ME | £B=F) o
TRIISZBEEANBEBREHERTE » EE5T
BRI MTESTRAIE (BEMATARHESRE R
SEENER)  UE—PRERAERAGTEIFIAESE
HEIERTER ©

B ER R M A

26 OTHER LIABILITIES (cont.)
(h) Maturity profile of DBO
The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2015 was 6.8 years (2014: 7.2 years).

To further illustrate the maturity profile of the DBO, the following table sets out the expected benefit
payments (including benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary) from the
Scheme based on the adopted actuarial assumptions.

AXMWRHEFRR(EBET)

Expected benefit payments in HK$ million

(618 B AR
—%

=%

=%

me

feE

RETE
+—FsbLE

Number of years after valuation date

1 290
2 313
3 350
4 340
5 328
6to 10 1,398
11 and over 2,076
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27 RESERVES

REBMHE
BRERE Investment B fEE
Accumulated revaluation Exchange ko)
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve reserve Total
—O-mE+A—H At 1 July 2014 26,052 1,082 111 27,245
FAREEER Retained surplus for the year 1,487 = = 1,487
B ARER Currency translation
differences = = 18 18
AL ENBEENEGLRLR Surplus on revaluation
of available-for-sale
financial assets = 388 = 388
A E R E E HERD Realised gains on disposal
ERRWE BN BEA of available-for-sale financial
Wk assets reclassified
to income statement - (52) - (52)
= 336 = 336
MRBIENBEBREFESNERNTE  Remeasurements of
post-employment benefit
obligations, net of tax (81) = = (81)
FHE&E QRN EMEEEE Share of other comprehensive
loss of joint ventures - (160) = (160)
—O—h"%EA~A=1H At 30 June 2015 27,458 1,258 129 28,845
—O—=%tA—H At 1 July 2013 24,790 204 183 25177
NEEREBER Retained surplus for the year 1,062 - = 1,062
EMHBERE Currency translation
differences - = (72) (72)
AR HEMEEENEMER Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale
financial assets - 369 - 369
Al ER S E E HERF Realised gains on disposal
EERKRREHIERA of available-for-sale financial
e Es assets reclassified to
income statement - (28) - (28)
= 341 = 341
MR ENBERERAEEMNERNE  Remeasurements of
post-employment benefit
obligations, net of tax 200 - = 200
it &E A RN E M2 EIE Share of other comprehensive
income of joint ventures - 5874 - 537
—O—mEAXNA=TH At 30 June 2014 26,052 1,082 11 27,245
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27 G (&)

REERARETRE - EEEKEERBKE TR
EFFENSL B 2 TRALERBARE  HEZ
NETHAEREIEIMESNE D 2B THIE - EZER
BABRESKEARERIER - TRANRHERFEE - 18
IEARRIER T

RZO—REARA=TH  ZEEHLAESATDTHE
BEAERT (ZO—WmE : =F=HEHETT) °

B ER R M A

27 RESERVES (cont.)

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from PRC entities as reported in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve fund until the balance
of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be used upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset against accumulated losses, to increase capital or to expand

the business.

As at 30 June 2015, the statutory reserve fund amounted to HK$45 million (2014: HK$32 million).

28 HRES 28 CONTINGENCY FUND
BEEHRE
He e Investment
Fund revaluation B
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—mEt+tHA—H At 1 July 2014 13,371 1,273 14,644
EERHWER Transfer from income statement
- ERESRENEER - Surplus from Contingency Fund
investments 231 = 231
- Fifh & & A RDER — Share of profits of joint ventures 487 - 487
718 = 718
AL ENBEENEGL R Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets = 240 240
AEHENBEEHERNESRR Realised gains on disposal of
KR EH D ER AW SR available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to income statement = (57) (57)
= 183 183
k& A RWEM2EIKE Share of other comprehensive
income of joint ventures - (149) (149)
—O-®EFAA=+A At 30 June 2015 14,089 1,307 15,396
—O-=#+tA—A At 1July 2013 12,949 (91) 12,858
EERBEWER Transfer from income statement
- ERESKRENRE = Surplus from Contingency Fund
investments 125 - 125
- Frfh & & A RDER — Share of profits of joint ventures 297 = 297
422 = 422
At EMEEENE LR Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - 169 169
AEHENEEEHERNESBR Realised gains on disposal of
W EH D ERARGER available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to income statement - (35) (35)
- 134 134
FHE&E A RN E b2 E IS Share of other comprehensive income
of joint ventures - 1,230 1,230
—O—WmEARA=TH At 30 June 2014 13,371 1,273 14,644




20 BRES

29 DEVELOPMENT FUND

BRESEHRHE
HEo&e Investment
Fund revaluation wzg
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—mWE+A—H At 1 July 2014 1,141 2 1,143
EERRNER Transfer from income statement 44 - 44
AR EMEEENEMER Surplus on revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets = 11 11
Z—O—H"&EX~A=1H At 30 June 2015 1,185 13 1,198
—O—=%tHF—H At 1 July 2013 1,086 9 1,095
EERANER Transfer from income statement 55 = 55
At ER S EENELEE Deficit on revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets - (4) (4)
AR HEMEEEHERC#IR Realised gains on disposal of
Wi EFH B AR available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to income statement - (3) (3)
- (7) (7)
—O—M\mEA~A=1H At 30 June 2014 1,141 2 1,143

BRESHUBEE @ BIARY
REEEGZR °

The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment portfolios.

47



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf %3R3 M=t

30 ZFEBRERERMEE 30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ORRHBIE - HEBEEEESR/N  URERFHMAE  Reconciliation of surplus before taxation, donations to Charities Trust, transfer to Contingency
ERBRESUHBMBMEXFHMELNFEESH  Fund and Development Fund to net cash generated from operations

AR

48

£E Group

HEHBT in HK$ million 2015 2014
MEHIE - HERSETESRRUARERTHAEER  Surplus before taxation, donations to Charities Trust,
BRESAINERLR transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 6,310 5,302
FriE &% AT Share of profits of joint ventures (815) (624)
HENHEENFEEN RS Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (297) (34)
IR E W Dividend income (266) (334)
R Bz Interest income (218) (254)
FIELZH Interest expense 8 7
PTESRIANE (&) /&8 Net (gains)/losses of derivative financial instruments (13) 7
HERE YRS Gain on disposal of investment property (51) (24)
HEE « REREMER Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 4
W - RIBRBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,230 1,119
REMERE Depreciation of investment properties 1 1
BERTH Assets write-offs - 73
EEESEE Movement in working capital

FEEM Increase in inventories (4) (5)

BRI EWGRIE (3Bin) /Fd (Increase)/decrease in loans and receivables (120) 35

TE{FRIE (35 n) /SR (Increase)/decrease in prepayments (22) 29

FEASERFR GRiA) /120 (Decrease)/increase in creditors (585) 1,302
REFFENFRIERD Decrease in long-term prepayments 31 32
Hth & &1 Increase in other liabilities 61 66
EETFHMEENES Cash generated from operations 5,255 6,702

31 iR

31.1 EXKIE

REFHA BT LENERELHEBENERIHAT
AE—FAEEBT(ZO—OE : +t\EAFAEE
BIT) °

31 COMMITMENTS
31.1 Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period amounted to

HK$1,516 million (2014: HK$ 1,896 million).



31 ZERERERMEE (&)

31.2 FHERIE

RAB=+H REFTECENEXBNET - BESA
S MSRERSABENT

31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont.)

31.2 Lease commitments

As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

BEBET in HK$ million 2015 2014
BT Buildings
R—FR Within one year 106 74
RE—ZERFA In the second to fifth year inclusive 137 109
RERFE After the fifth year 26 30
269 213
31.3 H{thKiE 31.3 Other commitments
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Under the Betting Duty (Amendment) Ordinance 2013, the Group will guarantee to the Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region that betting duty arising from Hong Kong bets on non-
local races will be no less than HK$175 million per season for three seasons from 2013/ 14 onwards.
The actual betting duty arising from Hong Kong bets on non-local races for the 2014 /15 season of
HK$303 million (2013 /14: HK$267 million) had surpassed the guarantee amount.

32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members of both
schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The Group also par-
ticipates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited (“KSCGC”)
and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of the Trust
and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the joint ventures and other
related parties:

33.1 Management expenses
During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$80 million (2014: HK$58 million)
to the Trust for provision of administrative and support services.

33.2 Income from a joint venture

During the year, the Group received software license fee income and consultancy fee income of HK$93
million and HK$3 million respectively (2014: HK$55 million and nil respectively) from China Sports
Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
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33.3 Shared services

The Group operates three primary businesses - horse race betting, football betting and the Mark Six
lottery through separate legal entities. In order to maximise the Group’s operational efficiencies and cost
economies, these businesses share the use of the Club’s established common selling and distribution
channels, corporate management services, and infrastructure facilities, as well as back office support.
The Group adopts a policy to fulfil its objectives of financial independence with no cross-subsidy amongst
its different businesses.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and overall financial results are maintained in the separate
books of accounts of each business. Business specific revenue and expenses are directly accounted for
in those business results. The Group’s expenses on the shared services are charged to each main line
of business of horse race betting, football betting and the Mark Six lottery at cost plus an appropriate
mark-up.

33.4 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board of
Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group and its
funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group. The Board of
Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is overseen by the Board
of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in Hong Kong, key management
consists of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management. The latter comprises the Chief
Executive Officer, nine Executive Directors and one Director in 2015 and 2014, as detailed in the “Board
of Management” section of the report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under review.
No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any transaction, arrangement or
contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation
Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation
This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance of
the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of retirement
scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of retirement scheme
contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual entitlement and date
of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

BB in HK$ million 2015 2014
BB Basic compensation 63 63
EERIFHMINEN € Performance-related compensation 28 29
RIRERI Retirement benefits 15 14

106 106
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont.)
33.4 Key management compensation (cont.)

FAR BRI The remuneration fell in the following bands:
AR B! Remuneration bands 2015 2014
4,000,001 T T Below HK$4,000,001 2 -
4,000,001t £5,000,0007& 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1
5,000,00158 7t £6,000,00078 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 - 1
6,000,00178 7t £7,000,00078 7T HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 4 2
8,000,00178 7t £9,000,00078 7T HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 1 4
9,000,00178 7t £10,000,00078 7T HK$9,000,001 to HK$ 10,000,000 3 8
11,000,0017& 7T & 12,000,0007& 7T HK$ 11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 1 -
20,000,001t £21,000,0007 7T HK$20,000,001 to HK$21,000,000 = 1
21,000,001 5 £22,000,0007% 7T HK$21,000,001 to HK$22,000,000 1 -
13 12
REEABRASENETEEEEAS Key management left the Club before end of year 2 1
11 1
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
34.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s investment activities including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk
and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.
The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative investments,
which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional fund managers.
Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes Committee.
Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions and
guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of the investments.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The HKD is
pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. Majority of RMB
holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operation requirements in PRC.
The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major currencies
had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

51



52

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 I EREE (8)
341 BRAKER (&)
(a) TBERE (%)

() EXEE (45)

B ER R M A

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Currency risk (cont.)

2015 2014
HEWRTY  HFRRHE EEWIRTY  HERRBE
ALK BRHE BALH BRHSE
IREIER / 1855 Effecton | iEEIG®E /855 Effect on
If currency post-tax If currency post-tax
strengthened/ surplus for strengthened/ surplus for
BEBET in HK$ million weakened by the year weakened by the year
AR RMB 5% 133 5% 157
H JPY 5% 7 5% 7
BzE EUR 5% 6 5% 34
BT AUD 5% 2 5% -
BgE GBP 5% () 5% 10
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(i) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Group is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These
investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s other components of equity
would have increased/decreased by HK$710 million (2014: HK$666 million) as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can
be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a finan-
cial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to
both fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that
are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there had
been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax surplus for the year would have been HK$51 million higher (2014: HK$57
million). The Group’s other components of equity would have been approximately HK$ 189 million
lower (2014: HK$ 174 million) in response to the general increase in interest rates.

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD /USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s China operations is man-
aged primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Equity price risk is
mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities. Interest
rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a spectrum of
fixed and floating rate instruments.



34 BHEKRERE (8)
341 MBRKER (&)
(b) RENE £ E &
REBESRREIEREES WA EAE SR MR TAE
KRR o thoh - SIS A RE AN R I AR A B
ENEREVHREESR
REREEREHNESENEE  REEIEEEDE
HEHNEE  EEREEARSRANMEEEZES
WEERENRRIERNESRMHERIA -
SENEBBHERESREEEEES  ETE
BeRESH  EERERBDESRER  URKRAENSTE
FHEEREHNESER °
EEBZEASNA=THLENETENBEBRUAEEER
ELEENITEMKERE  RBEVIHAZINEE
HRARMEL DT - TRAMBEENREASHRITE
BERE !

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to fair
value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and gross-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group
as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates.
The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2015 2014
Z@EBHUAT =@AZE—F Z@EARUAT =EAZ—F

Up to >3 months —FE ko) Up to >3 months —FuE Fet]

BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year Over1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Over1 year Total
T KEE Non-derivative financial liabilities

EHIE R Short-term loans 150 - = 150 130 25 = 155

FE{FRRFR Creditors 5,407 HHS) = 5,960 6,007 375 = 6,382

NEREREEENITE Gross-settled derivative
g 5=V financial liabilities 26 5) 87 118 36 4 335 75
5,583 558 87 6,228 6,173 404 €5 6,612
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HARFRERIMESHER DI  BLEFIRBERE
5 WERHBTENRH B A BEHRAR - TR
KRENRBRSHARTRASRE - BESHEIRER
FrEIEVEREEE (BIHE) FE -

As at 30 June 2015, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Group was HK$6,987 million (2014: HK$6,326 million). The table below analy-
ses the Group’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2015 and 2014 that
would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining contrac-
tual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows,
which are different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated statements
of financial position.

2015 2014
ZEARUT ZEAZE—F ZEAIUAT =EAZE—F
Up to >3 months —FLLE B Up to >3 months —FLLE B
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to 1year  Overlyear Total 3 months to 1year Over1 year Total
EHMNEER Foreign exchange
forward contracts
R Outflows (5,974) (1,003) (10) (6,987) (6,020) (306) - (6,326)
A Inflows 5,948 1,022 10 6,980 6,010 305 - 6,315
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing to perform
its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the Group’s deposit placements, debt
securities and derivative transactions.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification and deposits are only placed with financial institutions with good credit standing. Credit
limits are established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based on its credit
ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according to the risk nature of
financial products involved in the transaction.

(i) Exposure to credit risk
As at 30 June 2015, the Group and Club’s maximum exposure to the credit risk of financial assets as
defined in note 2.9 approximated their carrying amounts in the consolidated and Club’s statements of
financial position.

(i) Financial assets that were past due but not impaired
As at 30 June 2015, the trade receivables included in loans and receivables that were past due but not
determined to be impaired were HK$76 million for the Group (2014: HK$41 million). The overall impact
of trade receivables on the consolidated financial statements is insignificant because the Group’s
principal businesses are transacted in cash with customers. The trade receivables mainly relate to the
Membership business where the credit risks are assumed by a licensed bank under an affinity card
agreement. All the receivables are due within one year.

34.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to
— provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making contributions in
the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and
— support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its consolidated statement of
financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of donations
through the Trust.

34.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by level of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities.

Level 2 : fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in which any

significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes from market
makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most significant input is market

interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information derived
from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering

other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following tables present the financial assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value
as at 30 June. See note 14 for disclosures of fair value measurement of the investment properties .

Htzt14 -
(i) &&= (i) The Group
2015 2014
BEAT in HK$ million AR5l Level 1 WAl Level 2 #AB Level 3 #%8 Total ®A Level 1 B5 Level 2 #5I Level 3 #2258 Total
BE Assets
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments
At EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
RE Equities 2,523 = = 2,523 2,339 = = 2,339
BHERE Alternative investments - - 729 729 - - 621 621
REBRELAS Long-term investment portfolios
At EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
R= Equities 1,110 - 44 1,154 961 - 48 1,009
BEiSES Debt securities - 1,714 - 1,714 = 1,703 = 1,703
BHERE Alternative investments - - 5,489 5,489 = - 5,024 5,024
BEfRSES Debt securities portfolio
At EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
EEES Debt securities = 1,009 = 1,009 = 959 = 959
HinE Other investments
TTESMIA Derivative financial instruments = 18 - 18 = 5 - 5
3,633 2,741 6,262 12,636 3,300 2,667 5,693 11,660
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(i) BRREE (i) The Equity Trust
2015 2014
BHEBT in HK$ million #5 Level 1 5 Level 2 #%8 Total #50 Level 1 #5 Level 2 #1258 Total
&E Assets
HRESRE Contingency Fund investments
AR EMEERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BE Equities 4,229 2,624 6,853 4,348 2,316 6,664
REBREAS Long-term investment portfolios
AR EMEERE Available-for-sale financial assets
e Equities 1,874 1,163 3,037 1,785 952 2,737
aE Liabilities
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments
THEEmMIE Derivative financial instruments - (1) (1) = (3) (3)
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios
PTESMTA Derivative financial instruments - (1) (1) = (1) (1)
6,103 3,785 9,888 6,133 3,264 9,397
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(ii) 5 22 (ii)) The Bond Trust
2015 2014
BEAT in HK$ million #R5I Level 1 W5 Level 2 #& 5l Level 3 #258 Total #& 5l Level 1 &5l Level 2 #R7I Level 3 #2328 Total
&E Assets
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments
AR EMEERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BERES Debt securities - 4,315 271 4,586 = 4,623 63 4,686
THEEMIE Derivative financial instruments 1 87 - 88 5 26 = 31
REKREHAS Long-term investment portfolios
AR ERIEERE  Availablefor-sale financial assets
BERES Debt securities - 4,110 188 4,298 - 3,889 53 3,942
TESRmTIA Derivative financial instruments 1 86 - 87 5 27 = 32
=R Liabilities
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments
PTEERTIE Derivative financial instruments (7) (72) - (79) (5) (30) - (35)
RE®REAS Long-term investment portfolios
PTEERMTIE Derivative financial instruments (6) (71) - (77) (5) (30) - (35)
(1) 8,455 459 8,903 = 8,505 116 8,621
EENBREREHERNSHRIBERBBLEE The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
B BRAFEETERAINEAREDY - of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
RZO—EHEFER=-O—NF » SERREESE During the years of 2015 and 2014, there were no transfers between the three levels of fair value
=82 EETER R MER - hierarchy classifications for the Group and Equity Trust.
HAREERBREEFTRMRE  FIAR=0— Due to availability of price quoted from pricing services providers, HK$2 million was transferred
TFEEFESHP-FEET (ZO—NF 07 from Level 3 to Level 2 for the Bond Trust in 2015 (2014: HK$4 million).

BT CHRBIBERERA 2 -
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34 AEEREE (8)
34.3 AFEEMGET (@)

(b) RIZRFIBHIRE T B2 FIEENEER BIFGER

B ER R M A

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the balance of the assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on

BT : Level 3 were as follows:
(i) & (i) The Group
HEET in HK$ million 2015 2014
tA—A At 1July 5,693 4,090
EUTHRERERN S EEE Total gains recognised in
Wz & Income statement 34 15
2HEHKER Statement of comprehensive income 366 247
A Purchases 560 1,641
e Sales (391) (300)
~B=+H At 30 June 6,262 5,693
FRFARBRIINER S RERRIKREAS Total gains for the year included in income statement and presented
BN EEE in surplus from securities investments and long-term investment portfolios 34 15
ERBPRSENEER EERFATARER Total gains for the year included in income statement for assets
WHIERFIRERRAREASRBRININGEEE and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period and presented
in surplus from securities investments and long-term investment portfolios = =
(i) EHES (i) The Bond Trust
EL: 7 in HK$ million 2015 2014
tA—H At 1 July 116 13
U T SRR BRI NS 258 Total gains recognised in
a5 & Income statement 9 1
2HEEE Statement of comprehensive income 14 22
BA Purchases 350 87
e Sales (28) 3)
FR AR Bl 3EE B = A 112 Transfer from Level 3 to Level 2 (2) (4)
~A=+H At 30 June 459 116
FRFTABRRILHEEEE D RRFH R 2 Total gains for the year included in income statement
and presented in share of profits of joint ventures 9 1

SHRMRFENEER BERFAFTARER
WHHEFE & & D ANER R 450

Total gains for the year included in income statement
for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
and presented in share of profits of joint ventures




34 MBEEKRER (8)
34.3 AFEEMRE (&)
(c) =O—Z&FNA=+HR=O—MFE;A=1+H - it

HRBI2A09 2 FEEIF BRI BRI RGA L8000 -

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements within Level 2 as at 30

June 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

-l fhERIS ERBAZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
B EE/BE
Financial assets/liabilities
At HERE WRESRE FR=E
Available-for-sale investments Discounted cash flow Discount rate
BHESEH HIRBEESRE HR=E
Forward contracts on bonds Discounted cash flow Discount rate
RENEEH TRRESRE AR E R
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
iy MO -SFRATHEEERR = . FIRRIKIE
Options Black-Scholes model Exchange rates, interest rates and volatility levels
=5 HRRERE BREEBNITEREZRIEHR
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates and swap rates of

() R=O—AEFA=F+HR=O—MENA=1H -
FEREXFABFRHALE (RF3) T HLFEE
BYBRSPEFHOT -

respective currency

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
within Level 3 as at 30 June 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

ot fRERT EPN P2 -1 8 BE (HnAE 7 13)

Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)

B EE/ Al

Financial assets/liabilities
EthEESRKRE EEFE" TE A TEMA
Real estate fund investments Net asset value * n/a n/a
BEREEESRE BEEFE TE A TE A
Private equity fund investments Net asset value * n/a n/a
HHhEESRE EEFE" TEMA TEH
Hedge fund investments Net asset value * n/a n/a
BiES MERESRE RELHIIREED 5% -23%
Debt securiities Discounted cash flow BRANRIHTIR =

MEERPIBBE=RNRENFEFRTSETEE -
BERENEENRESESEEMERNENES
BERCELRENERRAEFTERZBEMEREESR
MEE  KERBEREEFERZSRENAFE
o

(e) B=O—ZAENA=T+HR=-O—ME~A=+H
L HEERE R FEEIR -

Discount rates adopted
by brokers or external
pricing vendors

* The investments classified as level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Group has determined that the reported net asset value represent fair value

of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2015 and 2014, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried at fair value.
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35 BEMBRRRREEHEE

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB

BB Statement of financial position of the Club
AA=tH at 30 June
BEET in HK$ million 2015 2014
FRBEE Non-current assets
W2 - RIBREEM Property, plant and equipment 7,481 6,343
REYZE Investment properties 1 2
MEBQERE Investments in subsidiaries 1,140 1,140
EENRRE Investments in joint ventures 14,529 13,825
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments 3,464 3,017
REREHS Long-term investment portfolios 6,295 5,582
32,910 29,909
MENEE Current assets
BERREES Debt securities portfolio 1,009 959
EktE A R FTE E K Loans to subsidiaries 1,676 1,676
FiErEsE Assets held for sale - 8
HiReEE Other current assets 523 576
FEW BB D T HFIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,827 1,764
TEESMTE—HMIRE Derivative financial instruments - other investments 21 5
FEERTFRR Short-term deposits 1,577 3,108
ReRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,292 4,013
10,925 12,109
mEEE Current liabilities
FEAT R R FE WA IR Creditors and receipts in advance (4,316) (4,365)
FEA T BB A R B FRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (5,185) (4,766)
AEFSHAE Current income tax liabilities (33) (81)
PTESMIA—HMRE Derivative financial instrument - other investments (3) -
(9,537) (9,212)
MENEEFE Net current assets 1,388 2,897
FEREEE Non-current liabilities
EEFTERiaE Deferred income tax liabilities (237) (155)
HipE s Other liabilities (580) (422)
(817) (577)
33,481 32,229
& Reserves Note (a) 21,111 20,273
BRES Contingency Fund Note (b) 12,370 11,956
EniBE Total equity 33,481 32,229
= Simon S O Ip
=% Anthony W K Chow
Ak Stewards
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35 BEMBRRRREEHEE
Mz (a) HEREEES

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Club

R RESEHE Bz
Accumulated Investment Total
BEET in HK$ million reserves revaluation reserve
—O—mELHA—H At 1 July 2014 19,814 459 20,273
FRIRERER Retained surplus for the year 573 - 573
At EMKEEENE LR Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets = 398 398
Al E RS E R Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
SRR RS EHN D BERARRER financial assets reclassified to income statement - (52) (52)
= 346 346
BB ZNBREENEENENTTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit
obligations, net of tax (81) = (81)
—O—&a&FX<A=1+H At 30 June 2015 20,306 805 21,111
—O—=%tA—H At 1 July 2013 18,753 149 18,902
FRREBEER Retained surplus for the year 861 = 861
AR EMEEENEME Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - 338 338
A ER S E E HE R
EERREEMHERANGER Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets reclassified to income statement - (28) (28)
- 310 310
MR ZNBREENEENENTTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit
obligations, net of tax 200 - 200
—O—mFEHSRA=TH At 30 June 2014 19,814 459 20,273
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35 BEMBRRRREEHEE
Fizt (b) BSEHERESEE

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB
Note (b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club

Heikeh REBMHE Bz
Fund Investment Total
BEBT in HK$ million balance revaluation reserve
—O—mELHA—H At 1 July 2014 11,675 281 11,956
AR R Transfer from income statement
— ERESRENER - Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 231 - 231
At EMKEEENELRR Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - 240 240
A E RS 2 R Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
SR RWEER T EBARRER financial assets reclassified to income statement - (57) (57)
- 183 183
—O—&aFXA=1+H At 30 June 2015 11,906 464 12,370
—O—=%tHA—H At 1 July 2013 11,550 147 11,697
AR Transfer from income statement
— BRAESRENRE - Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 125 - 125
At EMKEEENELRR Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - 169 169
AEHENEEELERNESRINEEHN Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
DB AR ER financial assets reclassified to income statement = (35) (35)
- 134 134
—O—mEFEARA=1H At 30 June 2014 11,675 281 11,956




FEAS

RZO—AFARA=1TH FENTEMNBLRIERE

SERANERE T
FEEK ERTRAZRAEMES HiE B3
EEBAMAY - FE2EHENIRG

BRAA -

EREEEFEEERAR REBSHERER — R 100
BEFEEREEERLR R BRI ER =REr 100
EREERFBEMAF RENERRSFEL —BEBBT 100
EEERESHERAR SEEEEES 8N HERELRE —HBT 100
ERESY (KE) ARAF ERBETRMNERNTENEEA —+Ex 100
BRBREERAF EEEERBENEL —FTBEx 100
RS EEEARA R SEERERHRS B RO AT ERENER —BEn 100
EREEERARERAR W FEEETETEED —f&Bx 100
EREEEKAR (FE) BRAE FESEEREBLRE HEBT 100
BEEREHNRERTRAT :

EREEE (B35 BRAHE REBBESSEEEREENREARE — 100
EREBEEEMERABDNRE
EEREIMRAY » FELEHEBH

BROBRAA :

HKJC Reinsurance Limited REBNEKETRRER T=EXxR 100
TEHREANRRAEZMAY  FEEE
BEEHTMELRERAA -
TREEEEEMERAR BEEESE N HERLEE ATHREBER 100
TtREEEERMFERARAR 1R (2 TR (4 T2 AR O A 91 3R B R A AR S —FTBEZR 100
BNEEEEESFIRERAE TERAL B 2 2 A & FS UL AR AR M ARB+AEBNTET 100
RYNEBBERAABERA R TR E AR 1 I BR A Y R0 B B R R R BR A% ZHBXER 100
REARBERFHRABHAIL - EQE’J§$FWHTFE%Q%:FW§QﬁE’J§$ c FEBRTSHWEARMEMESESE | ERIALE © Charles G. Collisft4E (HEZ=0

—HE-A+=A)  BASXEE(BH-O-—NFAA+=H)  BEELE HERELELE(AZ-O—NEAA+=A0)  EHEEHL  EZEEE  TRE
zZ+ - BREILE  BRALE  BEELLE  FTEMELE AEBLLE  EBEHZE (B-O—HEFtA—AHRR)  BEFLZL (B=-O-—WFLA+=H
BEZO—HRFtHA—H)  RZARELEFStephen Arrowsmith e 4 ©
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SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2015:

Issued and fully paid up share capital /

Effective percentage
held by the Club

Principal activities registered capital Directly Indirectly
Incorporated in Hong Kong, limited by
share capital and wholly owned:
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000 100
HK]C Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000 100
The Jockey Club Membership manages Members’ social and HK$100 100
Services Limited recreational facilities
The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as administrator for staff retirement HK$20 100
(Managers) Limited benefits scheme
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages the Racing Club’s operations HK$ 10,000,000 100
The Racing Club Horse Management manages the HKJC Racing Club Limited’s HK$10,000 100
Limited horse related activities
HKJC Business Ventures Limited inactive HK$ 100,000,000 100
HKJC Business Ventures (China) Limited holds the equity interests of the Group’s HK$500,000,000 100
business ventures in China
Limited by guarantee and wholly
controlled:
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) acts as nominee for selected projects and = 100
Limited holds investments in the Beijing Hong
Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited, on
behalf of The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Incorporated in Bermuda, limited by share
capital and wholly owned:
HKJC Reinsurance Limited insures the Group against certain risks US$120,000 100
and exposures
Established in The People’s Republic of
China, limited by registered capital and
wholly owned:
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club manages Members’ social and US$65,000,000 100
Clubhouse Limited recreational facilities
Beijing HKJC Technology Development provides computer hardware and software ~ US$10,000,000 100
Limited technology development and consulting
services
Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse Training constructs and operates horse training RMB1,540,000,000 100
Limited facilities in Conghua
Shenzhen HKJC Technology provides computer hardware and software ~ US$3,000,000 100

Development Limited

technology development and consulting
services

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Stewards are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the Club. Other directors of the Club’s subsidiaries
include: Mr Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges, Mr Charles G. Collis (until 12 February 2015), Mr Chow Ding Man (from 13 September 2014), Mr Christoph Ganswindt,
Mr Douglas Cheung Tak So (until 13 September 2014), Dr Gene W W Tsoi, Mr George Mok Yuen Chee, Ms Gloria Y M Wong, Mr Herbert Tsoi Hak Kong, Mr Julian
Chow Kai Wo, Mr Kim K W Mak, Mr Lee Hock Ee, Mr William A Nader, Ms Philana Wai Yin Poon (from 1 July 2015), Ms Phillis Suet Fun Wong (from 13 September
2014 until 1 July 2015), Mr Richard C K Cheung and Mr Stephen Arrowsmith.



PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR FULL RACING SEASON | #Z2ES=HRaRER

BEET in HKS million 2015* 2014*
EEHEE Number of race meetings 83 83
A EEEREHERE Amounts wagered by local customers 191,310 171,925
EESXHhEEEBIMUTEE Amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners 2,644 152
TR Total amounts wagered 193,954 172,077
ERERESFIA Betting and lottery revenue 31,629 29,563
TR 2R ST Betting and lottery duty (19,839)  (18,641)
TR T It B SRS Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (49) (36)
BEES Lotteries Fund (1,167) (1,187)
@R R AL Net margin and commission 10,574 9,699
HAlg A Other revenue 3,213 2,838

13,787 12,537
A Operating costs (9,000)  (8,523)
BERER Operating surplus 4,787 4,014
BRI B Interest income from deposits 156 203
BHRERRBREASHEER Surplus from securities investments and long-term investment portfolios 407 287
FERESRENEER Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 231 125
&R Finance costs (8) 7)
BB ER Financial surplus 786 608
it & & A aaEH Share of profits of joint ventures 815 624
HRHE HERSERESEN  UARERTFHEAES Surplus before taxation, donations to Charities Trust,

RERESAINEER transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 6,388 5,246
IR Taxation (570) (757)
HNBRFIEE  HEESETESER  ERTHEAESR Surplus after taxation and before donations to Charities Trust,

BERESAINELR transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 5,818 4,489
BETRBESSREGTESNNE Donations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust

—EBRES - Allocations Fund (3,500) (3,000)
BRRGRBEA TR Net surplus after donations and taxation 2,318 1,489
EETHRAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (718) (422)
EERTERES Transfer to Development Fund (44) (55)
REB BB A RERE Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated Reserves 1,556 1,012

*ESHETIEME -

* Refer to note 1 on page 15.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS | ##ZE

EEESEERE THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
BEERIGERNE RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES
BEET in HKS million 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012* 2011*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 83 83 83 83 83
AR B SR Amount wagered by local customers on

horse races ** 105,281 101,818 93,956 85,637 79,728
N BESHEXSREH Horse race betting dividends and rebates on

local bets (88,419) (85,656) (78,797) (71,723)  (66,641)
A B S IEEIRA Horse race betting revenue on local bets 16,862 16,162 15,159 13,914 13,087
A3t B S 1A Horse race betting duty on local bets ***  (12,300)  (11,783)  (11,045)  (10,125)  (9,508)
A IDENR T IME TS Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong on local bets (49) (36) (26) (24) (19)
3 B S IR AL A Horse race betting net margin on local bets 4,513 4,343 4,088 3,765 3,560
BRI FHAEE Amount wagered on football 78,249 62,197 50,606 47,285 39,763
ERETES Football betting dividends (67,061) (52,435) (42,193) (39,404) (32,643)
BIREFUWA Football betting revenue 11,188 9,762 8,413 7,881 7,120
EREYH Football betting duty (5,594)  (4,881)  (4,207)  (3,940)  (3,560)
EERERAF] Football betting net margin 5,594 4,881 4,206 3,941 3,560
RS IFHAEE Amount wagered on lottery 7,780 7,910 7,627 7,693 6,866
BHES Lottery prizes (4,201)  (4,271)  (4119)  (4154)  (3,708)
RHEWA Lottery revenue 3,579 3,639 3,508 3,539 3,158
BHEEB Lottery duty (1,945)  (1,977)  (1,906)  (1,923)  (1,716)
BEES Lotteries Fund (1167)  (1,187)  (1,144)  (1,154)  (1,030)
REEe Lottery commission 467 475 458 462 412
HFERA Other net revenue 1,523 1,293 1,228 1,933 999
REE W Total operating income 12,097 10,992 9,980 10,101 8,531
HELERAR Direct operating costs (6,132) (5,765)  (5,424) (4,921) (4,561)
HEIRRRK Miscellaneous donations (60) (91) (118) (279) (203)
E - #  REREEXH Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and

expensed project costs (1,202) (1,074) (890) (757) (750)
FEECE N Total operating costs (7,394)  (6,930)  (6,432)  (5,957) (5,514)
e EER Operating surplus 4,703 4,062 3,548 4144 3,017
B EER Financial surplus 714 525 1,883 195 914
HBRFIE « BEEEETESETUR Surplus before taxation, donations to

ERTERESRBREESANELR Charities Trust, transfer to Contingency

Fund and Development Fund 5,417 4,587 5,431 4,339 3,931
BASZERONEHRERE Unclaimed prizes transferred

to the Snowball Pool 75 77 61 91 54

ERBFAERSRIDERERNREE  WEEER
ESREY  URNATHAESRBRESMORME -
REBREHHEN -

The above figures represent the results before taxation, donations to Charities Trust, transfer to
Contingency Fund and Development Fund of racing and betting facilities.

* Financial data is for full seasons.



EEERERE (&)
BERILERE (&)

BEBT

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP (cont.)
RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES (cont.)

in HK$ million 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012* 2011

* BEBEERIEE
B ESRNSEENESEYREIMOTAE

**  Total amount wagered on horse races 107,925 101,970 93,956 86,117 80,413
Less: amount of non-local bets placed by

commingling partners on horse races (2,644) (152) - (480) (685)
TiEEESEEREERE Amount wagered by local customers on
horse races 105,281 101,818 93,956 85,637 79,728
 BEBEHARE *** Total horse race betting duty 12,300 11,783 11,045 10,159 9,557
W EEEMEEERIIEFRIENEESH Less: horse race betting duty of non-local
bets placed by commingling partners = = = (34) (49)
At REE B SR Horse race betting duty by local
customers 12,300 11,783 11,045 10,125 9,508
ENESESEBARAT THE JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP SERVICES LIMITED
BERE MEMBERSHIP FACILITIES
HEET in HKS million 2015 2014* 2013 2012 2011*
e Income
SEEeE Membership subscriptions 263 253 233 217 172
SEAESEBREEERE Members’ entrance and qualification fees 104 106 130 130 109
BHEREE Catering deficit (27) (37) (30) (23) 2)
Hih I BREH W Other non-catering income 50 46 44 39 35
390 368 377 363 314
SEEREBTERE Direct membership administration costs (305) (284) (284) (267) (229)
FERER X Depreciation and expensed project costs (76) (80) (88) (91) (94)
(381) (364)  (372) (358) (323)
KERER/(BE) Operating surplus/(deficit) 9 4 5 5 9)
WIS RER Financial surplus 40 52 51 26 32
FRTLAIZER Surplus before taxation 49 56 56 31 23

RZO—HFEARA=1H EFSSESHKARLAR
EFEA-TERET—EEBT (ZO—EF : TH{E
NTREEBT) - BEYE  RERSM-ELTE
HEBERL (ZO—DOF : —ZRATAEEER)  REK
ERSTEATEEL (ZO—OF : +—EBATAE
BiEx)  EERSHEEE—AEET (ZO—HmEF:
—HEET) RBEELE-TLEEET(Z0—H
£ EE-—FT-EEER)  BRERBEG=—FE-—THRA
BEn (CO—mEF : —E—THEERBT) °
2EBREFUBES -

The net assets of The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2015 were HK$2,051 million
(2014: HK$1,995 million), including property, plant and equipment of HK$277 million (2014: HK$299
million), long-term investment portfolios of HK$ 1,260 million (2014: HK$ 1,196 million), deferred income
tax assets of HK$2 million (2014: HK$3 million), current assets of HK$727 million (2014: HK$712 million),
less current liabilities of HK$215 million (2014: HK$215 million).

* Financial data is for full seasons.

67



STATISTICAL SUMMARY | #:

B=E RACING 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012* 2011*
ESBAHE Race meetings
HEXRE Day meetings 47 45 46 46 47
BRERE Night meetings 36 38 37 37 36
BRE Total number of meetings 83 83 83 83 83
HihE SIS Races on turf 675 683 689 689 689
ERIRHEEFSH Races on all-weather track 102 88 80 80 78
BIZH Total number of races 777 771 769 769 767
-u Horses
BUHEARE Total runners 9,755 9,627 9,653 9,704 9,502
B —5EEFTHAE Horses winning 1 race 300 269 276 321 321
B mSEEF A Horses winning 2 races 129 132 132 112 113
B =5BEEFTHAE Horses winning 3 races 44 54 60 46 44
B =50 L EEFIHAE Horses winning over 3 races 20 18 1 20 20
BHBEEFTHAE Horses with winnings 493 473 479 499 498
EBLESERANESTHAE Horses not winning - placed 408 428 425 422 399
REBHESTEBANVESTHAE Horses not winning - unplaced 380 371 379 380 380
REHESTHAE Horses not raced 305 318 301 273 279
B Total horse population 1,586 1,590 1,584 1,574 1,556
REEFT Retirements 398 440 444 438 430
BERES Prize money
REBEE (BEET) Total prize money (HK$ million) 982 890 858 826 785
FEFHES (FBR) Average prize money
per race (HK$000) 1,264 1,154 1,115 1,074 1,023
BEFi9%RE (FEx) Average prize money
per horse (HK$’000) 619 560 541 525 504
FRERESREET Percentage of horses
HETAHED winning prize money in the year 62% 62% 61% 63% 62%
FRERESREET Percentage of individual runners
IHHEETAHEDLL winning prize money in the year 76% 77% 75% 76% 75%
FARDERESEAR Percentage of horses recovering
BLRSFETHDL basic costs or more in the year 36% 35% 38% 38% 36%
ESHEHNBAR (F) Average attendance
per meeting ('000)
55 it Happy Valley 17.7 18.2 18.1 17.8 17.1
WH Sha Tin 29.3 28.4 29.6 28.8 27.7
ERRIEE (58ET) Total racing turnover (HK$ million)
L@ Standard bets 92,730 88,301 81,427 74,530 69,523
HERIF Exotic bets 14,286 12,737 11,796 10,967 10,325
Eila sl Fixed odds bets 909 932 733 620 565
#azg Total 107,925 101,970 93,956 86,117 80,413
*2EBEFER o * Racing statistical data is for full seasons.



BA%5 FINANCIAL
BEET in HK$ million 2015* 2014* 2013* 2012* 201"
B EEBRBR Payments of duty and taxation

to Hong Kong Government
BEEEEH Horse race betting duty 12,300 11,783 11,045 10,159 9,557
BIREEB Football betting duty 5,594 4,881 4,207 3,940 3,560
S EEH Lottery duty 1,945 1,977 1,906 1,923 1,716
FIEHE Profits tax 518 707 417 412 322

20,357 19,348 17,575 16,434 15,155

REBHBIEEELRE Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax#

to The Community Chest of Hong Kong 2 2 2 2 3

HIRBBE—NWN=FNE —HEHE - FTEEE
HESENREBRBENFSASERETBLAR
T AMTHEE-0C0=5=A=1t—H H&E&
HEZO-—NF=A=t+—H-

# Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate sums
equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of Hong Kong for
ten years up to 31 March 2003, subsequently extended to 31 March 2018.

] MEMBERSHIP

RAA=+A as at 30 June 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

EEBESEEEAY Number of Hong Kong Jockey Club Members

EE2S Full Members 14,594 14,421 14,292 14,064 13,910

2EEE (S) Full Members (S) 181 185 185 184 189

EERHEMESE Racing and other Members 8,690 8,339 8,154 8,058 7,928

REEE Absent Members 2,724 2,726 4,915 4,863 4,798

AEEE Corporate Members 186 182 180 178 178
26,375 25,853 27,726 27,347 27,003

MR EEEAY Number of The Racing Club Members

mHEEE Racing Club Members 962 853 747 619 535

tREREEAY Number of Members of the Beijing Clubhouse

BARE Individual Members 828 768 708 587 459

NEEE Corporate Members 105 100 90 72 55
28,270 27,574 29,271 28,625 28,052

fEES GROUP EMPLOYEES

RAA=+A as at 30 June 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

i Full-time 6,101 5,912 5,737 5,545 5,385

SR Part-time 18,308 18,888 18,427 20,859 21,428

*2EBEFER o * Racing statistical data is for full seasons.
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The Trustees have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) was primarily engaged in
supporting charitable organisations and community projects in Hong Kong in accordance with the
Trust Deed.

RESULTS

The results of the Trust for the year are set out in the income statement on page 73. All figures in the
annual report and the audited financial statements are expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated.

FUNDS
Movements in funds of the Trust during the year are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Trust allocated HK$3,871 million for charitable purposes, as detailed in the
“Donations” section of the report.

TRUSTEES
The Trustees of the Trust are the twelve Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) as listed
in the “Board of Stewards” section of the report.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Trustees and is signed for and
on behalf of the Board.

Simon S O Ip
Chairman
24 July 2015
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TO THE TRUSTEES OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST
(established in Hong Kong)

We have audited the financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”)
set out on pages 73 to 100, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015,
and the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in funds and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Deed, and for
such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the Trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Trust as at 30 June 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 July 2015



INCOME STATEMENT | Wz
EXES BRES B
HEAA=TRALFE for the year ended 30 June it Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
EEET in HK$ million Note 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
REEBESTSEEWER Donations from The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Group - - | 3,500 3,000 | 3,500 3,000
HERENEER Surplus on sale of investments 320 56 22 4 342 60
REFTERE NS Dividend income from investments
= - listed 97 93 9 6 106 99
- BERE — alternative investments 130 185 64 97 194 282
REFTSFIE S Interest income from investments
=) - listed = = 8 9 8 9
- 3L — unlisted = = 3 3 3 3
ERF B Interest income from deposits 3 3 31 25 34 28
PTESRIAENT (558)/ s Net (losses)/gains of derivative
financial instruments - (1) - 7 - 6
FriE& & A aaER| Share of profits of joint ventures 4 693 419 159 109 852 528
BAREEERER Forfeited dividends and refunds = = 55 56 55 56
EHEER Management expenses 11.1 = = (81) (59) (81) (59)
BisEHA Finance costs - - (2) 9) (2) 9)
BEZESHEREETTEATNRS Surplus before allocation to
charitable organisations and
community projects 1,243 755 | 3,768 3,248 5,011 4,003
e AR B ARV B R Previous allocations not utilised = = 53 74 53 74
BRTEERBEREETE Allocation to charitable
organisations and community
projects - - | (3,871) (3,606) | (3,871) (3,606)
BAESHFERLR/ (BB) Net surplus/(deficit) transferred
to Funds 9 1,243 755 (50) (284) | 1,193 471

Bttt NEE-—BENMEBEAMBERRN—

A

7

o

The notes on pages 78 to 100 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME | 2@z
BRES BRES B
BESA=TRHLFE for the year ended 30 June FfeE Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
HEET in HK$ million Note 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
BARSHFERE/ (E1B) Net surplus/(deficit) transferred
to Funds 1,243 755 | (50) (284) | 1,193 471
Ht2mEu /( Ei8) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
HERREN BB ARGERNIER Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to income statement
AHHENBEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BE2Y Change in value 9 390 522 4 (2) 431 520
A& ATHMET (BiR)/ I Share of other comprehensive
(loss)/income of joint ventures 4 (206) 1,751 | (144) 199 (350) 1,950
REEHMEERE/ (EE) Other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year 184 2,273 | (103) 197 81 2,470
AEEZEWE/ (EE) 85 Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year 1,427 3,028 | (153) 87) | 1,274 2,941

Ft+TNEE-—BENMEBEAMBHRRN D -

The notes on pages 78 to 100 are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B AR R

EXES MES wE
AA=+H at 30 June MisE Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
HEET in HK$ million Note 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
FREEE Non-current assets
BEARIRE Investments in joint ventures 16,845 16,475 4,699 4,092 21,544 20,567
REKRE Long-term investments 5 9,951 8,907 = = 9,951 8,907
ERR W RE Loans and receivables = - 43 65 43 65
26,796 25,382 4,742 4,157 31,538 29,539
nREEE Current assets
AUE#EEER Investments held to fund
HWiIRE charitable projects 6 = = 2,460 2,078 2,460 2,078
ERR WA Loans and receivables 12 4 87 49 99 53
BESEMNEBIER  Inter-fund receivable 5 - - - 5 -
ZHITFRK Short-term deposits 7 = = 1,088 1,107 1,088 1,107
ReRELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 7 - = 3,354 2,829 3,354 2,829
17 4 6,989 6,063 7,006 6,067
=N Current liabilities
il o 2 A EO B R Allocations awaiting payment 8 - = (10,944) (9,284) (10,944) (9,284)
BELZEHEMNERR  Interfund payable = = (5) = (5) =
HibE[FRIE Other payables - = - 6] - (1
— S (10,949) (9,285) (10,949) (9,285)
MEVEE/(BfE)FEE  Net current assets/(liabilities) 17 4 (3,960) (3,222) (3,943) (3,218)
26,813 25,386 782 935 27,595 26,321
2% Funds 9 26,813 25,386 782 935 27,595 26,321
HEEEFEA Simon S O Ip
EHR Anthony W K Chow
Ak Trustees

Ft+TNEE-—BENMEBEAMBHRRN D -

The notes on pages 78 to 100 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS | E£#8&3%*

BRES BRES k]
Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
HEBT in HK$ million 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
BEtA—HLWESEE Total funds at 1 July 25,386 22,358 935 1,022 | 26,321 23,380
BRI/ (B5B) Net surplus/(deficit) 1,243 755 (50) (284) 1,193 471
NEFEHMEEKE/ (EE) Other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year 184 2,273 (103) 197 81 2,470
AEFHMEEIE/ (FIR) #5E Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year 1,427 3,028 (153) (87) 1,274 2,941
BERA=ZTHLENWESHE Total funds at 30 June 26,813 25,386 782 935 | 27,595 26,321

Bttt NEE-—BENMEBEAMBERRN—
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o

The notes on pages 78 to 100 are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS | B&R&%*
BEAAZTHLEFE for the year ended 30 June Ff
BEET in HK$ million Note 2015 2014
EREE Operating activities
EAREE SRR Forfeited dividends and refunds 55 56
REBEEFSEENIBR Donations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Group 3,500 3,000
RFEESHBR LTS Payments to charitable organisations and community projects (2,158) (1,551)
FEWGRIER A/ (3 ) Decrease/(increase) in receivables 6 (8)
HibEAFRIERSD Decrease in other payables (1) (10)
ESSEAMNLARSHERRSERABMEEN Loan made to The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited - (50)
EEEXMRBERATMEER Loan made to The Jockey Club CPS Limited (30) (24)
EEEH Management expenses (81) (59)
EXRRMEENFRS Net cash generated from operating activities 1,291 1,354
REFE Investing activities
EH R A =188 U EREBFERD/ () Decrease/(increase) in short-term deposits with maturities of
more than three months 19 (715)
2 WEUFIE Interest received 51 36
2 WERE Dividends received 300 381
HEENREEE Injection into joint ventures (2,804) (461)
E&E AR ER Redemption from joint ventures 2,329 426
BEAHLENKEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (2,797) (6,433)
HETHEENKEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 2,43 6,330
HOTE SR T BATBUFRERIE Net receipt for derivative financial instruments 3 5
RETEBAANFRE Net cash used in investing activities (756)  (431)
RERBELEEYFEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 535 923
FHNRERBFEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,829 1,968
HIREE Exchange losses (10) (62)
FRASRAESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,354 2,829
RERRELBWEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
EHTER Short-term deposits 7 3,340 2,818
SRAITIEM Bank balances 7 14 11
3,354 2,829

Bttt NEE-—BENMEBEAMBERRN—

A

7

o

The notes on pages 78 to 100 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION
The Trust is primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and community projects in
Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed. The Trust is established in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million), unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 73 to 100 were approved by the Board of Trustees on 24 July
2015.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Trust’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 3.

(a) New interpretation and amendments that are relevant to the Trust’s operations and are effective
for the current accounting period

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Impairment of Assets: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets

Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement -
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Annual improvements 2012 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual improvements 2013 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the following new interpretation and amendments does not have any significant
impact on the financial statements and has not led to any changes in the Trust’s accounting policies.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) ‘Investment Entities’ mean that many
funds and similar entities will be exempted from consolidating most of their subsidiaries. Instead,
they will measure them at fair value through profit or loss. The amendments give an exception
to entities that meet an ‘investment entity’ definition and which display particular characteristics.
Changes have also been made in HKFRS 12 to introduce disclosures that an investment entity needs
to make.

Amendments to HKAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’ clarify the right of set-off must be available today, that is, it cannot be contingent
on a future event. It also must be legally enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course of
business, as well as in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendments also consider
settlement mechanisms.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(a) New interpretation and amendments that are relevant to the Trust’s operations and are effective

for the current accounting period (cont.)

Amendments to HKAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial

Assets’ address the additional disclosures about the measurement of the recoverable amount of

impaired assets when the recoverable amount was based on fair value less costs of disposal.
Amendments to HKAS 39 ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation

of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’ provide relief from discontinuing hedge

accounting when novation of a hedging instrument to a central counterparty meets specified criteria.

(b) New standard and amendments that are relevant to the Trust's operations but are not yet
effective and not early adopted

The following new standard and amendments have been published and are mandatory for the Trust’s
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2015.

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Financial Instruments

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangement: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 27
Amendments to HKAS 1

Separate financial statements: Equity Method

Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative

Annual improvements 2014 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Trust is still in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new standard
and amendments will be in the period of initial application, but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new standard and amendments will have a significant impact on the Trust’s results of
operations and financial position.

2.2 Joint arrangements
The Trust has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Trust has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Trust’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
and movements in other comprehensive income. When the Trust’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Trust’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Trust does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Trust and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Trust’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Trust.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.3 Funds

The Trust comprises two funds, the Capital Fund and the Allocations Fund. The Capital Fund is held
in the form of long-term investments with income reinvested for the future. The Allocations Fund is
invested in securities and short-term deposits, and is used for charitable donations. Income to the
Allocations Fund includes income from investments, interest earned on deposits, donations from the
Club and its subsidiaries, forfeited dividends and refunds.

2.4 Long-term investments

Long-term investments (including investments in the joint ventures HKJC Equity Trust Fund (“Equity
Trust”) and the Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”)) are held for non-trading purposes.
They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for loans and receivables
(which are stated at amortised cost). The accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term
investments is stated in note 2.6.

2.5 Investments held to fund charitable projects

The primary purpose of investments held to fund charitable projects (including investments in
the Equity Trust and the Bond Trust) is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for loans and
receivables (which are stated at amortised cost). The accounting policy for the financial assets of the
investments held to fund charitable projects is stated in note 2.6.

2.6 Financial assets
The Trust classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables (including cash and
cash equivalents). The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial recognition and
re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date. The long-term investments, investments held
to fund charitable projects and the investment in joint ventures may contain these financial assets.
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day — the date on which the Trust
commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all such assets.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Trust has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period. They comprise local and overseas listed or unlisted equities, debt securities and/
or alternative investments. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and retained in the investment
revaluation reserve until the assets are sold. On the sale of these assets, the differences between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified from investment revaluation reserve
to income are included in “Surplus/deficit on sale of investments”.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds and private
real estate funds. For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair
values will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using
valuation techniques.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.6 Financial assets (cont.)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of derivative financial instruments. The Trust uses derivatives such as interest
rate swaps, equity options, foreign exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its
financial risks and to facilitate the implementation of its investment strategies. Derivatives are initially
recognised at fair value on the date derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair values.

Changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the income statement in the period in
which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or
the net payment and the carrying value is included in the income statement unless the derivatives
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and are included in current assets, except for amounts that are expected
to be settled or with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period where
these are classified as non-current assets.

The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” in the statement of financial
position, short-term deposits, deposits and fund awaiting investments under non-current assets and
cash and cash equivalents as stated below.

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits
placed at bank for a fixed term are classified as “Short-term deposits” while other elements of cash
and cash equivalents represent “Bank balances”.

2.7 Impairment of financial assets

The Trust assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. It may not be
possible to identify a single, discrete event that caused the impairment. Rather the combined effect
of several events may have caused the impairment. Losses expected as a result of future events, no
matter how likely, are not recognised.

(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

81



82

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EEFHBIR (&)

2.7 MBEERE (&)

(a) FITEET L ERYESZE (4)
RIEAHEENRER ZEREMS - RABERE
HERERENZTEREE - JetEs TEM  MtEE
BEERERN  m5  KBEERRHREAR
2 DIBURERA RS NE - LUKk REN Q- FEE
SRERRAKEENEEAE - FAHHENIKE
EFELERER - 25HEE — ZBENAREERLQY
BENERE  BEZVBEE LA RS REZHEM
BEEBEFTE  YHREEMLREEHIE  SAWE
RN - ARFERABRZNBRARET AR ZERERE
B8 FTEEERERER o

(b) L #ESH R K TR H & 2
RENRKREVFENS @ BREFEEUEEREEE
SRR EERRERFRTRFEN AT RE SR
EREMENEETE - EENREEESSRHD M
BERFERFAWERA ©

HE—REER  BEBERESE - RERERR
BTN (FINEKANEEFRERA) AR
A - BRI E R RBESESERERER -

2.8 ShEER IR

(a) DEEEH REREHR
ERESNPHRRARINERE - HUERBEBRN
FREBREACANER ([EEE]) 75 - F:E
ESPBHMRBTIR - BURELESHNINEER

R2HEH o

(b) X 5 R4

INERZUR S BRER EfL(AERNERFERINEE
B o INERF A E K DAF R EE R IR0 DAUIMNE TR R
EREEREBREENGRNERER  BESAR
HMERA o LOMNSSENEER BE - BIUI2HHAKRD
WHERHERBIT - WREFSAWBRA - HEATH
HEMKEENFERIER (PINRER) WHIREHE
ABAREEM-RBER -

2.9 WA TERZ
B Wz A BRI SOR IR B L AMER AR o
R B Wz IR B YRR R A DU B o

2.10 ERFEERERHETE
BTEERBRAEEFENKE
% BImABERA -

211 MAREEERER

RESBEFERL > ETEEERBZAEAREN
FeREFGBIELSHE - BERENEEIS TR
fErtEs o

212 HRAEAL

MELIKREANS » EETESERENEESBEE
HB =7 HAHS - FHREREERRABERY
2h IRZTA REETECHS - FZTHEE
o BES—ADRAEBEAL - BEAEA LI AE
ASRERE -

RESETRARE

B T SRR M

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.7 Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale (cont.)

For equities and alternative investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence of
impairment for an investment may include information about significant changes taking place in
the technological, market, economic or legal environment which indicates that the cost of the
investment may not be recovered, as well as a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment below its cost. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income statement — is
reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to income statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the income statement on equity instruments and alternative investments are not reversed through
the income statement.

(b) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the income statement.

2.8 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Trust are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Trust
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Trust’s functional currency and
the Trust’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from translation
at year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised directly in the income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The differences arising from translation
are recognised in the income statement except for translation differences on non-monetary items of
available-for-sale financial assets, such as equities, which are included in the investment revaluation
reserve.

2.9 Revenue recognition
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.10 Allocations to charitable organisations and community projects
Allocations to charitable organisations and community projects are charged to the income statement
when they are approved by the Board of Trustees.

2.11 Forfeited dividends and refunds
In accordance with The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s Rules, certain dividends and refunds which are
not claimed within the specified period are deemed to be donated for charitable purposes. These
amounts are paid directly to the Trust.

2.12 Related party

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Trust if the
Trust has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over
the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Trust and the party
are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to exercise significant judgements in
the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates and assumptions.
The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and uncertainties and
for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or using different
assumptions.

Joint arrangements
The Trust holds 49.2% and 50.7% of the Equity Trust and the Bond Trust respectively. The Trust has
joint control over these arrangements as under the contractual agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements for all relevant activities.

The Trust’s joint arrangements are structured as trusts (i.e. Equity Trust and Bond Trust) and
provide the Trust and the parties to the agreements with rights to the net assets of these joint
ventures under the arrangements. Therefore, these arrangements are classified as joint ventures.

T*EFEE@;?%FEEA%’AE WEEE - BAlt > Z
é;ﬂiﬁ?iﬁ%é}%ﬁ
4 EEATRE 4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
RZO—HFAA=THEEQAAFELT: Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2015 are as follows:
EERARE MR RA FERX

EREE EaiioAA=TES TEEB Authorised and Measurement
Name of entity Country of incorporation Principal activities paid up capital method
ERESERERS HEHS RERE iE e
HKJC Equity Trust Fund The Cayman Islands investment in equities n/a Equity
Stellar Performer Global Series HERHS REBKFES TEA ez

The Cayman Islands investment in debt n/a Equity

securities

RAA=1H GEESRHERERERZESRE
FESHEFANERBESLWT:

The effective percentages directly held by the Trust and its related entities in Equity Trust and Bond
Trust as of 30 June were as follows:

BEES xS
Equity Trust Bond Trust
2015 2014 2015 2014
BEERERERTES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 49.2%  49.3% 50.7%  50.9%
BEERE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 45.6%  45.3% 45.4%  44.7%
BERESSE T RINEFGE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 5.2% 5.4% 3.9% 4.4%
100.0% 100.0% | 100.0%  100.0%
EXRES BRES kol
Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
BB in HK$ million 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
+tA—H At 1 July 16,475 14,311 4,092 3,743 20,567 18,054
*E Injection 1,555 371 1,249 90 2,804 461
e Redemption (1,672)  (377) (657) (49) | (2,329)  (426)
Pk EF Share of profits 693 419 159 109 852 528
FribEAb2E (E518) / e Share of other comprehensive
(loss)/ income (206) 1,751 (144) 199 (350) 1,950
~B=+H At 30 June 16,845 16,475 4,699 4,092 21,544 20,567
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4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)
A summary of financial information of the joint ventures based on their management or audited
accounts as of 30 June 2015 is as follows:

BEXEERE
HEBRESL

Capital Fund’s

BRESEE
WERE DL
Allocations Fund’s

ERESRE
HWERE DL
Trust’s

BHEBT in HK$ million 100% effective interest effective interest effective interest
6 Income
REES Equity Trust 1,045 472 43 515
BEBHES Bond Trust 651 221 116 337
FrE & m Al Profit after taxation
REES Equity Trust 1,045 472 43 515
BEHFES Bond Trust 651 221 116 337
Ht2mEz=/ (BE) Other comprehensive income/ (l0ss)
BREEE Equity Trust 188 86 8 94
ExES Bond Trust (864) (292) (152) (444)
REHES BEXES Fkc)
Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
EREeEE EtESEE EREeEE
HERB DL HERED L HEREDL
Trust’s Trust’s Trust’s
effective effective effective
EL Yo in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
FRBEE Non-current assets
A ENEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
i Equities
EEBLW Listed in Hong Kong 1,810 889 - - 1,810 889
EssLEm Listed overseas 19,856 9,760 = - | 19,856 9,760
BERES Debt securities
Cei=3 ale] Listed overseas = = 14,729 7,464 | 14,729 7,464
kT Unlisted - - 4,817 2,447 | 4817 2,447
HFRENES Funds awaiting investment 482 237 1,428 729 1,910 966
PTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 221 110 221 110
MENEE Current assets
PTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 161 80 161 80
MENEEHAE Total current assets - - 161 80 161 80
mEIEE Current liabilities
PTEERMTIE Derivative financial instruments (4) (2) (152) (76) (156) (78)
e R ERAE Total current financial liabilities (4) (2) (152) (76) (156) (78)
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
TEEMIE Derivative financial instruments = = (189) (94) (189) (94)
22,144 10,884 | 21,015 10,660 | 43,159 21,544
BAES Capital Fund - 9,962 - 6,883 - 16,845
BRES Allocations Fund = 922 - 3,777 - 4,699
- 10,884 - 10,660 - 21,544
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4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures based on their management or audited

accounts as of 30 June 2014 is as follows:

BEXESHE BRESEE EtESEE
HWEREDL HWERBEDL HWERBEDL
Capital Fund’s Allocations Fund’s Trust’s
BEAT in HK$ million 100% effective interest effective interest effective interest
Wz Income
FHS Equity Trust 507 224 17 241
BESFES Bond Trust 566 195 92 287
BB B A Profit after taxation
REES Equity Trust 507 224 17 241
BEBHES Bond Trust 566 195 92 287
Hh 2 EkE Other comprehensive income
BREES Equity Trust 3,475 1,597 14 1,711
BHES Bond Trust 465 154 85 239
REHES BEHEES wE
Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
FEESEE EREEHE FEESEE
HWERE L HERE DL HWERE L
Trust’s Trust’s Trust’s
effective effective effective
BEAT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
FREEE Non-current assets
AR SRS EE Available-for-sale financial assets
e Equities
EEBLEH Listed in Hong Kong 2,257 1,113 S - | 2,257 1,113
ey sEe k] Listed overseas 18,489 9,116 - - | 18,489 9,116
BEifES Debt securities
w8 Em Listed overseas - - 12,605 6,387 12,605 6,387
LT Unlisted = - 6,697 3,437 6,697 3,437
HEFRENES Funds awaiting investment 454 224 583 302 1,037 526
PTESMIAE Derivative financial instruments = = 50 25 50 25
mEEE Current assets
TTESMIA Derivative financial instruments = = 91 47 91 47
REEEAE Total current assets - = 91 47 91 47
nREEE Current liabilities
fTHESMIA Derivative financial instruments (8) (4) (81) (41) (89) (45)
REEE EEE Total current financial liabilities (8) (4) (81) (41) (89) (45)
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
fTHESMIA Derivative financial instruments = = (77) (39) (77) (39)
21,192 10,449 19,868 10,118 41,060 20,567
EXRES Capital Fund - 9,757 - 6,718 - 16,475
BRES Allocations Fund - 692 - 3,400 - 4,092
= 10,449 = 10,118 = 20,567

REQNANEBESESAFNERRS
BERAZASZ=ZBNE (ZO—NE Aoz =&K
=) - ERFSNIRAEEREE QN FEERES
REFIIHRAIBAF (ZO—MF « £F) °

RAEMEFH

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 3.87% for the joint ventures under
the Bond Trust (2014: 3.43%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair values
and their weighted average maturities were 6 years (2014: 7 years).
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4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)

REES
Equity Trust

2015 2014

Bond Trust

2015 2014

BETREUTIEHFE :
ES
BT
S
BEE
A
Hitb & #

EREEENEE A RMFENITESRMTA

Underlying investments were denominated in the following currencies:

United States Dollars (“USD”)
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”)
Pound Sterling (“GBP”)
Korean Won (“KWR”)

Euro (“EUR”)

Japanese Yen (“JPY”)

Other currencies

Trust’s derivative financial instruments in joint ventures

61% 55%

9% 1%
7% 7%
4% 5%
2% 4%
17% 18%

75% 66%
4% 3%
1% 21%
3% 3%
7% 7%

100% 100%

100% 100%

BEES
Equity Trust
EXES BRES 5
Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
&E afE &E afE &E afE
BEBT in HK$ million Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilitits Assets Liabilies
mHINESH Foreign exchange forward contracts = (2) = = = (2)
—O-RE&~A=+H At 30 June 2015 — (2) - - - (2)
DI - Analysed as:

TENE D Current - (2) - - - (2)
RHINESH Foreign exchange forward contracts = (4) = = = (4)
—O—mERA=1H At 30 June 2014 - (4) - - = (4)
DA - Analysed as:

TENER D Current = (4) - - = (4)




4 EEAT/E (8) 4 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cont.)
BEHES
Bond Trust
EXRES BRES ot
Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
BE 8fE BE 8 BE 8
BEET in HK$ million Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
EHINEESHD Foreign exchange forward contracts 13 (29) 7 (16) 20 (45)
HE Futures 1 9) 1 (5) 2 (14)
HARE Options 1 (2) 1 (1) 2 (3)
1 Swaps 105 (68) 61 (40) 166  (108)
—O-EFXA=+A At 30 June 2015 120 (108) 70 (62) 190  (170)
AHWT Analysed as:
TREED Current 51 (49) 29 (27) 80 (76)
EFEDEH Non-current 69 (59) M (35) 110 (94)
120  (108) 70 (62) 190  (170)
EHESEH Forward contracts on bonds 2 (1 = = 2 (1)
RHMEESHD Foreign exchange forward contracts 6 (17) 5 (10) 11 (27)
R Futures 7 (6) 5 (4) 12 (10)
HARE Options 1 (1) 1 = 2 )
1 Swaps 27 (24) 18 (17) 45 (41)
—O-mEXA=+AH At 30 June 2014 43 (49) 29 (31) 72 (80)
DHWT Analysed as:
MENER D Current 27 (25) 20 (16) 47 (41)
IERENE D Non-current 16 (24) 9 (15) 25 (39)
43 (49) 29 (31) 72 (80)
STESESE NS ENEZITES REMKA  There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Trust’s interest in the joint ventures.
=L
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5 REAIRE 5 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
EXRES
Capital Fund
HEET in HK$ million 2015 2014
AHHENKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
R Equities
EHBLEW Listed in Hong Kong 3,374 3,126
w8 Em Listed overseas 193 240
3,567 3,366
FEKRE Alternative investments
JFEm Unlisted 5,674 5,262
9,241 8,628
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 83 77
2 Deposits 627 202
9,951 8,907

FROVIMEIEEANRD T2 2ZTH=\ (ZO—mF:
BOZEHL)  ERNREEEREAFEERS:

MEEFIHRAALE (ZO—IF : +—H)e

The deposits carried weighted average effective interest rate of 0.38% (2014: 0.71%). The carrying
amounts of the deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average maturities were

7 days (2014: 11 days).

2015 2014

REBREUTIIEHINE ! Long-term investments were denominated in the following currencies:
=V uSD 66% 64%
BT HKD 34% 36%
100% 100%




6 AL ZBZREEEMRE

6 INVESTMENTS HELD TO FUND CHARITABLE PROJECTS

BRES
Allocations Fund
HEBT in HK$ million 2015 2014
At EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
i Equities
ERBLEM Listed in Hong Kong 324 221
EEhEm Listed overseas 19 17
343 238
BEES Debt securities
ERBLEM Listed in Hong Kong 184 239
e T Listed overseas 29 28
L Unlisted 146 146
359 413
FERE Alternative investments
F LM Unlisted 1,750 1,422
2,452 2,073
HFRENES Funds awaiting investment 8 5
2,460 2,078

EREBSHNNEFIERANRZE2 2=t (=0
—OF  GBoz=EN\N) - EHESNREEEREED
FEERS - MAMERIHRAS—BENA+=R (ZO
—mOF AF—THRA) - BERIFUXTRARER
=)

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 2.70% (2014: 2.84%). The
carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair values and their weighted average
maturities were 183 days (2014: 515 days). The debt securities were denominated in USD or RMB.

2015 2014
AUEBZESERENREUTIEERE Investments held to fund charitable projects were denominated
in the following currencies:
Ep" usSD 83% 82%
BT HKD 13% 1%
NG RMB 4% 7%
100% 100%

7 EHERRRERIELZEY

7.1 SEEAER
ANERNMETHBERARATS 28T (=0
—NE  HoZE—)  EHERNRMERRER
ATPEEES  MEMELSHERE—BN+=8 (=
O—m&E : —HHE+TNR) - BHRERLGETRA R
%’ °

7.2 B2 RREFEY

EHERNMETHERANEAE2 22HAN (Z0
—OF Boz—HI) BHFERNEREEEEE AT
BERE mnEFRRAAN+RA (ZO-—0F : =
T=H) - BREFERUBT - £t - ARBHRTHE -

7 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

7.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 1.40% (2014: 2.11%). The
carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average
maturities were 183 days (2014: 158 days). The short-term deposits were denominated in HKD or
RMB.

7.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 0.58% (2014: 1.20%). The
carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average
maturities were 40 days (2014: 33 days). The short-term deposits were denominated in HKD, USD,
RMB or AUD.
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8 ALLOCATIONS AWAITING PAYMENT
The Trust classifies the allocations awaiting payment as current liabilities as the Trust does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the allocations for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. However, due to the inherent nature of the projects for which allocations have been made
by the Trust, the period in which these allocations are expected to be paid may be greater than 12
months after the reporting period. Based on the estimates of the management, as at 30 June, the
allocations awaiting payment are expected to be paid:

BEET in HKS million 2015 2014
R—FR Within one year 3,227 2,702
REZEE=FRK In the second to third year inclusive 3,505 2,878
RE=ZF% After the third year 4,212 3,704

10,944 9,284

BRHEENRBRFERNZEREREENE X7
AEEE P TRET B PR E ©

The actual timing of the payments is dependent upon the progress of the individual projects and may
differ from the expected schedule presented above.

9ES 9 FUNDS
EXES BRES
Capital Fund Allocations Fund
REEMMHRE REAEMHRE
HEeikek Investment HEeiker Investment
Fund revaluation #azE Fund revaluation 4z
BEET in HK$ million balance reserve Total balance reserve Total
—O—mE+HA—H At 1 July 2014 22,994 2,392 25,386 736 199 935
EERWER Transfer from income statement 1,243 - 1,243 (50) - (50)
AHHENBEENS LR Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets = 576 576 = 49 49
AHHENBEEHERNE R INEGE Realised gains on disposal of
B ERANRER available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to income statement = (186) (186) = (8) (8)
= 390 390 = 41 41
it E&E QA RNEMEEEE Share of other comprehensive
loss of joint ventures = (206) (206) = (144) (144)
—O—A%F;A=+H At 30 June 2015 24,237 2,576 26,813 686 96 782
—O—=%tA—H At 1 July 2013 22,239 19 22,358 1,020 2 1,022
EEREWER Transfer from income statement 755 = 755 (284) - (284)
AR HEMEEENEMER Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets = 538 538 = 3 3
At HENKEELERNE ERRE Realised gains on disposal of
B ERANER available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to income statement = (16) (16) = (5) (5)
- 522 522 - (2) (2)
i &% A RWEMEEIKE Share of other comprehensive
income of joint ventures = 1,751 1,751 = 199 199
—O—mEXRA=1+H At 30 June 2014 22,994 2,392 25,386 736 199 935
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10 TAXATION
No provision for taxation has been made because the Trust is exempt from Hong Kong profits tax.

11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Trust is related to the Club and its subsidiaries. It is also related to The Jockey Club Kau Sai
Chau Public Golf Course Limited (“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s
Stewards are also the Trustees of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Trust with other related parties:

11.1 Management expenses
Management expenses included HK$80 million (2014: HK$58 million) for administrative and support
services provided by the Club.

11.2 Loans to KSCGC

At the end of the reporting period, included under the loans and receivables in current assets was
HK$80 million made by the Trust to KSCGC representing the balance of a HK$30 million interest-free,
unsecured loan repayable on demand and the balance of a HK$50 million interest-free, unsecured
loan repayable by 30 June 2033 (2014: HK$80 million). A finance income of HK$7 million (2014:
finance cost HK$7 million) was recorded in the income statement for the loan. The carrying amounts
of the loans approximated their fair values.

11.3 Loans to CPS

At the end of the reporting period, included under the loans and receivables in non-current assets
was HK$43 million (2014: HK$22 million) made by the Trust to CPS representing the balance of an
interest-free, unsecured loan repayable by the maturity date which is the expiry of the term of the
tenancy agreement between CPS and the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. A finance cost of HK$9 million (2014: HK$2 million) was recorded in the income statement
for the loan. The carrying amount of the loan approximated its fair value.

11.4 Donation
The Trust received donations from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Group of HK$3,500 million (2014:
HK$3,000 million).
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

12.1 Financial risk factors

The Trust’s investment activities including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity
risk and credit risk. The Trust’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Trust’s financial
performance. The Trust uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk
exposures.

The Trust’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes Committee.
Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of the
investments.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Trust’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in USD or HKD. The HKD is pegged
to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The remaining currency
exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major
currencies had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all other
variables held constant, the Trust’s surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

AZERZHESTENBERT  SRESNEENFIT 2015 2014
ST HERNBAES HERBAES
/WAL EEMETH  WRBHE BEHETI  WRBNEE
B2 LR Effect on B2 LHEE Effect on
e/ 85 surplus #i/ W5 surplus
If currency transferred If currency transferred
strengthened/ to Funds strengthened/ to Funds
BEET in HK$ million weakened by for the year weakened by for the year
NS RMB 5% 20 5% 18
H JPY 5% 8 5% 8
[5¢7:3 EUR 5% 6 5% 35
BT AUD 5% 3 5% -
X5 GBP 5% (2) 5% 13

(ii) IR =B /A (i) Equity price risk

REERARRIEERRERSE S| ZGENE
B ARIRRERTH®  ESRERENEETR
FAMERESAZERFERRL - ELRELHH
RRRAFIATTRHENBEEEEAT

REFHR  HREREERTANER LA/ T
BRAD2h - EMAA R EERGESTENER
T EEESNERNEMARES  SRATHLE
REWAFEEZBMIEM/ B ELEATELEER
T(ZO—WF : tR=FHEEBBT) -

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Trust is exposed to equity
price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These investments are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the statement of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5%
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Trust’s other components of equity would
have increased/decreased by HK$767 million (2014: HK$726 million) as a result of the changes in
fair value of available-for-sale investments.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

12.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can be
further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial asset will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust is exposed to both fair value and
cash flow interest rate risks as the Trust has significant investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there had
been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
the Trust’s surplus for the year would have been HK$36 million higher (2014: HK$33 million). The
Trust’s other components of equity would have been approximately HK$183 million lower (2014:
HK$ 152 million) in response to the general increase in interest rates.

The Trust controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD /USD exposure.
Equity price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by
securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing
across a spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Trust may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to fair
value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Trust maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Trust also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Trust to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and gross-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Trust as
at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

RTRRERE - 2015
=BBRE—F
=Z@EASHAT >3 months to —FE R
BEET in HK$ million Up to 3 months 1 year Over 1year Total
ENTEMKEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
EEESEREEE BN Allocations awaiting payment 10,944 - - 10,944
NEREELENITEMBEE Gross-settled derivative financial liabilities 29 2 95 126
10,973 2 95 11,070
2014
ZEAE—%F
=ZEAHUT >3 months to —FuLE wE
BEBT in HK$ million Up to 3 months 1 year Over 1 year Total
ETEKERE Non-derivative financial liabilities
CEES-ZNE0EE N Allocations awaiting payment 9,284 = = 9,284
HibE[FRIE Other payables 1 = = 1
DNEREELENITEMBEE Gross-settled derivative financial liabilities 39 6 39 84
9,324 6 39 9,369
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

12.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

As at 30 June 2015, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Trust was HK$6,488 million (2014: HK$6,273 million). The table below analyses
the Trust’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2015 and 2014 that would
be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining contractual
maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows, which
are different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the statement of financial position.

FRFFIREREEE (AH{E) TF ° 2015 2014
=BAZ—F —FULE =EAZ—F —FUE
=@A=AT >3 months Over #EE =@AAT >3 months Over R
BEBT in HK$ million Up to 3 months to 1year 1 year Total Up to 3 months to 1year 1 year Total
EHIMNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts

T Outflows (6,325) (153) (10) (6,488) (5,964) (309) - (6,273)

A Inflows 6,298 153 10 6,461 5,947 306 = 0,258
(c) I5E =R (c) Credit risk
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The Trust is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing
to perform its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the Trust’s deposit
placements, debt securities and derivative transactions.

The Trust limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification, and deposits are only placed with financial institutions with good credit standing.
Credit limits are established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based
on its credit ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according
to the risk nature of financial products involved in the transaction. As at 30 June 2015, the Trust’s
maximum exposure to the credit risk of financial assets as defined in note 2.6 approximated their
carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

12.2 Capital risk management
The Trust’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to
— be a major benefactor of public and community services through charitable contribution; and
— support the Trust’s stability and growth.

The Trust monitors its capital which is same as the Funds shown in its statement of financial
position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of donations.

12.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by level of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1 : fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities.

fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

Level 2 :

Level 3 :

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.



12 B ERER (8)
12.3 AFFE ST (@)

BT BEEMEFENAFEE - DREERRER
BABRG A SRS HMMERRREE - Ah&HEKR

HEAZHRHEFE -

ERPIBE=FNNBEEE  TRVELHFDERE
MSETEENSERE - BRERENEEDRERE
EEEARINESHRENCERRENERABETE

KEZEBHMABEEMEE

(a) TREFRNAZ+BULFEE] ML

12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes from
market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most significant

input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers and
considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following tables present the financial assets and liabilities that were measured at fair

EREE - value as at 30 June.
(OREE -2 (i) The Trust
EXRES
Capital Fund
2015 2014
_ 501 wHl2 &HI3 B AN FH2 HAI3 R
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
REPKRE Long-term
investments
AR HENEEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
= Equities 3,567 - - 3,567 3,366 = - 3,366
SERE Alternative
investments = - 5,674 5,674 = - 5,262 5,262
3,567 - 5,674 9,241 3,366 - 5,262 8,628
BRES
Allocations Fund
2015 2014
BB 72 ®BI3 #EE 31 B2 B3 5
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
ANEBZEEENIRE Investment held to
fund charitable
projects
AR EENKEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
RE Equities 343 - - 343 238 = = 238
B%ES Debt Securities - 359 - 359 - 413 = 413
SERE Alternative
investments = - 1,750 1,750 - - 1,422 1,422
343 359 1,750 2,452 238 413 1,422 2,073
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)
(a) The following tables present the financial assets and liabilities that were measured at fair

96

EREE - (%)

(i) REES

value as at 30 June. (cont.)

(if) The Equity Trust

EXES
Capital Fund
2015 2014
. A5 A2 “axE 51 A2 “aEE
BHEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
EE Assets
REKRE Long-term
investments
A EMBEEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
RE Equities 6,015 3,732 9,747 6,231 3,320 9,551
af& Liabilities
fTESRmTA Derivative financial
instruments - (2) (2) - (4) (4)
6,015 3,730 9,745 6,231 3,316 9,547
BRES
Allocations Fund
2015 2014
&BI &AI2 #azE &BIN &BI2 feko)
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
BE Assets
AUENZEERNKRE Investment held to
fund charitable
projects
AHHENKERE Available-for-sale
financial assets
RE Equities 556 346 902 678 = 678
556 346 902 678 = 678
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)
(a) The following tables present the financial assets and liabilities that were measured at fair

value as at 30 June. (cont.)

(i) EHES (iii) The Bond Trust X
Capital Fund
2015 2014
o B 512 B3 HazE B HBI2 B3 “azE
BHEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE Assets
RERE Long-term
investments
A EMKEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
BRFES Debt securities - 6,019 368 6,387 = 6,421 101 6,522
PTHEEMIE Derivative financial
instruments 1 119 = 120 7 36 - 43
afE Liabilities
TTESMIA Derivative financial
instruments (9) (99) = (108) (6) (43) - (49)
(8) 6,039 368 6,399 1 6,414 101 6,516
BRES
Allocations Fund
2015 2014
B B2 B3 “azE B BRI2 B3 “azE
BHEBTL in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE Assets
ALUEBESEANRE Investment held to
fund charitable
projects
AR HENKEE Available-for-sale
financial assets
BERES Debt Securities - 3,360 164 3,524 - 3,260 42 3,302
fTESRmTIA Derivative financial
instruments 1 69 = 70 5) 24 = 29
=l Liabilities
TEE€mI A Derivative financial
instruments (5) (57) = (62) (4) (27) - (31)
(4) 3,372 164 3,532 1 3,257 42 3,300

EREESNBRENERERNSHRERELBEE
B BRAFEETERBNEARESY -
R-ZO—RFR=-O—NF  StESRBREESKE
=EAFEEFER B o
HREERBREEERERE  AAUAR=0O
—HFEFESHP_FEBT (ZO—NF : "B
B#Bx)  EHABISEEEHRRI2

The Trust’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years of 2015 and 2014, there were no transfers between the three levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications for the Trust and Equity Trust.

Due to availability of price quoted from pricing services providers, HK$2 million was transferred
from Level 3 to Level 2 for the Bond Trust in 2015 (2014: HK$6 million).
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the balance of the assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on
Level 3 were as follows:

(i) I=FEE2 (i) The Trust
. EXES BRES e
BEET in HK$ million Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
—O-mFELA—A At 1 July 2014 5,262 1,422 6,684
TEUTHRREZ NN R B Total gains recognised in
VEaE Income statement 81 2 83
2EKER Statement of comprehensive income 235 43 278
BA Purchases 750 459 1,209
HE Sales (654) (176) (830)
—O—ha%~A=1H At 30 June 2015 5,674 1,750 7,424
FRFABRBRIINERIRER ALUEDZEER K Total gains for the year included in income
RERSBINKRIAEE statement and presented in surplus from
long-term investments and investments held
to fund charitable projects 81 2 83
ERARBFENEEREBRERT ARGBRILIIE Total gains for the year included in income
REKRERAUEDZEER NIRERMININGETE statement for assets and liabilities held at
the end of the reporting period and presented
in surplus from long-term investments and
investments held to fund charitable projects = = -
y BEXRES BRES “aEE
BEET in HK$ million Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
—O—=%tA—H At 1 July 2013 3,660 1,446 5,106
TEUTHRRBEZN YR / (B58) 25 Total gains/(losses) recognised in
e Income statement 63 18 81
2HEKEFR Statement of comprehensive income 250 (22) 228
BBA Purchases 1,372 345 1,717
e Sales (83) (365) (448)
—O—mEFEARA=1+A At 30 June 2014 5,262 1,422 6,684
FRFABRGRRIINWERIRER AUEBZEZEA K Total gains for the year included in income
REBBINEEEE statement and presented in surplus from
long-term investments and investments held
to fund charitable projects 63 18 81

EBPRFENEEREENF AT ARBERIFIE
RPRER AUEPZEEB NREBBRNINERAEE

Total gains for the year included in income
statement for assets and liabilities held at
the end of the reporting period and presented
in surplus from long-term investments and
investments held to fund charitable projects = = =




12 MBERER (8)

12.3 AFEE T (&)

(b) WRIFARBYIBIAREST E L FEENEERBIEEE
EHENT : (4)

12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the balance of the assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on

Level 3 were as follows: (cont.)

(i) EFES (i) The Bond Trust
BEXES BRES pLk]
BEBT in HK$ million Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
—O—mE+HA—H At 1 July 2014 101 42 143
TEUT R RN R 58 Total gains recognised in
(EE. Income statement 9 3 12
2 EERE Statement of comprehensive income 1 5 16
BA Purchases 273 125 398
i Sales (25) (10) (35)
AR Bl 385 = 4R 112 Transfer from Level 3 to Level 2 (1) (1) (2)
—O—RFXRA=1+H At 30 June 2015 368 164 532
FREFARBERILFIEE S E D BRI EE Total gains for the year included in income
statement and presented in share of
profits of joint ventures 9 3 12
ERPREENEEREBRFERT ARRRIHIE Total gains for the year included in income
FHE&E D aER MU E 58 statement for assets and liabilities held
at the end of the reporting period and
presented in share of profits of joint ventures = = =
BEXES BRES feb)
BEAT in HK$ million Capital Fund Allocations Fund Total
—O—=%+tH—H At 1 July 2013 10 5 15
U T HRRER N R =L Total gains recognised in
e Income statement 1 = 1
2 EERE Statement of comprehensive income 20 8 28
BA Purchases 77 32 109
HeE Sales 3) (1) (4)
AR B 3E R = 4 FI2 Transfer from Level 3 to Level 2 (4) (2) (6)
—O—MmEXRA=1H At 30 June 2014 101 42 143
FERFTAWRBRIIMEFEEE QA RNRRIH WS 25 Total gains for the year included in income
statement and presented in share of
profits of joint ventures 1 - 1

SHRBRFENEEREERFRT ARERIIIE
Frih & & A R a4 AR

Total gains for the year included in income
statement for assets and liabilities held
at the end of the reporting period and
presented in share of profits of joint ventures =

99
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() R=O—ZAENA=1+HR=O—MENA=1H ' it
EARBI2P 892 T B (ERF (EFFRI S (B TT RGN SE0I0F -

12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements within Level 2 as
at 30 June 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

|R fRERIS EXBAZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
AR/ A%
Financial assets/liabilities
At HERE WRESRE i ES
Available-for-sale investments Discounted cash flow Discount rate
EHESFEN HHBELRE IR =
Forward contracts on bonds Discounted cash flow Discount rate
RENEEH HRRERE AEHRER
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
HAtE WA - SRS EEEEER =R - FIZRRIKIE
Options Black-Scholes model Exchange rates, interest rates and volatility levels
= FRRSRE BN TBRERR MR
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates and swap rates of

(@) R=O—ZFENA=1+HR=O—PFEA=+H -
BHARAEXT L ZRALE (RF)3) it ELFEE
BYEEIMEFIINT -

respective currency

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

ki) fRERIS ERBEEFRASE B (hAEF1)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)
B EE/ A
Financial assets/liabilities
BiEESRE EEFE" TEA TERA
Real estate fund investments Net asset value * n/a n/a
IEREESRE EEFE" TEMA TEA
Private equity fund investments Net asset value * n/a n/a
HHESRE EEFE TEMA TEA
Hedge fund investments Net asset value * n/a n/a
BES WRESRE REHIIREED 5% - 23%
Debt securiities Discounted cash flow FRNEITIR =

LR PFIAE SRR A AR SR T EE -
HERANEEDREEELERFTRROENLS
BEADFRREAERBEBER TR EME
EMER  EHECRAMEBAEFEARERA
1A TE(E -

(e) R=O—FZFENA=FTHAR=O—HENNA=1+
H it IR 78 2 B a2\ T AE EFAR -

Discount rates adopted
by brokers or external
pricing vendors

* The investments classified as Level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Trust has determined that the reported net asset value represent fair value

of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2015 and 2014, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried at fair value.
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